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Continental Holdings Limited (the “Company”) is an
investment holding company. The principal activities of
its subsidiaries (the Company and the subsidiaries are
hereinafter referred to as the “Group”) are the designing,
manufacturing, marketing and trading of fine jewellery and
diamonds. Also, the Group maintains an investment portfolio
including property investment and development, mining and
other industries.

On the manufacturing side, Continental Jewellery (Mfg.)
Limited, the Group’s wholly-owned subsidiary, mainly
engages in the product development, manufacture
and marketing of fine jewellery primarily for export
and is regarded as one of the leaders in fine jewellery
manufacturing. A substantial share of our jewellery products
is currently directed at the middle to upper segments of the
market. We specialize in manufacturing fine jewellery in
precious metal set with diamond, ruby, emerald, sapphire,
pearl and other semiprecious stones.

The Group has production plants in China with full
capabilities in jewellery design, direct stone sourcing,
stone cutting, lapidary, alloying and gold refining. The
management of the Group is known for its commitment to
quality, and its finished products are visible testaments to
that commitment.

The Group has fully-integrated diamond cutting and
jewellery production facilities in China. With around 940
skilled workers, our facilities are best known for their quality
and ability to handle diamond cutting works on a wide range
of products.
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Chan Sing Chuk, Charles, BBs, Jp
Group Chairman

| am pleased to present the annual report of Continental
Holdings Limited (“the Company”) and its subsidiaries (“the
Group”) for the financial year ended 30 June 2012.

BUSINESS REVIEW AND PROSPECTS

During the fiscal year 2012, the Group achieved a turnover
of HK$955.7 million (2011: HK$973.5 million). Profit
attributable to owners of the Company was HK$214.9
million (2011: HK$33.4 million) and basic earnings per share
was HK4.72 cent (2011: HK1.07 cent). The increase in profit
is mainly attributable to the gain on bargain purchase arising
on the acquisition of subsidiaries engaging in mining and
exploration of mineral resources in the People’s Republic of
China (the “PRC"), which offset partially by the impairment
loss of available-for-sale financial assets and share-based
compensation.

The Jewellery sales in the second half of 2011 and the first
half of 2012 were soft. Although business momentum in
the United States has slightly picked up from its lowest
point, the uncertainties in the European debt crisis continue
to deter luxury consumer buying sentiment. Globally, the
consumer sentiment has been weak and we foresee this
trend to follow through in the year to come. We believe the
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pace of businesses will stay weak in the coming years. The
Group’s jewellery sales have dropped slightly as comparing
to last year but the overall gross profit has improved.
The improvement was partly as a result of our efforts in
developing our branding and licensing businesses. In the
future, the Group will focus more on innovative marketing
initiatives in increasing our competitive advantages in the
trade. On the manufacturing side, we will continue to focus
on tight cost control measures to counter the escalating labor
cost in the PRC.

In property investment, the Group is maintaining two
development projects in Hong Kong and the PRC. In Hong
Kong, the Group's development project of a site located
at Nos. 236-242 Des Voeux Road Central is in progress.
The project is occupying a site area of approximately 302
square meters, which will be developed into a multi-storey
commercial premise with a GFA of approximately 4,527
square meters. The project is expected to be completed in
2015. Whereas for the investment in the PRC, the Group
through a 50% jointly controlled entity, is holding two
parcels of land in Yangpu District of Shanghai. The total
site area is approximately 18,101 square meters and the
GFA is approximately 98,881 square meters. The Group is
intending to develop this site into an eleven-floored upscale
multipurpose property comprising of a large shopping mall,
premium grade offices and car parking facilities. Foundation
work at the site is progressing at full speed and we anticipate
the ground work to be completed within next year. The
whole project is expected to be completed in 2014. Upon
completion of both projects, the Group will anticipate a
steady income stream from the Hong Kong and Shanghai
projects.

The acquisition of the Big Bonus Limited and its subsidiaries
(the "“Big Bonus Group”) was completed on 12 October
2011. Big Bonus Group holds 100% interest in the
Hongzhuang Gold Mine, which is located in Luanchuan
County, Henan Province. The project takes place mainly on
two mining areas of 1.09km? and 4.57km?. Currently the
mine is in a trial production state. Simultaneously, detailed
studies on future production have also begun in early 2012.
These studies included pre-production exploration to identify
and prioritise mining target.
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BUSINESS OUTLOOK

Although the macro-economy remains uncertain and
sluggish, the Company will target on providing the best value
and designs in our merchandise and emphasize the strength
of branding to our customer. In addition, we will also explore
untapped markets, such as Mainland China via potential
wholesale and retail channels.

The Group will maintain its diversity in jewellery, property
and mining. In the future, we will continue to operate and
focus on optimizing our current projects while exploring
future potential opportunities to provide the best value for
our Group, shareholders, employees and customers.

LIQUIDITY, FINANCIAL RESOURCES AND GEARING

As of 30 June 2012, the Group had a moderate gearing
ratio of 0.21 (2011: 0.19), which is calculated on net debt
divided by total equity plus net debt. Net debt is calculated
as the sum of bank and other borrowings less cash and
cash equivalents. Total cash and cash equivalents were
HK$85,236,000 (2011: HK$49,867,000) which were mainly
denominated in Hong Kong Dollar, US Dollar and British
Pound, while bank loans were HK$324,172,000 (2011:
HK$235,139,000) which were mainly denominated in Hong
Kong Dollar and Renminbi. Other borrowings in respect of
convertible notes, amount due to a related company, loan
from a controlling shareholder and amount due to ultimate
holding company were approximately of HK$209,421,000
(2011: HK$58,679,000). The bank loans are secured by first
legal charges over the Group’s investment property, certain
leasehold land and buildings, and guaranteed by corporate
guarantees executed by the Company. The increase in bank
loans and other borrowings was mainly utilised as cash
consideration for the acquisition of Big Bonus Group and
as a shareholders’ loan to a jointly controlled entity. This
shareholders’ loan is provided as working capital for the
development of a commercial property in Shanghai.

In line with the Group’s prudent financial management, the
Directors considered that the Group has sufficient working
capital to meet its operational requirements.
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PLEDGE OF ASSETS

As of 30 June 2012, the Group's investment property, certain
leasehold land and buildings and land use rights with an
aggregate net carrying value of HK$475,126,000 (2011:
HK$469,032,000) were pledged to certain banks to secure
general banking facilities granted to the Group.

CAPITAL STRUCTURE

On 12 October 2011, 1,764,705,880 new shares of the
Company, at a price of HK$0.104 per share, have been
issued upon completion of acquisition of Big Bonus Group.
On the same date, the Company completed a share
subscription of 217,647,050 new shares which has been
issued at a subscription price of HK$0.17 per share, resulting
a net proceed of approximately HK$37,000,000. Thereafter,
the total number of the Company’s issued shares have
increased from 3,128,303,340 to 5,110,656,270 during the
year.

IMPAIRMENT LOSS OF AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE
FINANCIAL ASSETS ON THE SIGNIFICANT
INVESTMENTS

The Group completed the acquisition of 5,384,527 common
shares of Macarthur Minerals Limited (“MMS"”) on 30 March
2011 with a fair value consideration of HK$131,136,000.
MMS is an Australian company listed on the TSX Venture
Exchange in Canada. The Group holds the interest in MMS as
for long term investment and accounted for as a non-current
asset “available-for-sale financial assets”.

As a result of the recent adverse global investment market
conditions, the fair value of the interest in MMS declined
to approximately HK$18,068,000 as at 30 June 2012
(2011: HK$113,220,000), representing a fair value loss
of HK$95,152,000 for the year. This amount of fair value
loss, together with the prior year’s cumulative loss of
HK$17,916,000, were reclassified from other comprehensive
income to profit or loss as an impairment loss of available-
for-sale financial assets due to the significant and prolonged
decline in the share price of MMS. The remaining balance
of the impairment loss of HK$5,293,000 arising from
the change in the fair value of another Group’s equity
investments in Hong Kong, classified as available-for-sale
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financial assets. The impairment losses were considered to
be an exceptional item and did not have any effect on the
Group's cash flow.

MATERIAL ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES

On 20 November 2009, the Company entered into a Sale
and Purchase Agreement with Benefit Well Investments
Limited, a company indirectly wholly-owned by Dr. Chan
Sing Chuk, Charles (“Dr. Chan”) to acquire 100% of the
issued share capital of Big Bonus Group and the outstanding
shareholder’s loan. The principal business of Big Bonus
Group is in mining and exploration of mineral resources
in the PRC. The acquisition was completed on 12 October
2011 with a fair value of total consideration of approximately
HK$424,148,000.

MATERIAL CONTRACT

On 11 November 2011 and 27 April 2012, Master Gold
Development Limited (“Master Gold”), a wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Company, as the lender entered into
loan agreements with Wealth Plus Developments Limited
("Wealth Plus”), a jointly controlled entity of the Company
as the borrower, for providing loan of up to HK$40,000,000
and HK$80,000,000 to Wealth Plus respectively. The
proceeds from the shareholders’ loans made to Wealth Plus
will be used primarily as working capital for the development
of a commercial property in Shanghai. The details of the
loan agreements were set out in the announcements of
the Company dated 11 November 2011 and 27 April 2012
respectively.

ADVANCE FROM A CONTROLLING SHAREHOLDER

On 12 October 2011, the Company as borrower entered
into a loan agreement with Dr. Chan as lender in relation
to the provision of the loan of HK$110,000,000. The loan is
unsecured, interest-bearing at 1.5% per annum and has no
fixed terms of repayment. On 6 March 2012, the Company
has repaid HK$5,000,000 to Dr. Chan. As at 30 June 2012,
an amount of HK$105,000,000 remains outstanding owed
by the Company to Dr. Chan.
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CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

The Company has provided guarantees amounting to
HK$487,500,000 (2011: HK$481,000,000) with respect to
bank loans to its subsidiaries. Under the guarantees, the
Company would be liable to pay the banks if the banks
are unable to recover the loans. At the reporting date, no
provision for the Company’s obligation under the guarantee
contract has been made as the Directors considered that it
was unlikely that the repayment of the loans would be in
default.

CAPITAL COMMITMENTS

At 30 June 2012, the Group had outstanding capital
commitments of approximately HK$294,255,000
(2011:HK$247,329,000), which was mainly the capital
commitments for the properties under development,
classified under investment property undertaken by jointly
controlled entities attributable to the Group.

NUMBER OF EMPLOYEES, REMUNERATION
POLICIES AND SHARE OPTION SCHEMES

The Group employs a total of approximately 1,155
employees with the majority in the PRC. The Group
remuneration to its employees is largely based on common
industrial practice. The Company has adopted a share option
scheme on 13 July 2010, under which the Company may
grant options to eligible persons including Directors and
employees. No share option was granted pursuant to the
scheme since its adoption.

EXPOSURE TO FINANCIAL RISK AND RELATED
HEDGES

The Group utilises conservative strategies on its financial
risk management and the market risk had been kept to
minimum. With the exception of the UK subsidiaries, all
transactions and the borrowings of the Group are primarily
denominated in US Dollar, Hong Kong Dollar and Renminbi.
The risk of foreign exchange fluctuations is minimal. During
the year, the Group made use of the foreign exchange
forward contracts in order to minimise the exchange rate risk
as a result of fluctuation in British Pound. Management will
continue to monitor the foreign exchange risk exposure and
will take appropriate action when necessary. As of 30 June
2012, the Group has entered into certain foreign exchange
forward contracts.
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ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

The annual general meeting of the Company (the “AGM")
will be held on Thursday, 13 December 2012 and the Notice
of AGM will be published and despatched in the manner
as required by the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities
(the “Listing Rules”) on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) in due course.

CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS

For determining the entitlement to attend and vote at the
AGM, the Register of Members of the Company will be
closed from Tuesday, 11 December 2012 to Thursday, 13
December 2012, both days inclusive, during which period
no transfer of shares will be effected. In order to be eligible
to attend and vote at the AGM, all transfers accompanied
by the relevant share certificates must be lodged with the
Company’s Share Registrar in Hong Kong, Computershare
Hong Kong Investor Services Limited at Shops 1712-1716,
17th Floor, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Wan
Chai, Hong Kong for registration no later than 4:30 p.m. on
Monday, 10 December 2012.

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT

On behalf of the Board, | would like to express my sincere
gratitude to the Group’s management and staff members
for their dedication and hard work, our customers for
their confidence and support for our products, and our
shareholders for their trust and support.

On behalf of the Board

Chan Sing Chuk, Charles
Chairman
Hong Kong, 28 September 2012
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Biographical details of the Directors and senior management
of the Group are set out as follows:

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Dr. Chan Sing Chuk, Charles, BBs, Jp, is the Chairman and
Founder of the Group. Dr. Chan is an Executive Director of
the Company and holds directorship in various subsidiaries
of the Company. He is responsible for strategic planning,
corporate development and investment of the Group.
Dr. Chan has over 50 years of experience in the jewellery
industry. He is currently the President of the Hong Kong
Jewellery & Jade Manufacturers Association; Appointed
Member of the University Court of The HK University of
Science & Technology; Member of Product Promotion
Programme Committee of the HKTDC; as well as a member
of other trade associations. In community, charitable and
political involvements, Dr. Chan is the Permanent Honorary
Director of Friends of Hong Kong Association Ltd., and
Member of The Association of Chairmen of The Tung Wah
Group of Hospitals. Dr. Chan was appointed a committee
member of the City of Jiangmen Chinese People’s Political
Consultative Conference since 2003; and the Executive
Vice President of Jiangmen Overseas Chinese Enterprise
Federation since 2006.

Ms. Cheng Siu Yin, Shirley, has been with the Group
for over 40 years and is responsible for marketing and
corporate policy development of the Group. She has over 40
years' experience in jewellery design, product development,
production and marketing of the Group's export business.
Ms. Cheng is the wife of Dr. Chan Sing Chuk, Charles.

Ms. Chan Wai Kei, Vicki, joined the Group in 1995.
She is responsible for retail operation and the business
administration functions in the Group. Ms. Chan graduated
from University of California, Berkeley with a Bachelor of Arts
degree in Economics. Ms. Chan is a Graduate Gemologist
of the Gemological Institute of America. She is Charter
President of Zonta Club of Hong Kong I, actively involved in
the Zonta Community. She is the daughter of Dr. Chan Sing
Chuk, Charles.
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Mr. Chan Wai Lap, Victor, joined the Group in 2000. He
is responsible for all sales and marketing activities as well
as business development and investments of the Group.
Mr. Chan graduated from Babson College in Boston,
Massachusetts with a Bachelor of Science double major
in Entrepreneurial Studies and Finance. He worked in
both banking and manufacturing industry prior to joining
the Group. Mr. Chan is the Founder and President of
Entrepreneurs’ Organization China South, and the Vice
Chairman of The Hong Kong Jewellery & Jade Manufacturers
Association. He is also the Founding Chairman of the Youth
Chapter of the Hong Kong Young Industrialists Council. Mr.
Chan is the son of Dr. Chan Sing Chuk, Charles.

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

Mr. Fang Gang, was appointed as a Non-executive Director
on 15 July 2010. Mr. Fang obtained his Bachelor’s Degree
from the School of Engineering, Xi'an Jiaotong University in
1982 and a Master’s Degree from the School of Engineering,
Xi'an Jiaotong University in 1988. He has over 20 years
experience in the metallurgical industry. In 1988, Mr. Fang
joined China Minmetals Corporation (“Minmetals”). From
1995 to 1999, Mr. Fang was with Minmetals Australia Pty
Limited. Commencing July 1999, Mr. Fang is the General
Manager of China National Metal Products Co Ltd, a wholly
owned subsidiary of Minmetals.
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INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Yu Shiu Tin, Paul, BBS, MBE, JP was appointed as an
Independent Non-executive Director on 25 April 2005. Mr.
Yu is a businessman who has been actively engaged in the
construction business both in the public and private sectors
in Hong Kong for the last 30 years. He is a fellow member
of the Hong Kong Institute of Construction Managers. Other
than his working experience in managing a construction
company, he has also actively involved in the community
services of Hong Kong and has served several advisory
bodies of Hong Kong Government for over 30 years. He was
subsequently awarded as an unofficial Justice of the Peace by
the Hong Kong Government in the year 1989 and awarded
the Bronze Bauhinia Star by the Government of the Hong
Kong Special Administrative Region in the year 2007.

Mr. Chan Ping Kuen, Derek, was appointed as an
Independent Non-executive Director on 7 March 2008. Mr.
Chan has more than 30 years’ experience in logistics industry
and possess extensive experience in distribution. Mr. Chan
was a Founder and Director of various logistic companies.
Mr. Chan is a Director of a private company engaging in
logistics and forwarding.

Mr. Sze Irons, JP was appointed as an Independent Non-
executive Director on 2 October 2008. Mr. Sze graduated
with a Bachelor’s degree in Science from University of
Wisconsin, United States in 1985. Mr. Sze has extensive
experience in investment and corporate management and
is currently a Non-executive Director of China Weaving
Materials Holdings Limited (stock code: 3778), a Company
listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited (“Main Board”) and an Executive Director of a
private company, Hang Tung Resources Holding Limited, and
holds directorship in various private companies. Mr. Sze is an
executive member of the Beijing Committee of the Chinese
People’s Political Consultative Conference. He is also the
vice-chairman of Hunan Province Youth Federation and the
vice president of the Chinese Manufacturers’ Association of
Hong Kong. He is also a member of the Council and Court
of Lingnan University and elected as a member of Election
Committee of the Chief Executive of the Hong Kong Special
Administrative Region (2007 to 2012).
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He was also elected as the President of the Chinese
Manufacturers’ Association of Hong Kong effective 1 January
2012. Mr. Sze was appointed the Justice of Peace by the
Government of Hong Kong in 2011.

Mr. Cheung Chi Fai, Frank, was appointed as an
Independent Non-executive Director and a member of
the Audit Committee of the Board on 7 April 2010. Mr.
Cheung is currently the Chief Financial Officer and Company
Secretary of China Weaving Materials Holdings Limited
(stock code: 3778), a Company listed on the Main Board. He
has over 20 years of experience in accounting, finance and
administration and has held senior positions in multinational
companies. He obtained his MBA from University of
Technology, Sydney, Australia and is an associate member of
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and
a fellow member of the Association of Chartered Certified
Accountants.

From March 2009 to July 2011, he was a part-time tutor
at the Open University of Hong Kong. From March 2004
to November 2007, Mr. Cheung was an Executive Director
of Sun Innovation Holdings Limited, a company listed
on the Stock Exchange, and was also the Chief Financial
Officer from March 2007 to February 2008. He was an
Independent Director of L International Inc.,, a company
listed on NASDAQ from June 2007 to October 2007.
From January 2001 to December 2003, Mr. Cheung was a
Director of e-Lux (Hong Kong) Limited, a subsidiary of e-Lux
Corporation, in charge of value-added telecommunications
services in Hong Kong, Taiwan and China.
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SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. Choi Wing Cheong, Eric (FGA, DGA, FGAHK), joined
in 1987, is the Head of Group Operation. He has over 20
years of experience in application system implementation
and supply chain management in the jewellery industry.
He holds gemmologist qualification, and is a fellow of The
Gemmological Association of Great Britain, and professional
member of Gemmological Association of Hong Kong.
Currently, Mr. Choi oversees the daily operation, information
& technology, administration and human resources of the
Group. He is also in charge the implementation of I1SO
Quality Management System.

Mr. Lee Yuk Keung, John, joined in 1976, is the Head
of Operation of Continental Jewellery (Mfg.) Limited. Mr.
Lee has over 20 years of experience in managing jewellery
factories. He has extensive knowledge in all production
aspects as well as in logistic management. Currently, he
oversees the daily operations of the jewellery factories in
China.

Mr. Wong Gwon Hing, Edward, joined in 1998, is
currently the General Manager of Continental Jewellery
(Mfg,) Limited. Mr. Wong has over 30 years experience
in manufacturing, sales marketing and management in
jewellery industry. Mr. Wong is responsible for overall
development and management of Group’s jewellery
business.

Mr. Yam Tat Wing, Peter was appointed the General
Manager — Business Development and Mining in July 2011
and is responsible for overseeing all mining operations and
devising corporate strategy. Prior to joining the Group, Mr.
Yam served in the Hong Kong Police Force for over 37 years
and has extensive experience in public administration and
crisis management.
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The Company is committed to maintaining a high standard
of corporate governance practices. The Board considers
shareholders can maximise their benefits from good
corporate governance.

The Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules set out the Code on
Corporate Governance Practices (the “Former Code”) was
revised and renamed as the Corporate Governance Code
and Corporate Governance Report (the “New Code”) with
effect from 1 April 2012. During the period from 1 July
2011 to 31 March 2012, the Company has complied with
the Former Code; and during the period from 1 April 2012
to 30 June 2012, the Company has complied with the New
Code, except for the deviations from Code Provisions A.2.1
and A.4.1 which are explained in the following relevant
paragraphs.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRINCIPLES AND THE
COMPANY'S PRACTICES

A.1. The Board

An issuer should be headed by an effective board which
should assume responsibility for its leadership and control
and be collectively responsible for promoting its success by
directing and supervising its affairs. Directors should take
decisions objectively in the interests of the issuer.

The board should regularly review the contribution required
from a director to perform his responsibilities to the issuer,
and whether he is spending sufficient time preforming them.
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Regular Board meetings are held at approximately quarterly
intervals. In addition, special Board meetings will be held
when necessary. Attendance of individual Director at the

Board meetings,

other Board Committee meetings and

the annual general meeting of the Company held on 5
December 2011 (“2011 AGM") during financial year ended
30 June 2012 are as follows:

BELRE/BIRY
Meetings Attended / Held
—2—-f
ENZEE HMZEEE REZEE k
EEA-4-F L EE gF~  BEAE
2011
Meetings of ~ Meeting of ~ Meeting of Annual
Board Audit Remuneration  Nomination General
gz Director Meetings ~ Committee ~ Committee ~ Committee** Meeting
HITEE Executive Directors
REZE L ses- AT+ Dr. Chan Sing Chuk, Charles, 88s, Jp 44 - - - N
gt Ms. Cheng Siu Yin, Shirley 44 - n - N
RE#LL Ms. Chan Wai Kei, Vicki 44 - - - i
REVEE Mr. Chan Wai Lap, Victor 44 - - - N
FHITEE Non-executive Directors
BT Mr. Cao Kuangyu* 0 - - - 0/1
AllEE Mr. Fang Gang 0/4 - - - o1
BUHHTEE Independent Non-executive Directors
RBA T 885 mBE- Mr. Yu Shiu Tin, Paul, 88s, M8, Jp 44 W) N - o1
ATat
RRELE Mr. Chan Ping Kuen, Derek 44 W) n - N
BRELE AT8T M Szelons, p 3/4 12 o1 - o
RERLE Mr. Cheung Chi Fai, Frank 444 22 - - 1/1
* BRTAREDKEBHERDTIER * Mr. Cao Kuangyu has resigned as a Non-executive Director with

TEERE m-F &= A
=+BRER -

* HRARBEZEENRZZE—-F=A
ZHZ BRI REBEZE—C=
FRA=ZTHLEFER  ARFL
BRITEMRAEEESH -

effect from 30 December 2011.

**  As the Nomination Committee was established on 22 March
2012, the Company did not hold any meeting of Nomination
Committee during the year ended 30 June 2012.
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Directors are consulted to include matters in the agenda for
regular Board meetings.

Dates of regular Board meetings are scheduled at least
14 days in advance to provide sufficient notice to give all
Directors an opportunity to attend. For all other Board
meetings, reasonable notice will be given.

Minutes of the Board meetings and the Board Committee
meetings are duly kept and such minutes are open for
inspection at any reasonable time on reasonable notice by
any Director.

Minutes of the Board meetings and Board Committee
meetings have recorded in sufficient detail the matters
considered and decisions reached, including any concerns
raised by Directors or dissenting views expressed. Draft and
final versions of minutes are sent to all Directors for their
comment and records respectively.

Should Directors need independent professional advice, the
Board will appoint professional advisors to render the advice.
The costs associated with such professional services will be
borne by the Company.

According to the current Board practice, any material
transaction, which involves a conflict of interest for a
substantial shareholder or a Director, will be considered and
dealt with by the Board at a duly convened Board meeting.
Independent Non-executive Directors who have no material
interest in the transaction will be present at such Board
meeting.

The Company has arranged Directors and Officers Liability
Insurance for the Directors and Officers of the Company.
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A.2. Chairman and Chief Executive

There are two key aspects of the management of every
issuer — the management of the board and the day-to-day
management of business. There should be a clear division
of these responsibilities to ensure a balance of power and
authority, so that power is not concentrated in any one
individual.

Code Provision A.2.1. provides that the roles of Chairman
and Chief Executive should be separate and should not be
performed by the same individual.

Dr. Chan is the Chairman of the Company. Dr. Chan
oversees the direction of the Group and also provides
leadership for the Board. He ensures that the Board works
effectively and discharges its responsibilities, and that all
key and appropriate issues are discussed by the Board in a
timely manner. Dr. Chan is also responsible to ensure that
all Directors are properly briefed on issues arising at Board
meetings and that all Directors receive adequate information,
which must be complete and reliable, in a timely manner. Dr.
Chan is the husband of Ms. Cheng Siu Yin, Shirley.

Ms. Cheng Siu Yin, Shirley is the Managing Director of the
Company. She is responsible for day-to-day management
and the marketing activities of the Group. Ms. Cheng is the
wife of Dr. Chan.

Although the Company does not have a post of Chief
Executive, the Board considers that there is adequate
segregation of duties within the Board to ensure a balance of
power and authority.



Corporate Governance Report m it

Annual Report 2012 4§

EERE

A3. EESHH

ESERBRERTAZHMARE
EMBERIOMER - EF SRR
HAKABWESH IS ERTEE
MTE BEFETATEFTEEH
TES(BRBIUFATES) WA
BREZREFENE  UEEZEE LA
SRR ¢ BEHE RUE IR
B HE - FRTEZRA RS
BMAB UEERRAEATES -

RZE——FA=1+H E=Eg
BREROZNITES DA RRE
T Bt REBEHZ T KRR
BYEAE ERTEETRAME
A NEBYIFERITES  HAlA
RERALE BRAEISTAE - HBERIE
?ﬁi&%ﬁiiﬁf‘ﬁi Eﬁﬁﬁ?ﬁz%‘ézﬁ

UNSIF &S c /NS L= I ==
ETQ$%E&WQE’]¢E%U RIS 5D &
BITES - IFRITES KRB LI
TES -

RELRE/NDHRLLE 2K RE
MLt RRELEEDRIRREL
EEztzZEZRREF - REBHK
TRREIILE 2L -

E=SENEME(BRESTZAZ
R EERFRE+AAE-_TEH
ETFHAEETENEABZ TR
B Bx KRLER-

HAESHAZREEREABN
BB B S 0Bt A2 AT AR Ik S R R R A

www.continental.com.hk e

A.3. Board Composition

The board should have a balance of skills and experience
appropriate for the requirements of the issuer's business.
It should ensure that changes to its composition can be
managed without undue disruption. It should include a
balanced composition of executive and non-executive
directors (including independent non-executive directors) so
that there is a strong independent element on the board,
which can effectively exercise independent judgment. Non-
executive directors should be of sufficient calibre and number
for their views to carry weight.

As at 30 June 2012, the Board comprises four Executive
Directors, namely Dr. Chan, Ms. Cheng Siu Yin, Shirley, Ms.
Chan Wai Kei, Vicki and Mr. Chan Wai Lap, Victor; Mr. Fang
Gang as Non-executive Director; four Independent Non-
executive Directors, namely Mr. Yu Shiu Tin, Paul, Mr. Chan
Ping Kuen, Derek, Mr. Sze Irons and Mr. Cheung Chi Fai,
Frank. All Directors are expressly identified by categories of
Executive Directors, Non-executive Director and Independent
Non-executive Directors, in all corporate communications
that disclose the names of Directors of the Company.

Dr. Chan is the husband of Ms. Cheng Siu Yin, Shirley and
Ms. Chan Wai Kei, Vicki and Mr. Chan Wai Lap, Victor are
the daughter and son, respectively, of Dr. Chan and Ms.
Cheng. Ms. Chan Wai Kei, Vicki is the sister of Mr. Chan Wai
Lap, Victor.

Biographies which include relationships of Directors are
set out in pages 16 to 20 of the annual report, which
demonstrate a diversity of skills, expertise, experience and
qualifications among members of the Board.

A list containing the names of the Directors and their roles
and functions is published on the websites of the Stock
Exchange and the Company at www.continental.com.hk
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A.4. Appointment, Re-election and Removal

There should be a formal, considered and transparent
procedure for the appointment of new directors. There
should be plans in place for orderly succession for
appointments. All directors should be subject to re-election at
regular intervals. An issuer must explain the reasons for the
resignation or removal of any director.

Code Provision A.4.1 provides that Non-executive Directors
should be appointed for a specific term, subject to
re-election.

Non-executive Director and Independent Non-executive
Directors of the Company do not have a specific term of
appointment but are subject to retirement by rotation and
re-election at least once every three years in accordance with
Articles 115(A) and 115(D) of the Articles of Association
of the Company. The Board considers that the deviation
from Code Provision A.4.1 is not material as Non-executive
Directors are subject to retirement by rotation and re-
election in view of the small number of total Directors
of the Company, the Directors will consider to adopt the
Code Provision should the number of Directors increase
substantially.

The appointment of a new Director is made on the
recommendation by the Nomination Committee of the
Company or by shareholders in a general meeting. The
nomination procedures by shareholders are published on the
website of the Company at www.continental.com.hk. Any
Director who is appointed by the Board shall hold office only
until the first general meeting after their appointment, and
shall be subject to re-election by shareholders. All candidates
must be able to meet the standards as set forth in Rules
3.08 and 3.09 of the Listing Rules. A candidate who is to
be appointed as an Independent Non-executive Director
should also meet the independent criteria set out in Rules
3.13 of the Listing Rules. To further enhance accountability,
any further re-appointment of an Independent Non-
executive Director who has served the Company’s Board for
more than 9 years will be subject to a separate resolution
to be approved by shareholders. As at 30 June 2012,
no Independent Non-executive Director has served the
Company’s Board for more than 9 years.
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A.5 Nomination Committee

The Company established a Nomination Committee on 22
March 2012, with written terms of reference as set out in
the Code Provisions A.5.2 (a) to (d) and are published on
the websites of the Stock Exchange and the Company.
The Nomination Committee is responsible for formulating
nomination policy, and making recommendations to the
Board on nomination and appointment of Directors and
Board succession. The Committee will also review the size,
structure and composition of the Board. The Committee is
provided with sufficient resources enabling it to perform its
duties.

As the Nomination Committee was established on 22 March
2012, the Company did not hold any meeting of Nomination
Committee during the year ended 30 June 2012.

A majority of the members of the Nomination Committee
are Independent Non-executive Directors. The Committee is
chaired by Dr. Chan. The other members are Mr. Chan Ping
Kuen, Derek and Mr. Cheung Chi Fai, Frank.

A.6. Responsibilities of Directors

Every director must always know his responsibilities as a
director of an issuer and its conduct, business activities
and development. Given the essential unitary nature of the
board, non-executive directors have the same duties of care
and skill and fiduciary duties as executive directors.

Every newly appointed Director of the Company is ensured
to have a proper understanding of the operations and
business of the Group and that he/she is fully aware of his/
her responsibilities under statue and common law, the Listing
Rules, applicable legal and regulatory requirements and the
business governance policies of the Group. The Directors are
continually updated with legal and regulatory developments,
business and strategic development of the Group to
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enable the discharge of their responsibilities. The Company
had arranged an internal training session for its Directors
conducted by independent professional body on 19 July
2012, which mainly covered the areas of i) Director’s duties
& responsibilities i) Overview of Corporate Governance and
its application iii) Hong Kong laws and regulation relating
to securities and iv) Listing Rules on Company’s continuing
obligation.

At each Director’s first appointment and subsequent re-
appointment, the Director is required to disclose to the
Company the number and nature of offices held in
public companies or organizations and other significant
commitments as well as the time involved. The Directors are
also required to notify the Company whenever there are
changes to the offices and commitments already disclosed.

The Independent Non-executive Directors of the Company
are highly skilled professionals with expertise and experience
in the field of accounting, financial management and
business. All Independent Non-executive Directors take
an active role in Board meetings to bring in independent
judgment to bear on issues of strategy, policy, performance,
accountability, resources, key appointments and standards
of conducts. They scrutinize the Company’s performance
in achieving agreed corporate goals and objectives, and
monitor the reporting of performance. They also take the
lead where potential conflicts of interest arise and serve
the Audit, Remuneration and Nomination Committees.
The Company has received written confirmation from
all the Independent Non-executive Directors concerning
their independence. The Board considers all of them are
independent.

Every Director is aware that he/she should give sufficient time
and attention to the affairs of the Company.



Corporate Governance Report m it

Annual Report 2012 4§

EERE

RIE ST RIRCA6.7 - B IEH 1T
EELRFNTEENREERRE
Reg HRABRBRERNERBE QLD
THRE R MAFFRITERTNAW
2B IFRTESTHNEEE MBS
% REEHEARBIN T ——F
BRRBERE

A BB A _ET AR A8 10FT &
EETAESETESFRINE
Rl RABIMERBESENTSE
HE FMEESERAEENEE
—E-—FXNA=+HILEFEEE
TIRESFR| 2 BEAER] -

A7. ERRHREFEA

EFERERNEENERER &
FAREEARESRNEZER
BAERIEIE RN TELIRTE » WRERE
TTHERENMEIE-

REHBITNESEEEMNS &
EYEATERATHEEMER
ARAgHEELRBEERE
NHE2ERFERXEZRES  ITE
DEFERTEESERIEET
ZEegRBAH=RATEDL -

NREMETHREEEBABRE
ERBREEEREETLZE S
HIERER - EESREMIELA
BRE - BB cERNA
TEAF -EFTENBREEHA
BEBBEUBEANRDREEAS -

FMBEESHERSHESE X
GRS ER - EEW
BRE AR @RMIRERK
BEFLEEMDE-

Under the Code Provision A.6.7, Independent Non-executive
Directors and Non-executive Directors should also attend
general meetings and develop a balanced understanding
of the views of shareholders. However, two Non-executive
Directors and two Independent Non-executive Directors
were unable to attend the 2011 AGM due to other business
commitment.

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers as set out
in Appendix 10 of the Listing Rules. All Directors have
confirmed, following enquiry by the Company, that they
have complied with the required standard set out in Model
Code throughout the year ended 30 June 2012.

A.7. Supply of and Access to Information

Directors should be provided in a timely manner with
appropriate information in the form and quality to enable
them to make an informed decision and perform their duties
and responsibilities.

In respect of regular Board meetings, and so far as
practicable in all other cases, an agenda and accompanying
Board papers are sent in full to all Directors in a timely
manner and at least 3 days before the intended date of a
Board or Board Committee meeting.

Management is regularly reminded by the Company
Secretary that they have an obligation to supply the Board
and Board Committees with adequate information in a
timely manner to enable it to make informed decisions. The
information supplied must be complete and reliable. The
Board and each Director shall have separate and independent
access to the Company’s senior management.

All Directors are entitled to have access to Board papers,
minutes and related materials. Where queries are raised by
Directors, steps are taken to respond as promptly and fully as
possible.
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Emolument bands
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B.1. The Level and Make-up of Remuneration and Disclosure

An issuer should disclose its directors’ remuneration policy
and other remuneration related matters. The procedure
for setting policy on executive directors’ remuneration and
all directors’ remuneration packages should be formal and
transparent. Remuneration levels should be sufficient to
attract and retain directors to run the company successfully
without paying more than necessary. No director should be
involved in deciding his own remuneration.

The Company has established a Remuneration Committee
with specific written terms of reference as set out in
Code Provisions B.1.2 (a) to (h) of the New Code. The
Remuneration Committee, with delegated responsibility, is
responsible for annually reviewing the existing remuneration
policy including the remuneration packages of individual
Executive Directors and senior management whereas
the Board as a whole is responsible for determining
the remuneration of Non-executive Directors with
recommendations from the Remuneration Committee, if
any. Terms of reference of the Remuneration Committee are
published on the websites of the Stock Exchange and the
Company.

A majority of the members of the Remuneration Committee
are Independent Non-executive Directors. This Committee is
chaired by Mr. Yu Shiu Tin, Paul. The other members are Ms.
Cheng Siu Yin, Shirley, Mr. Chan Ping Kuen, Derek and Mr.
Sze Irons.

The Remuneration Committee met once during the year
ended 30 June 2012 to discuss remuneration related matters
and review the remuneration policy of the Group.

The emoluments of the senior management by band for the
year ended 30 June 2012 is set out below:

A
Number of persons
2012 2011
Nil to HK$ 1,000,000 2 2
HK$1,000,001 to HK$2,000,000 2 1
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Further particulars regarding Directors’ emoluments as
required to be disclosed pursuant to Appendix 16 to
the Listing Rules are set out in note 14 to the financial
statements.

The Remuneration Committee is provided with sufficient
resources, including access to independent professional
advice, to perform its duties if considered necessary.

C.1. Financial Reporting

The board should present a balanced, clear and
comprehensible assessment of the company’s performance,
position and prospects.

Management has provided sufficient explanation and
information to the Board as would enable the Board to
make an informed assessment of the financial and other
information put before the Board for approval.

The Directors acknowledge their responsibilities for
keeping proper accounting records and preparing financial
statements of each financial period, which shall give a
true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Group and
of the results and cash flow for that period. In preparing
the financial statements for the year ended 30 June 2012,
the Directors have made judgements and estimates that
are prudent and reasonable and prepared the financial
statements on a going concern basis.

A statement by the auditor about its responsibilities is
included in the Independent Auditor’s Report on pages 49 to
51 of the annual report for the year ended 30 June 2012.

For the basis on which the issuer generates or preserves
values over the longer term and the strategy for delivering
objectives, please refer to page 5 under Corporate Profile and
pages 7 to 15 under Chairman’s Statement.
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The Board’s responsibility to present a balanced, clear and
understandable assessment extend to annual and interim
reports, other price-sensitive announcements and other
financial disclosures required under the Listing Rules, and
reports to regulators as well as information required to be
disclosed pursuant to statutory requirements.

C.2. Internal Controls

The board should ensure that the issuer maintains sound
and effective internal controls to safeguard shareholders’
investment and the issuer’s assets.

The Board has through the Audit Committee reviewed
the effectiveness of the Group's internal control system.
The Board requires management to establish and maintain
sound and effective internal controls. Evaluation of the
Group's internal controls covering financial, operational and
compliance controls and risk management functions had
been done on an ad hoc basis. Review of internal controls on
different systems will be done on a systematic rotational basis
based on the risk assessments of the operations and controls.
The Board has confirmed that there was no significant
weakness and area of improvement have been identified and
appropriate measures taken.

C.3. Audit Committee

The board should establish formal and transparent
arrangements to consider how it will apply the financial
reporting and internal control principles and maintain an
appropriate relationship with the issuer’s auditor. The audit
committee established under the Listing Rules should have
clear terms of reference.

The Company has established an Audit Committee with
specific written terms of reference which states clearly
with its authority and duties. The terms of reference of
the Audit Committee have included the duties set out in
Code Provisions C.3.3 (a) to (n) of the New Code, with
appropriate modifications where necessary. The revised terms
of reference setting out the Audit Committee’s authority and
its duties and responsibilities are published on the websites of
the Stock Exchange and the Company.
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As set out in the terms of reference, the Audit Committee
is responsible for reviewing the financial reporting system
and internal control procedures, annual report, financial
statements and interim report. As required by Code Provision
C.3.7, the Audit Committee would review arrangements for
employees to raise concerns about possible improprieties
in financial reporting, internal control or other matters. The
Audit Committee would ensure that proper arrangements
are in place for fair and independent investigation of these
matters and for appropriate follow up action and acting as
the key representation body for overseeing the Company’s
relations with the external auditor.

The Audit Committee comprises four Independent Non-
executive Directors of the Company and is chaired by Mr.
Cheung Chi Fai, Frank. The Audit Committee meet with
external auditor at least twice a year.

As issues raised by the Audit Committee have been
addressed by management. The work and findings of the
Audit Committee have been reported to the Board. During
the year, no issues brought to the attention of management
and the Board were of sufficient importance to require
disclosure in the Annual Report.

The Board agrees with the Audit Committee’s proposal
for the re-appointment of BDO Limited as the Company’s
independent auditor for year ending 30 June 2013.

For the year ended 30 June 2012, save as the auditor's
remuneration as disclosed in note 8 to the financial
statements, the Group has paid HK$109,000 in relation to
the non-audit services (including taxation and other reporting
services).

Full minutes of Audit Committee meetings are kept by the
Company Secretary. Draft and final versions of minutes
of the Audit Committee meetings are sent to all Audit
Committee members for their comments and records, within
a reasonable time after the meeting.
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The Audit Committee does not have a former partner of the
Company’s existing auditor.

The Audit Committee is provided with sufficient resources,
including the advice of independent auditor, to perform its
duties.

D.1. Management Functions

An issuer should have a formal schedule of matters
specifically reserved for board approval. The board should
give clear directions to management on the matters that
must be approved by it before decisions are made on issuer’s
behalf.

The Board is responsible for formulating overall strategy,
monitoring and controlling the performance of the Group
whilst managing the Group’s business is the responsibility of
the management.

When the Board delegates aspects of its management and
administration functions to the management, it has given
clear directions as to the powers of the management, in
particular, where management shall report back and obtain
prior approval from the Board before making decisions or
entering into any commitments on behalf of the Company.

The Company has established schedules of Matters Reserved
to the Board for Decision. The Board shall review those
arrangements periodically to ensure that they remain
appropriate to the needs of the Group.

D.2. Board Committees

Board committees should be formed with specific written
terms of reference which deal clearly with their authority and
duties.
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The Board has established an Audit Committee (particulars
are disclosed under C.3), a Remuneration Committee
(particulars are disclosed under B.1) and a Nomination
Committee (particulars are disclosed under A.5). Where
Board Committees are established to deal with matters, the
Board shall give them sufficiently clear terms of reference
to enable them to perform their functions properly. The
terms of reference of Board Committees shall require such
Committees to report back to the Board on their decisions
or recommendations, unless there are legal or regulatory
restrictions on their ability to do so.

D.3 Corporate Governance Functions

No corporate governance committee has been established
and the Board is responsible for performing the corporate
governance functions such as developing and reviewing
the Company'’s policies, practices on corporate governance,
training and continuous professional development of
Directors and senior management, the Company’s policies
and practices on compliance with legal and regulatory
requirements etc. During the year ended 30 June 2012, the
Board has reviewed the Company'’s policies and practices on
corporate governance.

E.1. Effective Communication

The board should be responsible for maintaining an on-going
dialogue with shareholders and in particular, use annual
general meetings or other general meetings to communicate
with them and encourage their participation.

At the 2011 AGM, a separate resolution was proposed by
the Chairman in respect of each separate issue, including the
re-elections of Directors. The attendance records at Board
meetings, Board Committee meetings and 2011 AGM are
disclosed on page 22.



Corporate Governance Report m {S¥£E583R %

ARalREBEFALSHEERE
BRJEF—REEERE - REE
Bl - EEeTRENEESLESE
EIARINEEZ SRR R R R R
FREEZEREREM - BRARERBR
@KAiﬁk$EEE@%'$
NFIERVEERREBNTR
KRB o KR AEIRE R T hwww.
continental.com.hk » FIZH &2 F &
FHIZEERE BBHRE A5k
HMBEREER - XRFBIZRE
MR ER AR ERE
4 BI) & 5 B A2 BT AR U K AN R &) 4
Ul o IRIESFRIMERSCEN .3 - SRR R A
FREME ' ARAILHERZ R
»fj’}ijl Al 2 B 2018 2 H [ IR R 3%
WA o

E.2. URZEHZ A KR

BiE EHREIE13.394) 6B T - B
TEMBRTE  DHEREBERER
FITHEEMRBRRUBF IR
SRON - FTEHPR IR ARG EE 2R
EERBUREF TR -

BRBFAGETFEHABRBEAN
SRR A ARBE TR ZEFF -

RRBFRGHERE  KELERK
RIRFRBFRGR 2 EEBHER
BERGNEEMAER AT 2 Mk
N #8ufwww.continental.com.hk_E °

The Company’s AGM is one of the principal channels
of communication with its shareholders. It has been the
practice, the Chairman of the Board and the Chairmen of
the Board Committees, together with the external auditor,
shall attend the AGM to answer questions of shareholders.
Apart from the direct interaction with the shareholders at the
AGM, the Company has established different communication
channels with its shareholders. We maintain a corporate
website www.continental.com.hk to publish our final and
interim results announcements, financial reports, public
announcements and other relevant shareholder information.
The announcements and an up-to-date version of the
Memorandum and Articles of Association (“M&A") of
the Company are published on the websites of the Stock
Exchange and the Company. Pursuant to Code Provision
E.1.3, the Company arranges for the notice for AGM to be
sent to shareholders at least 20 clear business days before
the meeting.

E.2. Voting by Poll

All the resolutions put to the vote of a general meeting
will be taken by poll, except the Chairman decides to
allow a resolution which relates purely to a procedural or
administrative matter to be voted on by a show of hands,
pursuant to the requirement under Rule 13.39(4) of the
Listing Rules.

The Chairman of the AGM will explain the detailed
procedures for conducting a poll at the commencement of
the AGM.

After the conclusion of the AGM, the poll results will be
published on the websites of Hong Kong Exchanges and
Clearing Limited and at the website www.continental.com.hk
on the business day following the AGM.



Annual Report 2012 4§

Corporate Governance Report m ¥ BRI E

F. AaWE

NAMEEXEEETSLEEER
AR BREFEREZHEMAR
MR ARBRESSHRKLIE
FFeRRAMERREEBERN X
TREZRMESSREELREES
HER  YRFESHARIEIK
BXRER-

NEAMERAAANEE  HAR
FINBEEEBEBMAE - ARWE
MEFEER - ARWENE ENAHF
BAKOEESHE - RAWER
WEREFHAEZLEHERNESRTEA
B P ReEREREHRER
MBS 2 BEXBRE - A
EXHAESARWENE R R
% NEREFSRFIABER
B BRAIRRGISEREST

R R AER

BEBEEB(REHEDD - FHFEADR
ARAEBREA-+HZ— 2K
R ABREXRFEREELAAALZ
AR ERE T ARWE  BARAKE
FRAE  WIREZEEEE - X
TOREEREBEFTIAEN 52
—ZRE - T DR0BFEAR
RO MEBAREREMFROE
BT DR E2,0007T 2
KRR - Al BBRBERFREEALART
ZaAMHEETATIMWE  RES
RUAERARFBRERE LEE -
KERZEERRAZERFTEHE
RAaE 2 #8uk EF)E -

F. Company Secretary

The company secretary plays an important roles in supporting
the board by ensuring good information flow within the
board and that board policy and procedures are followed.
The company secretary is responsible for advising the
board through the chairman and/or the chief executive on
governance matters and should also facilitate induction and
professional development of directors.

The Company Secretary is an employee of the Company
and has day-to-day knowledge of the Company’'s affairs.
The Company Secretary reports to the Chairman and his/
her appointment and removal is subject to Board approval.
The Company Secretary is accountable to the Board for
matters relating to Director’s duties, such as by giving advice
on corporate governance development and facilitating the
professional development program of Directors. All Directors
have access to the advice and service of the Company
Secretary to ensure that Board procedures, and all applicable
law, rules and regulations, are followed.

Shareholders’ Rights

Pursuant to the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance,
shareholders holding not less than one-twentieth of the paid
up capital of the Company may call for an extraordinary
general meeting and put forward agenda items by sending a
written request to the Company Secretary at the Company’s
registered office. Shareholders representing not less than
one-fortieth of the total voting rights of all shareholder
or of not less than 50 in number holding shares in the
Company on which there has been paid up to an average
sum of not less than HK$2,000 per shareholder, may put
forward proposal for consideration at a general meeting of
the Company by sending a written request to the Company
Secretary at the Company's registered office. Procedures
on how shareholders can propose a person for election
as a Director are available at the Company’s website for
shareholders’ information.
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Shareholders may send their enquiries by addressing them
to the Company Secretary by post to the registered office.
Shareholders’ enquiries and concerns, where appropriate,
will be forwarded to and answered by the Board or relevant
Board Committees.

Investor Relations

There were no significant changes in the Company’'s M&A
during the year.

Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors

The Company has adopted a code of conduct regarding
Directors’ securities transactions on terms no less exacting
than the required standard set out in the Model Code for
Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the
“Model Code”) contained in Appendix 10 of the Listing
Rules.

The Company has made specific enquiry with all Directors
and all of them confirmed that, for the financial year
ended 30 June 2012, they have complied with the required
standard set out in the Model Code.
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The Directors are pleased to present their report together
with the audited financial statements of the Company and
the Group for the year ended 30 June 2012.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding.
The principal activities of its principal subsidiaries are set out
in note 19 to the financial statements.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The Group's profit for the year ended 30 June 2012 and the
state of affairs of the Company and of the Group at that
date are set out in the financial statements on pages 52 to
218.

The Directors do not recommend the payment of a final
dividend for the year ended 30 June 2012.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of the movements in the property, plant and
equipment of the Group are set out in note 15 to the
financial statements.

INVESTMENT PROPERTY

Details of the movements in the investment property of the
Group are set out in note 17 to the financial statements.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF LISTED
SECURITIES OF THE COMPANY

Neither the Company, nor any of its subsidiaries purchased,
sold or redeemed any of the Company’s listed securities
during the year.
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SHARE CAPITAL, WARRANTS AND CONVERTIBLE
NOTES

Details of movements in the Company’s share capital,
warrants and convertible notes during the year are set out in
notes 36, 37 and 34 to the financial statements.

RESERVES

Details of the movements in the reserves of the Company
and the Group during the year are set out in note 38 to the
financial statements and in the consolidated statement of
changes in equity, respectively.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES
At 30 June 2012, the Company’s reserves available for
distribution, as computed in accordance with Section 79B

of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, amounted to
HK$168,465,000 (2011: HK$216,293,000).

FIVE YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY
A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of
the Group for the last five financial years is set out on page

220.

CHARITABLE CONTRIBUTIONS

During the year, the Group made charitable contributions
totaling HK$124,000.



Directors’ Report s E5 2 &

For the year ended 30 June 2012
HE_Z-——FXA=1THILFE

Annual Report 2012 4§

ITEEPRILES

REBEFEAN AEBRRKEFL
RNEEHELTE255%  MEF R
ABEFAHIEHEEA25% - :eA K
AAEEED IMEAEERAARFE
ZIRBHBEEZ31%KT72% °

BARNREZMM EF HES
BZBMBALTHBEEAAERLN
RAIS% LA £ B BT 2 AR AT AR
R HERAEERRER RHE
B EA AN E s

%

AEERBEAREARARRGF 2
EEKEWT

HITEE -
REEZ
B/ N
REH

BR1E L

FBITEF -

LSS
(R=ZF——F+=-A=1HB&D)
77

BUARGTEE
SHF
B I

G

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

In the year under review, sales to the Group’s five largest
customers accounted for 55% of the total sales for the year
and sales to the largest customer included therein amounted
to 25%. The largest supplier and the five largest suppliers
accounted for 31% and 72%, respectively, of the Group’s
total purchases for the year.

As far as the Directors of the Company are aware, neither
the Directors, their respective associates nor any shareholders
(which, to the best knowledge of the Directors, own more
than 5% of the Company’s issued share capital) had any
beneficial interest in the Group's five largest customers and
suppliers.

DIRECTORS

The Directors of the Company during the year and up to the
date of this report were:

Executive Directors:
Chan Sing Chuk, Charles
Cheng Siu Yin, Shirley
Chan Wai Kei, Vicki
Chan Wai Lap, Victor

Non-executive Directors:
Cao Kuangyu

(resigned with effect from 30 December 2011)
Fang Gang

Independent Non-executive Directors:
Yu Shiu Tin, Paul

Chan Ping Kuen, Derek

Sze Irons

Cheung Chi Fai, Frank
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In accordance with Articles 115(A) and 115(D) of the Articles
of Association, Dr. Chan, Mr. Chan Wai Lap, Victor and Mr.
Cheung Chi Fai, Frank shall retire from office by rotation and
all of them are eligible for re-election at the AGM.

Each of the four Independent Non-executive Directors has
submitted written confirmation in respect of the factors
set out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules concerning his
independence. The Board considers each of the four
Independent Non-executive Directors to be independent.

DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT'S
BIOGRAPHIES

Biographical details of the Directors of the Company and the
senior management of the Group are set out on pages 16 to
20 of the annual report.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

Dr. Chan has a service contract with the Company for an
indefinite period, which may be terminated by either party by
giving six months’ written notice.

Save as disclosed above, no Director proposed for re-election
at the forthcoming AGM has a service contract with the
Company which is not determinable by the Company within
one year without payment of compensation, other than
statutory compensation.
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME

Details of the share option scheme of the Company are set
out in note 45 to the financial statements.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS

Save as disclosed in notes to the financial statements, no
Director had a material interest in any contract of significance
to the business of the Group to which the Company or any
of its subsidiaries was a party at any time during the year.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN COMPETING BUSINESS

Pursuant to Rule.8.10 of the Listing Rules of the Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited, the Interests of Directors
of the Company in businesses which might compete with
the Group during the year ended 30 June 2012 and as at 30
June 2012 were as follows:

Dr. Chan, Director of the Company, has held interest and
directorship in companies engaged in the same businesses
of gold mining activities in Sichuan Province of the PRC and
Indonesia. Although some of the businesses carried out by
these companies are similar to those of the Group, they are
of different scale and at different locations. Therefore, the
Board is of the view that the businesses of those companies
did not compete with the businesses of the Group.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and
administration of the whole or any substantial part of the
business of the Group were entered into or in existence
during the year.
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EEME  Name of Directors

PR EE = Chan Sing Chuk, Charles
g/ Cheng Siu Yin, Shirley
BR Chan Ping Kuen, Derek

PBRIE L Chan Wai Lap, Victor

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN
SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND DEBENTURES

As at 30 June 2012, the interests and short positions of the
Directors and their associates in the shares, underlying shares
and debentures of the Company or any of its associated
corporations within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities
and Futures Ordinance (the “SFO") as recorded in the
register maintained by the Company under Section 352 of
Part XV of the SFO or as otherwise notified to the Company
and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code for
Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Companies (the
“Model Code”) were as set out below:

NG| EART
SREEETZE AR 21T
Number of ordinary shares of BRAED

HK$0.01 each in the Company Percentage of

NG £ NEER K5z  the Company's
Personal Corporate Family issued share
interest interest interest capital
- 5,201,894,033 - 101.785%

(FF5E1) (Note 1)
- 5,201,894,033 - 101.785%

(FfF&E1) (Note 1)
200,000 - - 0.004%
2,700,000 - - 0.053%
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN
SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND DEBENTURES

(continued)

EREE

(2 #E)

DRER
BARER Debenture RikEDR
Personal (principal amount) Family
interest Corporate interest Interest

PREEE Chan Sing Chuk, Charles —  HK$383.17 million -

&/ Cheng Siu Yin, Shirley

PHEET 5% 5 1 2 AR () PR 18 £ B3 8 /)N 3
T+ E2EHEABZ— KA ATamar
Investments Group Limited ([ Tamar
Investments J) ¥ 55,063,395,220
Bt WREEERZT——
F+ A-+=H1B¥#Big BonusE &
U B 5 78 2477 FTamar Investments
2D 2 MRS ¢ M)A PRI L
2EMA 2 — KR FFamous Key
Holdings Limited ([ Famous Key )
F5H138,498,813 k1 - I K &
HFamous Keyr] R ik (R AR
AAHA—ZT—ZFA=-+HAH
2B (B TEERIETE) IR
TRk (BB R ER
R#EER) - RRBESRELRE
/NFEZZ + ATamar Investments Z &
=.

MizF2 5% S #E 25 A() Tamar Investments
LAMR #Big Bonuste EUREEE B R
—E——Ft+A+ZHBTZAR
% %8 £325,000,000/% jT 2 7] #2
R Z=EIFA 5 K(i) Famous KeylA
(18 #Macarthur Minerals Limited
WEEENR-_TE—F=A=+
H#17) 7~ % 858,170,000/ JT
ZFamous Keyr] ¥ i ZIE#5H -
Tamar Investmentsp B 18 + K
NEZ L E2EEA (WK FE1RTIR
gt) -+ fMFamous KeymfRIB L& &
WA (MR TR o

(FiF5¥2) (Note 2)

- HK$383.17 million -

(Fif¥2) (Note 2)

Note 1: Such interests are held as to (i) 5,063,395,220, shares by Tamar
Investments Group Limited ("Tamar Investments"), which is a
company wholly owned by Dr. Chan and Ms. Cheng Siu Yin,
Shirley and include interests in the conversion shares which have
been issued to Tamar Investments on 12 October 2011 under
the acquisition of Big Bonus Group; and (ii) 138,498,813 Shares
by Famous Key Holdings Limited ("Famous Key"), which is a
company wholly owned by Dr. Chan and represent interest in
the conversion shares as defined and disclosed in the circular of
the Company dated 25 June 2010 (the "Circular") under the
Famous Key Convertible Note (as defined and disclosed in the
Circular). Dr. Chan and Ms. Cheng Siu Yin, Shirley, both being
Directors, are the Directors of Tamar Investments.

Note 2: Such interest is held by (i) Tamar Investments in the convertible
note in HK$325,000,000 principal amount (issued on 12
October 2011 under the acquisition of Big Bonus Group);
and (i) Famous Key in the Famous Key Convertible Note in
HK$58,170,000 principal amount (issued on 30 March 2011
under the Macarthur Minerals Limited Acquisition). Tamar
Investments is wholly owned by Dr. Chan and Ms. Cheng Siu
Yin, Shirley as referred in Note 1 and Famous Key is wholly
owned by Dr. Chan as referred to in Note 1.
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN
SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND DEBENTURES

(continued)

Except as disclosed above, at the reporting date, none of
the Directors or their respective associates had any personal,
family, corporate or other interests or short positions in the
shares, underlying shares and debentures of the Company or
any of its associated corporations as recorded in the register
required to be kept by the Company under Section 352 of
Part XV of the SFO or as otherwise notified to the Company
and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code.

DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

At no time during the year were rights to acquire benefits
by means of the acquisition of shares in or debentures of
the Company or any other body corporate granted to any
Director or their respective spouse or children under 18
years of age, or were any such rights exercised by them;
or was the Company or any of its subsidiaries a party to
any arrangement to enable the Directors or their respective
spouse or children under 18 years of age to acquire such
rights in any other corporate.

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS

At 30 June 2012, no person, other than Dr. Chan and Ms.
Cheng Siu Yin, Shirley, whose interests are set out in the
section “Directors’ interests and short positions in shares,
underlying shares and debentures” above, had registered
an interest in 5% or more of the issued share capital of the
Company that was required to be recorded pursuant to
Section 336 of the SFO.
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DISCLOSURE OF ADVANCE TO AN ENTITY UNDER
RULE 13.20 OF THE LISTING RULES

As at 30 June 2012, the Group had made advances to
Wealth Plus Developments Limited (“Wealth Plus”), a jointly
controlled entity of the Company, in the aggregate amount
of HK$391,800,000. The advances had been granted
as working capital for the development of a commercial
property on two parcels of land in Shanghai, currently
held by a wholly-owned subsidiary of Wealth Plus. The
outstanding advances is interest-free, unsecured and not
repayable within twelve months from the reporting date.

Further details are set out in note 21 to the financial
statements.

CONNECTED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Details of the connected party transactions, which also
constituted as related party transactions are set out in notes
to the financial statements.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the
Company and within the knowledge of the Directors, at least
25% of the Company’s total issued share capital was held by
the public as at the date of this report.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Company has an Audit Committee which was
established in accordance with the requirements of the
Listing Rules for the purposes of reviewing and providing
supervision over the financial reporting process and internal
controls of the Group. The Audit Committee has discussed
the Group’s accounting policies and basis adopted, the
financial and internal control process of the Group and has
reviewed the interim and annual financial statements. As of
the date of this report, the Audit Committee comprises the
four Independent Non-executive Directors of the Company.
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AUDITOR

Due to the merger of the business of Grant Thornton (now
known as JBPB & Co.) and BDO Limited (“BDO") to practise
in the name of BDO, Grant Thornton resigned as auditor
of the Company with effective from 1 December 2010
and BDO was appointed as auditor of the Company on
1 December 2010. The financial statements for the years
ended 30 June 2012 and 2011 were audited by BDO. A
resolution will be proposed at the forthcoming AGM of the
Company to re-appoint BDO as auditor of the Company.

For and on behalf of the Board

Chan Sing Chuk, Charles
Chairman

Hong Kong, 28 September 2012
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Tel : +852 2218 8288
Fax: +852 2815 2239

25t Floor Wing On Centre
111 Connaught Road Central

www.bdo.com.hk Hong Kong
EEE ¢ +852 2218 8288 HAETHEER1115E
{85 : +852 2815 2239 REHI251

www.bdo.com.hk

To the shareholders of Continental Holdings Limited
(incorporated in Hong Kong with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements
of Continental Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries (collectively referred as the “Group”) set out
on pages 52 to 218, which comprise the consolidated and
company statements of financial position as at 30 June
2012, and the consolidated statement of comprehensive
income, the consolidated statement of cash flows and the
consolidated statement of changes in equity for the year
then ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies
and other explanatory information.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that
give a true and fair view in accordance with Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control as the
directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of
consolidated financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.



Independent Auditor’s Report m Y83 7% 2{T¥R &

Z B Em R B

HAINEERRBERMNFEZ
FRAMBHRRELER - AR
FR(ARRAD F14URE R BRE
BRI E - BRI 2 SN RS Bl A
B - HPITERARENAR
FEREMA TR ERAEERE
(=

KPEREF BSOS HEMA
(BB EADETE - RFE
AIZRFFIETBISMRE - WARE
NATE  NEEBRESATH
HRED MM EEARHERE -

Bt RBTRFAEREBES
MRS SBLREEERNE
AHIERE o FTIETE M2 FF BUR O AZ B
B B ) 7 - BT B EREE Sk R
AMEBEAMBRRGFEEX
i R RO Y LR - FERF A X TR
5 - I BEDE BEZ A RR RS
MR IAMEL EE M QT A AR
AN AREES - URFHEENE
=SS AR ERER:NizE 3 2 NI 2
HEOARERRER - B AERE
AEESARASTRRNGENE
RAEREFH AR A RN - U RFT
BiR A MR BEIIRA R -

HFIEE - RPIMESHNERTRE
RRMEE AR MNETFERLE

THRER -

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these
consolidated financial statements based on our audit. This
report is made solely to you, as a body, in accordance with
Section 141 of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and
for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility
towards or accept liability to any other person for the
contents of this report.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants. Those standards require that
we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform
the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the consolidated financial statements are free from material
misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain
audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in
the consolidated financial statements. The procedures
selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud
or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor
considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation
of consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair
view in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate
in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing
an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal
control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness
of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates made by the directors, as well as
evaluating the overall presentation of the consolidated
financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit
opinion.
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BMRE  ZFERAPHERERER In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give
BA(EBMBHRELEADEEMAF a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Company
HWREEAFTRESENR_T—= and of the Group as at 30 June 2012 and of the Group's
FRA=THENHBRALEEE profit and cash flows for the year then ended in accordance
HEZALEFENRMNERESR with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards and have
2 WERREB(RAHEINDE & been properly prepared in accordance with the Hong Kong
A Companies Ordinance.

BB RS MEHAERAT BDO Limited

HEZEED Certified Public Accountants

THE Li Wing Yin

B ERFP05035 Practising Certificate Number P05035
BE ZE——FNA=+/N\H Hong Kong, 28 September 2012
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2012 2011
Hrst FET FET
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
(Z31)
(Restated)
g & Revenue 6 955,712 973,501
HERAR Cost of sales (821,120) (848,622)
EH Gross profit 134,592 124,879
SHE RS AR Selling and distribution costs (18,521) (22,061)
THER Administrative expenses (100,937) (82,573)
B (BA) A Other operating (expenses)/income (1,829) 7,976
BREMERNTFE2HE Change in fair value of
investment property 17 1,656 12,791
AEHEsSRMEERMERE  Impairment loss of available-for-sale
financial assets 22(b) (118,361) (7,864)
RUYEEHTE A R 2 A 8 R Excess of interest in the net fair value
FEENFATE ER of the net identifiable assets over
B 18 I A K AR Y the fair value of the total cost of
NEERLD acquisition of subsidiaries 42.1(a) 364,797 =
PARR 1) 4 i 2 R Share-based compensation 37 (35,339) -
BERA Finance costs 7 (9,434) (2,346)
JE(RES S N RIEE Share of results of associates (252) (774)
eI L REGI B XA Share of results of jointly controlled
entities (1,352) 5,359
BRFTS B A& A Profit before income tax 8 215,020 35,387
TS #iA> Income tax expense 9 (2,494) (5,646)

REEHF Profit for the year 212,526 29,741
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2012 2011
Hiat FET &7
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
(Z51)
(Restated)
Ht 2wl Other comprehensive income
HEZEMEEL Change in fair value of available-for-
NEEES  FE sale financial assets, net (101,511) (23,094)
MR & B & B R (R Reclassification from equity to
HERENDEEERE profit or loss on impairment of
available-for-sale financial assets 118,361 7,864
MEBINERS - B AR Exchange difference on translation
RERZH BB ELER of foreign operations, associates
and jointly controlled entities 11,734 16,514
HENB AR ERESE Exchange reserve released upon
deregistration of subsidiaries - (447)
FHNEMEENRE - BEEH Other comprehensive income for
BEARTHIRTIE the year, including reclassification
adjustments and net of tax 28,584 837
FRAXHKRELE Total comprehensive income for
the year 241,110 30,578
Bk EriEA Profit for the year attributable to:
ZAY/NCIE DN Owners of the Company 10 214,894 33,453
FEE SR = Non-controlling interests (2,368) 3,712)
FWiRA Profit for the year 212,526 29,741
EE2EkREaLE : Total comprehensive income
attributable to:
ARAEEA Owners of the Company 243,478 34,290
FEFE M = Non-controlling interests (2,368) 3,712)
241,110 30,578
FERADNTEEARIEREFZ  Earnings per share for profit
BREA attributable to the owners of
the Company during the year 12
— &K - Basic HK4.72 centi®{li  HK1.07 cent/&
—&5E — Diluted HK3.75 cent/&{li HK1.06 centi& L




Consolidated Statement of Financial Position m #35&

As at 30 June 2012
R-FE——&ExA=+H8

BESIRRR

2012 2011
HteE FiET FET
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
EEREE ASSETS AND LIABILITIES
FREBEE Non-current assets
M - BB REE Property, plant and equipment 15 115,437 52,298
T fE R Land use rights 16 41,824 3,813
HEME Investment property 17 453,500 446,500
B Mining right 18 1,020,524 —
E’\Eﬁﬁ ENA 2R Interests in associates 20 - 2,333
HEZEH BB Ex Interests in jointly controlled entities 21 484,655 417,326
—H#\ HEZEMEE Available-for-sale financial assets 22 37,136 137,718
EETHIBEE Deferred tax assets 35 6,093 9,326
2,159,169 1,069,314
REEE Current assets
EAS Inventories 24 257,352 267,829
B 5 IEWRIE Trade receivables 25 109,010 116,484
AR - RE Rk Prepayments, deposits and other
EMJEHSZ/TA receivables 11,614 9,720
ANFEFFAERZ Financial assets at fair value through
é%%ﬂﬁié% profit or loss 26 11,696 15,235
PTESRMITA Derivative financial instruments 27 = 126
JE Ui B = 1 B FRIE Due from associates 20 = 18
FE U — A £k H?W%‘in 2208 Due from a jointly controlled entity 21 139 141
HeRIREFRE Cash and cash equivalents 28 85,236 49,867
475,047 459,420
Vi IN=NE Current liabilities
B S FIE Trade payables 29 (133,166) (143,522)
Hib A RIB R ETE A Other payables and accruals (72,802) (41,859)
MTESRTA Derivative financial instruments 27 (84) =
FE{STBSE 2 A B 3R IR Due to associates 20 (111) =
FERT—RE# HTM&%%I\ Due to a jointly controlled entity 21 - (14)
RITE K Bank loans 30 (324,172) (235,139)
Bl &S Convertible note 34 (54,889) =
T IE A Provision for tax (10,411) (16,367)
(595,635) (436,901)
e (AE) BEFE Net current (liabilities)/assets (120,588) 22,519
BEERABER Total assets less current liabilities 2,038,581 1,091,833
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2012 2011
Hiat FET FAET
Notes HK$'000 HK$’000
FEREBEE Non-current liabilities
FESTREEE R R FIR Due to a related company 31 (27,961) =
JET B 852 B A B F0E Due to ultimate holding company 32 (7,877) (7,877)
TR AR R R LA E R Loan from a controlling shareholder 33 (105,000) =
AR R SRR Convertible note 34 (13,694) (50,802)
B IEB G Deferred tax liabilities 35 (238,431) (16)
(392,963) (58,695)
EEFE Net assets 1,645,618 1,033,138
s EQUITY
KABHEE AELER Equity attributable to the owners
of the Company
B BT Issued capital 36 51,107 31,283
S Reserves 38 1,601,076 1,005,520
1,652,183 1,036,803
I 15 R 2 Non-controlling interests (6,565) (3,665)
R Total equity 1,645,618 1,033,138

PREEE
EFE

B/
EF

Chan Sing Chuk, Charles
Director

Cheng Siu Yin, Shirley
Director
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2012 2011
Kz FE T FET
Notes HK$000 HK$'000
EERERE ASSETS AND LIABILITIES
ERBEE Non-current assets
LSNP Interests in subsidiaries 19 1,087,004 644,371
REE R a2 Interests in associates 20 = =
1,087,004 644,371
REBEE Current assets
FENHIE  Z2 Rk Prepayments, deposits and
H A & WL SRIE other receivables 319 319
A AFEGFAEBRZ Financial assets at fair value
TRIEE through profit or loss 26 148 1,361
JE U BT /38 2 R R IE Due from subsidiaries 19 99,178 173,772
JiE U — [ B & A B FRIE Due from an associate 20 = 8
ReERBEEHE Cash and cash equivalents 28 117 76
99,762 175,536
REBEE Current liabilities
H b RIB R ERTE A Other payables and accruals (1,417) (492)
AN NGB Due to subsidiaries 19 (7,426) =
Gl S Convertible note 34 (54,889) =
IR R R Provision for tax (1,370) (1,370)
(65,102) (1,862)
RBEEFE Net current assets 34,660 173,674
BEERAEBE S Total assets less current liabilities 1,121,664 818,045
ERBEE ‘ Non-current liabilities
IR R R R B R Loan from a controlling shareholder 33 (105,000) =
AR R B Convertible note 34 (13,694) (50,802)
(118,694) (50,802)
EEFE Net assets 1,002,970 767,243
= EQUITY
BEITIRA Issued capital 36 51,107 31,283
1 Reserves 38 951,863 735,960
A Total equity 1,002,970 767,243
FREE= Chan Sing Chuk, Charles
EF Director
RN Cheng Siu Yin, Shirley
EZE Director
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2012 2011
FET FHEIT
HK$'000 HK$'000
REXRRERE Cash flows from operating activities
BRETS AN F Profit before income tax 215,020 35,387
ERTIEAHE: Adjustments for:
BERKA Finance costs 9,434 2,346
L& AR %E Share of results of associates 252 774
EEEREHERER Share of results of jointly controlled entities 1,352 (5,359)
PARR (7 A 5T 2 S Share-based compensation 35,339 =
0¥ BERRENE Depreciation of property, plant and equipment 7,632 6,845
3 f5F PR A B Amortisation of land use rights 1,430 107
PRIE R Amortisation of mining right 316 -
FERE Provision for inventories 1,612 1,599
B S RNZIERE Provision for trade receivables 756 768
REE D Al A E Impairment loss on interests in associates 2,136 =
tHESREENBEER Impairment loss of available-for-sale
financial assets 118,361 7,864
RKEHRB AR Z A RAFEE Excess of interest in the net fair value of
FFATE EZBRBUE the net identifiable assets over the fair
BRANATENSS value of the total cost of acquisition
of subsidiaries (364,797) -
LEME - BE ki BE Loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment 275 124
YRRt ESREEN Loss on derivative contracts for acquisition of
FTETARHER available-for-sale financial assets = 1,049
Lil=NGE G e Gain on deregistration of subsidiaries (714) (4,609)
REMENTE & Change in fair value of investment property (1,656) (12,791)
RN AR EED Reversal of provision for long-term receivables (500) =
Eud i Eay- g qm Write back of loans from non-controlling interests = (1,125)
FENBER RSB S ER Imputed interest income arising from initial
FIEEMERF S M recognition of amount due to
a related company (5,455) -
ARZERERERE . Fair value loss on redemption options of
AFEEE convertible notes 2,857 259
MTESBTAATERSE/ (W)  Fairvalue loss/(gain) on derivative
financial instruments 286 (624)
BB REEF 2B E T Operating profit before working capital changes 23,936 32614
FERD Decrease in inventories 8,865 9,044
B SRWERD Decrease in trade receivables 6,718 4,478
BIHIE R REM Decrease in prepayments, deposits and
[ M RIE R D other receivables 245 5,716
DATEHAERZZ SR Decrease/(Increase) in financial assets
BERD/ (M) at fair value through profit or loss 2,328 (2,357)
BB N B 2 BRI D/ () Decease/(Increase) in balances with associates 129 (151)
A R B 88 2 5 RIE AT Increase in balances with jointly controlled entities (12) 22)
ZHREMENFBREERMD Decrease in trade and other payables and accruals (10,369) (15,002)
fTESBMT AEN Increase in derivative financial instruments (76) =
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2012 2011
B et FET FAET
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
BEEE RS Cash generated from operations 31,764 34,320
ERHME Interest paid (9,076) (6,480)
BERARE Dividend paid - (6,256)
BRFREMCEMEH PRC enterprise income tax paid (559) -
(BA) /EREEBHEH Hong Kong profits tax (paid)/refunded (4,984) 432
BEXBELE RS FH Net cash generated from operating activities 17,145 22,016
RETHHRER=E Cash flows from investing activities
REWE  BE KA Additions to property, plant and equipment (10,449) (5,158)
ANENEAREMEZERFME  Additions to property under development
classified as investment property (1,009) (18,601)
B AR (MREERE R Acquisition of subsidiaries (net of cash and
BeEH) cash equivalents acquired) 0.1 (74,387) 1414
HENZE - BFE RSB HE Proceeds from disposal of property, plant
and equipment 105 -
BEAHNECRHEE Purchase of available-for-sale financial assets (929) (82,553)
B R AR IR Receipt from long-term receivables 500 =
BINERT LR TR Increase in loan to a jointly controlled entity (61,500) (74,500)
RE GBI HE % FE Net cash used in investing activities (147,669) (179,398)
REZBHRENE Cash flows from financing activities
T Advance from a controlling shareholder 110,000 =
BRERRR Repayment to a controlling shareholder (5,000) =
RERDPTEFIE Proceeds from subscription of shares 37,000 =
MBRITEAR New bank loans 118,000 57,127
BREITER Repayment of bank loans (29,178) (982)
BEENEEARNE Repayment of amount due to a related company (2,267) -
REKKERBRARKER Repayment of an advance from a related
BEARREHOBR company upon completion of acquisition
of subsidiaries (64,149) -
BEFHELTR S FE Net cash generated from financing activities 164,406 56,145
BERBEZH2EN/ (D) Net increase/(decrease) in cash and
R cash equivalents 33,882 (101,237)
FNzReRAEEEH Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year 49,867 153,940
PNEEZRSH 2 FE FH Effect of foreign exchange rate changes, net 1,487 (2,836)
FRvBERBEER Cash and cash equivalents at end of year 85,236 49,867
ReRBEEH/2ELIN Analysis of balances of cash and cash equivalents
Re RIRTHEER Cash and bank balances 85,236 49,867
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HilEs  EagE
Non-
KARERNEER controling Totl
Equity atirbutabl to the owners of the Company interests  equity
B R aRER UK TEREE EiEE R&
Rx  EER G B EbER EaER B EhEE RBEY HERS it
Share Non- Convertble ~ Bxchange ~ Investment
Ived — premium Warrant~ distrbutable Other noteequty fuctuaion revaluation  Retained  Proposed
Gptd acomt reseve resene feSeVefeene feseVeresene profts~ diidends Totd
fér TEr TEr TR TEr TR fEr TEr TEn T TEr TEn TET
HKS000  HKSO00  HKSOD  HKSO00  HKSO00  HKSOOD  HKS00  HKSOO0  HKSOO0  HKSO00  HKSO0  HKSOOD  HKS000
Biaceat 11y 2010 B W8 BN8 MBO6 BT - 601 @) 48%6 38 1W6SY 107 100K
Payment of 2010 fingl icend - - - - - - - - - 318 61 - 319
i ] Intein 2011 iidend - - - - - - - - B - By - By
WE-TMBAE (WEa0)  Acguistion of asbsidary (rote 42.1(0) - - - - - - - - - - - (159) (159)
HEATREER (a2 Deregistation of subsidarie (nofe 42.) - - - - - - - - - - - (851) (81)
Enlie el fsueof comertle note (ote 34) - - - - - - - - -3 -
SREAZTR Transtonvith e - - - - BE - 7 N v B (11 N
KRR Proft or the year - - - - - - - - BE - B® B BwM
A2 Other comprehensive ncone:
fEBIEE BEDAR Bichange difetences o tansation of the

AREHERERES financil taementsoffoeign operatons,

HEE/BHAR associates and oty contoled enties - - - - - - 1651 - - - 1651 - 1654
WEARARR (hi) Deregistation of subsidiares (note 42) - - - - - - () - - - ) - ()
tEsREz Change in fair vlue of avalable-orsdle

INTEVD financil assts - - - - - - - B = - B - B
RHHESBERRER Redassficationfiom equiyfo prfiorloss

EEREIEEER on impaiment of valableforsale

financial assets - - - - - - - 7864 - - 7864 - 7,864
SENELE Total comprehensive income - - - - - - T6067 (530 34 - W B N8
HENBAA BRfER Appropiation from other resene fo

ARHRE A retained proffts upon deregistation of subsidris - - - - - - - 3w - - - -

RoE--ERAzTRZAH Balance at 30 June 2011 3128 190743 53008+ 273606* (5397 2310F B (16120 415299 - 1036803 (3665 1,033,138
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FEHEE  EEUE
Non-
RATEEABLRS contoling ~ Total
Equity attributable to the owners of the Company interests ~ equity

BEfT kt FmEE  FAHK TEREE EXED R&
Bx  EEE  #B BF HftRE EsBR B EREE RERY  RERS it
Share Non- Convertible ~ Exchange  Investment
Issued ~ premium  Warrant distributable ~ Other noteequity fluctuation revaluation  Retained  Proposed
pitl  account  reseve  reseve  reserve  reseve  reseve  reseve  profits  dividends Total
Fér  TEr FE fEn fEr B fEn TET FE fEn TR FE TER
HKS000  HKSO00  HKSO00  HKSO000  HKSOO0  HKSO00  HKSO00  HKSO00  HKSO00  HKSO00  HKSOO0  HKSO00  HKS'000
NE—5+A-BH Balance at 1 July 2011 31283 190743 53008 273606 (5397) 300 3208 (1612 475299 - 1036803 (3,665) 1,033,138
B OGRS Shares subscrption (note 36(0) DAY/ 1] - - - - = - = - 3000 - 300
WEHERE (H0.16) Acauisiion ofsubsidiies (ote 42.13) 647 16588 - - - - - - - - 1B - 1B
ETARZE(NE) fsueof convertbl note (ofe 34) - - - - - 116034 - - - - 116034 - 1603
IR AR AW 83 Recognion of sare-based compensaton
(&37) (note 37) - - B - - - - - - - B - B3y
HBATREHR (a2 Deregisiraton ofsubsidaries (note 42.2) - - - - - - - = = = = (532 ()
HEEAL Transaction with onners 1984 200705 3533 - - 160 - - - - oMM () 3mam
BERET Proft for the year - - - - - 5 - Y - A% (2368)  2125%
Eh2ENE: Other comprehensive ncome:
TERNEE  BEDARERES  Eichange diferences on ingation of the
ERUBAEAESZESEE finandal statements of foregn aperatios,
associates and jonty controled entites - - - - - - 1B - - - 1B - 1B
HESHARATE Change n far vlue of avaleble-forsdle
i 4 finandal assets - - - - - - - (101511) - - (10151 - (10151)
W ESHERRER Reclassficaton from equityto proft o lss
HERENAREER on impairment of valableforsale
finandal asets - - - - - - - 11831 - - 1183 - 118361
SEhELE Total comprehensive income - - - - - - NBE 1680 218 - WA 3% M0
R LR EE Amount transered t rtaned profs a5
b artesultof expiraion of unlisted warrants - - (83) - - - - - B - - - -
RoE-ZERAZTRZEH Balance at 30 June 2012 51107 391,448 - 113606 (5307 1183mF 38N T3+ 718 540¢ - 165218 (6,565) 1,645,618
* *

ZERERBERAR

A5 R

Z 4R A H#E1,601,076,000/8 7T (=
Z——% : 1,005,520,000/ 7T) °

These reserve accounts comprise the consolidated reserves
of HK$1,601,076,000 (2011: HK$1,005,520,000) in the
consolidated statement of financial position.
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GENERAL INFORMATION

Continental Holdings Limited (the “Company”) is a limited
liability company incorporated and domiciled in Hong Kong.
The address of its registered office is Flats M & N, 1st Floor,
Kaiser Estate, Phase Ill, 11 Hok Yuen Street, Hunghom,
Kowloon, Hong Kong. The Company’s shares are listed on
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited.

The Company and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to
as the “Group”) are principally engaged in the following
activities:

Design, manufacturing, marketing and trading of
fine jewellery and diamonds

- Property investment
- Mining operation
- Investment

In the opinion of the directors, the Company’s ultimate
holding company is Tamar Investments Group Limited
("Tamar Investments”), a company incorporated in the
British Virgin Islands.

The financial statements on pages 52 to 218 have been
prepared in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (“’"HKFRSs”) which collective terms include all
applicable Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards, Hong
Kong Accounting Standards (“HKASs”) and Interpretations
(“Int”) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants (“HKICPA”) and the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance. The financial statements also include the
applicable disclosure requirements of the Rules Governing
the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited (the “Listing Rules”).

The financial statements for the year ended 30 June 2012
were approved for issue by the board of directors on 28
September 2012.
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2. ADOPTION OF HKFRSs

2.1

Adoption of new/revised HKFRSs - effective 1
July 2011

In the current year, the Group has applied for the
first time the following new standards, amendments
and interpretations issued by the HKICPA, which are
relevant to and effective for the Group’s financial
statements for the annual period beginning on 1 July
2011:

HKFRSs (Amendments) Improvements to HKFRSs
2010

HKFRS 3 (Revised) Business Combinations

HKFRS 7 (Amendments) Disclosures — Transfers of
Financial Assets

HKAS 24 (Revised) Related Party Disclosures

Except as explained below, the adoption of these
new/revised standards and interpretations has
no significant impact on the Group’s financial
statements.
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2.

ADOPTION OF HKFRSs (continued)

2.1

Adoption of new/revised HKFRSs - effective 1
July 2011 (continued)

HKFRS 3 (Revised) — Business Combinations

As part of the Improvements to HKFRSs issued in
2010, HKFRS 3 has been amended to clarify that
the option to measure non-controlling interests
(“NCI") at either fair value or the NClI's proportionate
share in the recognised amounts of the acquiree’s
identifiable net assets is limited to instruments that
are present ownership interests and entitle their
holders to a proportionate share of the acquiree’s
net assets in the event of liquidation. Other
components of NCI are measured at their acquisition
date fair value unless another measurement basis
is required by HKFRSs. The Group has amended
its accounting policies for measuring NCI but the
adoption of the amendment has had no impact
on the Group's financial statements as the Group
did not have any NCI arising from the business
acquisition as detailed in note 42.1(a) in current year.
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2.

ADOPTION OF HKFRSs (continued)

2.1

Adoption of new/revised HKFRSs - effective 1
July 2011 (continued)

HKFRS 7 (Amendments) — Financial Assets: Disclosures

As part of the Improvements to HKFRSs issued in
2010, HKFRS 7 has been amended to enhance the
interaction between quantitative and qualitative
disclosures. If the carrying amount of a financial
asset best represents the maximum exposure to
credit risk, the standard does not require a positive
statement to this effect in the financial statements.
This amended disclosure requirement has been
applied retrospectively. The carrying amount of the
Group's trade and other receivables, amount due
from associates and a jointly controlled entity and
cash and cash equivalents represent the Group's
maximum exposure to credit risk in respect of
these financial assets as at 30 June 2012 and 2011.
The prior year financial statements included a
positive statement to this effect which is removed
in the 2012 financial statements following the
amendments. The adoption of the amendments has
no impact on the Group's reported profit or loss,
total comprehensive income or equity for any period
presented.
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2.

ADOPTION OF HKFRSs (continued)

2.1

Adoption of new/revised HKFRSs - effective 1
July 2011 (continued)

Amendments to HKFRS 7 — Disclosures — Transfers of
Financial Assets

The amendments to HKFRS 7 improve the
derecognition disclosure requirements for transfer
transactions of financial assets and allow users
of financial statements to better understand the
possible effects of any risks that may remain with the
entity on transferred assets. The amendments also
require additional disclosures if a disproportionate
amount of transfer transactions are undertaken
around the end of a reporting period. The adoption
of the amendments has no impact on the Group's
financial statements as the Group did not have any
transfer of financial assets in current year.

HKAS 24 (Revised) — Related Party Disclosures

HKAS 24 (Revised) amends the definition of related
party and clarifies its meaning. This may result in
changes to those parties who are identified as
being related parties of the reporting entity. The
Group has reassessed the identification of its related
parties in accordance with the revised definition and
concluded that the revised definition does not have
any material impact on the Group’s related party
disclosures in the current and previous years.

HKAS 24 (Revised) also introduces simplified
disclosure requirements applicable to related party
transactions where the Group and the counterparty
are under the common control, joint control or
significant influence of a government, government
agency or similar body. These new disclosures are
not relevant to the Group because the Group is not
a government related entity.
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2. ADOPTION OF HKFRSs (continued)

2.2

New/revised HKFRSs that have been issued but
are not yet effective

The following new/revised HKFRSs, potentially
relevant to the Group’s financial statements, have
been issued, but are not yet effective and have not
been early adopted by the Group.

Amendments to HKFRS 7 Disclosures — Offsetting Financial
Assets and Financial Liabilities 2
Amendments to HKAS 1 Presentation of Items of Other
(Revised) Comprehensive Income
Amendments to HKAS 9 Presentation — Offsetting Financial

Assets and Financial Liabilities *

Amendments to HKAS 32 Presentation — Offsetting Financial
Assets and Financial Liabilities 3

HKAS 19 (Revised 2011) Employee Benefits ?

HKAS 27 (Revised 2011) Separate Financial Statements?

HKAS 28 (Revised 2011) [nvestments in Associates and
Joint Ventures 2

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments

HKFRS 10 Consolidated Financial
Statements 2

HKFRS 11 Joint Arrangements ?

HKFRS 12 Disclosure of Interests in
Other Entities 2

HKFRS 13 Fair Value Measurement ?

HK(IFRIC) — Interpretation 20 Stripping Costs in the Production
Phase of a Surface Mine 2

Annual improvements 2009 Amendments to a number of
-2011 Cycle HKFRSs contained in 2009 and
2011 Cycle issued in
June 2012
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2.

ADOPTION OF HKFRSs (continued)

2.2

New/revised HKFRSs that have been issued but

are not yet effective (continued)

L Effective for annual periods beginning on or
after 1 July 2012

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or
after 1 January 2013

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or
after 1 January 2014

& Effective for annual periods beginning on or
after 1 January 2015

Amendments to HKFRS 7 — Disclosures — Offsetting
Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities

The amendments to HKFRS 7 issue new disclosure
requirements in relation to the offsetting models
of financial assets and financial liabilities. The
amendments also improve the transparency in the
reporting of how companies mitigate credit risk,
including disclosure of related collateral pledged
or received. The Group expects to adopt the
amendments from 1 July 2013.

Amendments to HKAS 1 (Revised) — Presentation of
Items of Other Comprehensive Income

The amendments to HKAS 1 (Revised) require
the Group to separate items presented in other
comprehensive income into those that may be
reclassified to profit and loss in the future and those
that may not. Tax on items of other comprehensive
income is allocated and disclosed on the same basis.
The amendments will be applied retrospectively.
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2.

ADOPTION OF HKFRSs (continued)

2.2

New/revised HKFRSs that have been issued but

are not yet effective (continued)

HKFRS 9 — Financial Instruments

Under HKFRS 9, financial assets are classified
into financial assets measured at fair value or at
amortised cost depending on the entity’s business
model for managing the financial assets and
the contractual cash flow characteristics of the
financial assets. Fair value gains or losses will be
recognised in profit or loss except for those non-
trade equity investments, which the entity will have
a choice to recognise the gains and losses in other
comprehensive income. HKFRS 9 carries forward
the recognition, classification and measurement
requirements for financial liabilities from HKAS 39,
except for financial liabilities that are designated at
fair value through profit or loss, where the amount
of change in fair value attributable to change in
credit risk of that liability is recognised in other
comprehensive income unless that would create
or enlarge an accounting mismatch. In addition,
HKFRS 9 retains the requirements in HKAS 39
for derecognition of financial assets and financial
liabilities.
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2.

ADOPTION OF HKFRSs (continued)

2.2 New/revised HKFRSs that have been issued

but are not yet effective (continued)

HKFRS 10 — Consolidated Financial Statements

HKFRS 10 introduces a single control model for
consolidation of all investee entities. An investor
has control when it has power over the investee
(whether or not that power is used in practice),
exposure or rights to variable returns from the
investee and the ability to use the power over
the investee to affect those returns. HKFRS 10
contains extensive guidance on the assessment
of control. For example, the standard introduces
the concept of “de facto” control where an
investor can control an investee while holding
less than 50% of the investee’s voting rights
in circumstances where its voting interest is of
sufficiently dominant size relative to the size
and dispersion of those of other individual
shareholders to give it power over the investee.
Potential voting rights are considered in
the analysis of control only when these are
substantive, i.e. the holder has the practical
ability to exercise them. The standard explicitly
requires an assessment of whether an investor
with decision making rights is acting as principal
or agent and also whether other parties with
decision making rights are acting as agents of
the investor. An agent is engaged to act on
behalf of and for the benefit of another party
and therefore does not control the investee
when it exercises its decision making authority.
The implementation of HKFRS 10 may result in
changes in those entities which are regarded as
being controlled by the Group and are therefore
consolidated in the financial statements. The
accounting requirements in the existing HKAS
27 on other consolidation related matters are
carried forward unchanged. HKFRS 10 is applied
retrospectively subject to certain transitional

provisions.
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2.

ADOPTION OF HKFRSs (continued)

2.2

New/revised HKFRSs that have been issued but

are not yet effective (continued)

HKFRS 11 — Joint Arrangements

Joint arrangements under HKFRS 11 have the same
basic characteristics as joint ventures under HKAS
31. Joint arrangements are classified as either joint
operations or joint ventures. Where the Group has
rights to the assets and obligations for the liabilities
of the joint arrangement, it is regarded as a joint
operator and will recognise its interests in the assets,
liabilities, income and expenses arising from the joint
arrangement. Where the Group has rights to the
net assets of the joint arrangement as a whole, it is
regarded as having an interest in a joint venture and
will apply the equity method of accounting. HKFRS
11 does not allow proportionate consolidation.
In an arrangement structured through a separate
vehicle, all relevant facts and circumstances should
be considered to determine whether the parties to
the arrangement have rights to the net assets of the
arrangement. Previously, the existence of a separate
legal entity was the key factor in determining the
existence of a jointly controlled entity under HKAS
31. HKFRS 11 will be applied retrospectively with
specific restatement requirements for a joint venture
which changes from proportionate consolidation to
the equity method.
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2.

ADOPTION OF HKFRSs (continued)

2.2

New/revised HKFRSs that have been issued but

are not yet effective (continued)

HKFRS 12 — Disclosure of Interests in Other Entities

HKFRS 12 integrates and makes consistent
the disclosures requirements about interests in
subsidiaries, associates and joint arrangements.
It also introduces new disclosure requirements,
including those related to unconsolidated structured
entities. The general objective of the standard is to
enable users of financial statements to evaluate the
nature and risks of a reporting entity’s interests in
other entities and the effects of those interests on
the reporting entity’s financial statements.
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2.

ADOPTION OF HKFRSs (continued)

2.2

New/revised HKFRSs that have been issued but

are not yet effective (continued)

HKFRS 13 — Fair Value Measurement

HKFRS 13 provides a single source of guidance on
how to measure fair value when it is required or
permitted by other standards. The standard applies
to both financial and non-financial items measured
at fair value and introduces a fair value measurement
hierarchy. The definitions of the three levels in this
measurement hierarchy are generally consistent
with HKFRS 7 “Financial Instruments: Disclosures”.
HKFRS 13 defines fair value as the price that would
be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a
liability in an orderly transaction between market
participants at the measurement date (i.e. an exit
price). The standard removes the requirement to use
bid and ask prices for financial assets and liabilities
quoted in an active market. Rather the price within
the bid-ask spread that is most representative of
fair value in the circumstances should be used. It
also contains extensive disclosure requirements to
allow users of the financial statements to assess the
methods and inputs used in measuring fair values
and the effects of fair value measurements on the
financial statements. HKFRS 13 can be adopted early
and is applied prospectively.
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2.

ADOPTION OF HKFRSs (continued)

2.2

New/revised HKFRSs that have been issued but

are not yet effective (continued)

HK(IFRIC) Interpretation 20 — Stripping Costs in the
Production Phase of a Surface Mine

Stripping activities carried out in the production
phase of a surface mine may give rise to two
benefits: usable ore that can be used to produce
inventory and improved access to further quantities
of material that will be mined in future periods. The
Interpretation requires that costs of stripping activity
are accounted for in accordance with the principles
in HKAS 2 Inventories to the extent that the benefit
from stripping activity is realised in the form of
inventory produced. The costs of stripping activity
that provide a benefit in the form of improved access
to ore are recognised as a non-current stripping
activity asset when certain criteria are met. This asset
will be accounted for as an addition or enhancement
to an existing asset and is classified as tangible or
intangible according to the nature of the existing
asset of which it forms part. The stripping activity
asset is measured initially at cost and subsequently in
the same way as the existing asset of which it forms
part. It is depreciated or amortised on a systematic
basis over the expected useful life of the component
of the ore body that becomes more accessible as
a result of the stripping activity. The interpretation
is applied to production stripping costs incurred
after the beginning of the earliest period presented.
Predecessor stripping activity asset balance is
reclassified as a part of an existing asset subject to
the conditions in the Interpretation.
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2.

ADOPTION OF HKFRSs (continued)

2.2

New/revised HKFRSs that have been issued but

are not yet effective (continued)

Annual Improvements 2009-2011 Cycle

Annual Improvements 2009-2011 Cycle sets out
a collection of amendments to HKFRSs (including
HKFRS 1, HKAS 1, HKAS 16, HKAS 32 and HKAS
34) which is issued in response to the International
Accounting Standards Boards (IASB) annual
improvements project to make necessary, but non-
urgent, amendments to International Financial
Reporting Standards that will not be included as
part of another major project. The Group expects to
adopt the amendments from 1 July 2013.

The Group is in the process of making an assessment
of the potential impact of these new/revised HKFRSs
and the directors are not yet in a position to quantify
the effects on the Group’s financial statements.
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3.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES

3.1

Basis of preparation

The significant accounting policies that have been
used in the preparation of these financial statements
are summarised below. These policies have been
consistently applied to all the years presented unless
otherwise stated.

These financial statements have been prepared
on the historical cost basis except for investment
properties and certain financial assets and liabilities,
which are stated at fair values. The measurement
bases are fully described in the accounting policies
below.

It should be noted that accounting estimates
and assumptions are used in preparation of the
financial statements. Although these estimates
and assumptions are based on management’s
best knowledge and judgement of current events
and actions, actual results may ultimately differ
from those estimates and assumptions. The
areas involving a higher degree of judgement
or complexity, or areas where assumptions and
estimates are significant to the financial statements
are disclosed in note 4.
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3.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

3.2

Business combination and basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements comprise
the financial statements of the Company and
its subsidiaries. Inter-company transactions and
balances between group companies together with
unrealised profits are eliminated in full in preparing
the consolidated financial statements. Unrealised
losses are also eliminated unless the transaction
provides evidence of impairment on the asset
transferred, in which case the loss is recognised in
profit or loss.

The results of subsidiaries acquired or disposed of
during the year are included in the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income from the
effective dates of acquisition or up to the effective
dates of disposal, as appropriate. Where necessary,
adjustments are made to the financial statements
of subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies
into line with those used by other members of the
Group.
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3.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

3.2

Business combination and basis of consolidation
(continued)

Acquisition of subsidiaries or businesses is accounted
for using the acquisition method. The cost of an
acquisition is measured at the aggregate of the
acquisition-date fair value of assets transferred,
liabilities incurred and equity interests issued by
the Group, as the acquirer. The identifiable assets
acquired and liabilities assumed are principally
measured at acquisition-date fair value. The Group's
previously held equity interest in the acquiree is re-
measured at acquisition-date fair value and the
resulting gains or losses are recognised in profit
or loss. The Group may elect, on a transaction-by-
transaction basis, to measure the non-controlling
interests that represent present ownership interests
in the subsidiary either at fair value or at the
proportionate share of the acquiree’s identifiable
net assets. All other non-controlling interests are
measured at fair value unless another measurement
basis is required by HKFRSs. Acquisition-related costs
incurred are expensed unless they are incurred in
issuing equity instruments in which case the costs are
deducted from equity.

Any contingent consideration to be transferred by
the acquirer is recognised at acquisition-date fair
value. Subsequent adjustments to consideration are
recognised against goodwill only to the extent that
they arise from new information obtained within
the measurement period (@ maximum of 12 months
from the acquisition date) about the fair value at the
acquisition date. All other subsequent adjustments
to contingent consideration classified as an asset or a
liability are recognised in profit or loss.
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3.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

3.2

Business combination and basis of consolidation
(continued)

Contingent consideration balances arising from
business combinations whose acquisition dates
preceded 1 July 2010 (i.e. the date the Group first
applied HKFRS 3 (2008)) have been accounted for
in accordance with the transition requirements
in the standard. Such balances are not adjusted
upon first application of the standard. Subsequent
revisions to estimates of such consideration are
treated as adjustments to the cost of these business
combinations and are recognised as part of goodwill.

Changes in the Group's interests in subsidiaries that
do not result in a loss of control are accounted for
as equity transactions. The carrying amounts of the
Group'’s interest and the non-controlling interest
are adjusted to reflect the changes in their relative
interests in the subsidiaries. Any difference between
the amount by which the non-controlling interest
is adjusted and the fair value of the consideration
paid or received is recognised directly in equity and
attributed to owners of the Company.

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary,
the profit or loss on disposal is calculated as the
difference between (i) the aggregate of the fair value
of the consideration received and the fair value of
any retained interest and (i) the previous carrying
amount of the assets (including goodwill), and
liabilities of the subsidiary and any non-controlling
interest. Amounts previously recognised in other
comprehensive income in relation to the subsidiary
are accounted for in the same manner as would
be required if the relevant assets or liabilities were
disposed of.
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3.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

3.2

3.3

Business combination and basis of consolidation
(continued)

Subsequent to acquisition, the carrying amount
of non-controlling interests that represent present
ownership interest in the subsidiary is the amount
of those interests at initial recognition plus the non-
controlling interest’s share of subsequent changes
in equity. Total comprehensive income is attributed
to non-controlling interests even if this results in the
non-controlling interest having a deficit balance.

Subsidiaries

A subsidiary is an entity over which the Company is
able to exercise control. Control is achieved where
the Company, directly or indirectly, has the power
to govern the financial and operating policies of an
entity so as to obtain benefits from its activities. In
assessing control, potential voting rights that are
presently exercisable are taken into account.

In the Company’s statement of financial position,
investments in subsidiaries are stated at cost less
impairment loss, if any. The results of subsidiaries
are accounted for by the Company on the basis of
dividend received and receivable.
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3.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

34

Associates

An associate is an entity over which the Group has
significant influence and that is neither a subsidiary
nor a jointly controlled entity. Significant influence
is the power to participate in the financial and
operating policy decisions of the investee but not
control or joint control over those policies. Associates
are accounted for using the equity method
whereby they are initially recognised at cost and
thereafter, their carrying amount are adjusted for
the Group’s share of the post-acquisition change
in the associates’ net assets except that losses in
excess of the Group's interest in the associate are
not recognised unless there is an obligation to make
good those losses.

Profits and losses arising on transactions between
the Group and its associates are recognised only to
the extent of unrelated investors’ interests in the
associate. The investor’'s share in the associate’s
profits and losses resulting from these transactions
is eliminated against the carrying value of the
associate.

Any premium paid for an associate above the
fair value of the Group’s share of the identifiable
assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities acquired
is capitalised and included in the carrying amount
of the associate and the entire carrying amount
of the investment is subject to impairment test, by
comparing the carrying amount with its recoverable
amount, which is higher of value in use and fair
value less costs to sell.

In the Company’s statement of financial position,
investments in associates are carried at cost less
impairment losses, if any. The results of associates
are accounted for by the Company on the basis of
dividends received and receivable during the year.
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3.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

3.5

Jointly controlled entities

A jointly controlled entity is a contractual
arrangement whereby the Group and other parties
undertake an economic activity which is subject to
joint control and none of the participating parties
has unilateral control over the economic activity.

Jointly controlled entities are accounted for using
equity method whereby they are initially recognised
at cost and thereafter, their carrying amounts
are adjusted for the Group’s share of the post-
acquisition change in the jointly controlled entities’
net assets except that losses in excess of the Group's
interest in the jointly controlled entities are not
recognised unless there is an obligation to make
good those losses.

Unrealised profits and losses resulting from
transactions between the Group and its jointly
controlled entities are eliminated to the extent of
the Group's interest in the jointly controlled entities,
except where unrealised losses provide evidence of
an impairment of the asset transferred, in which case
they are immediately recognised in profit or loss.
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3.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

3.6

Foreign currency translation

The financial statements are presented in Hong Kong
Dollars (“HK$"), which is also the functional currency
of the Company.

In the individual financial statements of the
consolidated entities, foreign currency transactions
are translated into the functional currency of the
individual entity using the exchange rates prevailing
at the dates of the transactions. At the reporting
date, monetary assets and liabilities denominated
in foreign currencies are translated at the foreign
exchange rates ruling at that date. Foreign exchange
gains and losses resulting from the settlement of
such transactions and from the reporting date
retranslation of monetary assets and liabilities are
recognised in profit or loss.

Non-monetary items carried at fair value that are
denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated
at the rates prevailing on the date when the fair
value was determined and are reported as part of
the fair value gain or loss. Non-monetary items that
are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign
currency are not retranslated.

In the consolidated financial statements, all individual
financial statements of foreign operations, originally
presented in a currency different from the Group's
presentation currency, have been converted into
HK$. Assets and liabilities have been translated
into HK$ at the closing rates at the reporting date.
Income and expenses have been converted into the
HK$ at the exchange rates ruling at the transaction
dates, or at the average rates over the reporting
period provided that the exchange rates do not
fluctuate significantly. Any differences arising from
this procedure have been recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated separately
in the translation reserve in equity.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

3.6

3.7

Foreign currency translation (continued)

When a foreign operation is sold, such exchange
differences are reclassified from equity to profit or
loss as part of the gain or loss on sale.

Goodwill

Goodwill is initially recognised at cost being the
excess of the aggregate of consideration transferred
over the fair value of identifiable assets, liabilities and
contingent liabilities acquired.

Where the fair value of identifiable assets, liabilities
and contingent liabilities exceed the fair value of
consideration paid, the excess is recognised in profit
or loss on the acquisition date, after re-assessment.

Goodwill is measured at cost less impairment losses.
Goodwill is allocated to cash-generating units and
is tested annually for impairment (see note 3.13).
For the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill
arising from an acquisition is allocated to each of
the relevant cash-generating-units that are expected
to benefit from the synergies of the acquisition. A
cash-generating unit to which goodwill has been
allocated is tested for impairment annually, and
whenever there is an indication that the unit may be
impaired.

For goodwill arising on an acquisition in a financial
year, the cash-generating unit to which goodwill
has been allocated is tested for impairment before
the end of that financial year. When the recoverable
amount of the cash-generating unit is less than the
carrying amount of the unit, the impairment loss
is allocated to reduce the carrying amount of any
goodwill allocated to the unit first, and then to the
other assets of the unit pro-rata on the basis of
the carrying amount to each asset in the unit. Any
impairment loss for goodwill is recognised in profit
or loss and is not reversed in subsequent periods.
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3.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

3.8

Revenue recognition

Revenue comprises the fair value of the

consideration received or receivable for the sale of

goods, net of rebates and discounts. Provided that

it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to

the Group and the revenue and costs, if applicable,

can be measured reliably, revenue is recognised as

follows:

(i)

(iif)

from the sale of goods, when the significant
risks and rewards of ownership have been
transferred to the buyer, provided that
the Group maintains neither managerial
involvement to the degree usually associated
with ownership, nor effective control over
the goods sold. This is usually taken as the
time when the goods are delivered and the
customer has accepted the goods;

interest income, on a time proportion basis
using the effective interest method; and

dividend income, when the shareholder’s
right to receive payment is established.
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3.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

3.9

3.10

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs incurred for the acquisition,
construction or production of any qualifying asset
are capitalised during the period of time that is
required to complete and prepare the asset for its
intended use. A qualifying asset is an asset which
necessarily takes a substantial period of time to get
ready for its intended use or sale. Other borrowing
costs are expensed when incurred.

Borrowing costs are capitalised as part of the cost of
a qualifying asset when expenditure for the asset is
being incurred, borrowing costs are being incurred
and activities that are necessary to prepare the asset
for its intended use or sale are being undertaken.
Capitalisation of borrowing costs ceases when
substantially all the activities necessary to prepare
the qualifying asset for its intended use or sale are
completed.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment other than
construction in progress, are stated at cost, which
comprise purchase price and any directly attributable
costs of bringing the asset to its working condition
and location for its intended use, less accumulated
depreciation and any impairment losses (note
3.13). Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s
carrying amount or recognised as a separate asset,
as appropriate, only when it is probable that future
economic benefits associated with the item will
flow to the Group and the cost of the item can be
measured reliably. All other costs such as repairs and
maintenance are charged to profit or loss during the
financial period in which they are incurred.
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3.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

3.10

Property, plant and equipment (continued)

Other than mining structures, depreciation is

calculated on the straight-line basis to write off the

cost of each asset over its estimated useful life. The

principal annual rates used for this purpose are as

follows:

Leasehold land

Factory buildings

Commercial buildings

Leasehold improvements

Plant and machinery

Furniture, fixtures and
equipment

Motor vehicles

Over the lease terms

Over the term of
the leases or
estimated useful
lives of 25 years,
whichever is shorter

Over the term of

the leases or estimated
useful lives of

33 years, whichever

is shorter

Over the term of
the leases or
estimated useful
lives of 4 years,

whichever is shorter

10% - 33%

17%

25%

Depreciation on mining structures is provided to

write off the cost of the mining structure using units-

of-production method utilising based on the proven

and probable mineral reserves of the ore mines.
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3.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

3.10 Property, plant and equipment (continued)

3.11

The depreciation method, assets’ residual values
and useful lives, are reviewed and adjusted, if
appropriate, at each reporting date. The gain or loss
on retirement or disposal of an asset of property,
plant and equipment is determined as the difference
between the sale proceeds and the carrying amount
of the asset and is recognised in profit or loss.

Construction in progress is stated at cost less
impairment losses. Cost comprises direct costs of
construction as well as borrowing costs capitalised
during the periods of construction and installation.
Capitalisation of these costs ceases and the
construction in progress is transferred to the
appropriate class of property, plant and equipment
when substantially all the activities necessary
to prepare the assets for their intended use are
completed. No depreciation is provided for in respect
of construction in progress until it is completed and
ready for its intended use.

Mining rights

Mining rights are stated at cost less accumulated
amortisation and any impairment losses and are
amortised on the units-of-production method based
on the total proven and probable reserves of the ore
mines.
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3.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

3.12

Investment property

Investment properties are land and/or buildings
which are owned or held under a leasehold interest
to earn rental income and/or for capital appreciation.
These include land held for a currently undetermined
future use and property that is being constructed or
developed for future use as investment property.

When the Group holds a property interest under
an operating lease to earn rental income and/or
for capital appreciation, the interest is classified
and accounted for as an investment property on
a property-by-property basis. Any such property
interest which has been classified as an investment
property is accounted for as if it was held under a
finance lease.

On initial recognition, investment property is
measured at cost, including any directly attributable
expenditure. Subsequent to initial recognition,
investment property is stated at fair value, unless it
is still in the course of construction or development
at the reporting date and its fair value cannot
be reliably determined at that time. Fair value is
determined by external professional valuers, with
sufficient experience with respect to both the
location and the nature of the investment property.
The carrying amounts recognised in the reporting
date reflect the prevailing market conditions at the
reporting date.

Gains or losses arising from either changes in the
fair value or the sale of an investment property are
included in profit or loss for the period in which they
arise.
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Property, plant and equipment, land use rights,
mining right, interests in subsidiaries, associates and
jointly controlled entities are subject to impairment
testing.

Goodwill is tested for impairment at least annually,
irrespective of whether there is any indicator that
they are impaired. All other assets are tested for
impairment whenever there are indicators that the
asset’s carrying amount may not be recoverable.

An impairment loss is recognised as an expense
immediately for the amount by which the assets’
carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount.
Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value,
reflecting market conditions less costs to sell, and
value in use. In assessing value in use, the estimated
future cash flows are discounted to their present
value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects
current market assessment of time value of money
and the risk specific to the asset.

For the purposes of assessing impairment, where
an asset does not generate cash inflows largely
independent from those from other assets, the
recoverable amount is determined for the smallest
group of assets that generate cash inflows
independently (i.e. a cash-generating unit). As
a result, some assets are tested individually for
impairment and some are tested at cash-generating
unit level. Goodwill in particular is allocated to those
cash-generating units that are expected to benefit
from synergies of the related business combination
and represent the lowest level within the Group
at which the goodwill is monitored for internal
management purpose.
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3.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

3.13

Impairment of non-financial assets (continued)

Impairment losses recognised for cash-generating
units, to which goodwill has been allocated, are
credited initially to the carrying amount of goodwvill.
Any remaining impairment loss is charged pro rata
to the other assets in the cash generating unit,
except that the carrying value of an asset will not be
reduced below its individual fair value less cost to
sell, or value in use, if determinable.

An impairment loss on goodwill is not reversed
in subsequent periods. In respect of other assets,
an impairment loss is reversed if there has been
a favourable change in the estimates used to
determine the asset’s recoverable amount and
only to the extent that the asset’s carrying amount
does not exceed the carrying amount that would
have been determined, net of depreciation or
amortisation, if no impairment loss had been
recognised.

Impairment losses recognised in an interim period
in respect of goodwill are not reversed in a
subsequent period. This is the case even if no loss,
or a smaller loss, would have been recognised had
the impairment been assessed only at the end of the
financial year to which the interim period relates.
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3.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

3.14 Leases

An arrangement, comprising a transaction or a
series of transactions, is or contains a lease if the
Group determines that the arrangement conveys a
right to use a specific asset or assets for an agreed
period of time in return for a payment or a series of
payments. Such a determination is made based on
an evaluation of the substance of the arrangement
and is regardless of whether the arrangement takes
the legal form of a lease.

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the
terms of the lease transfer substantially all the risks
and rewards of ownership to lessee. All other leases
are classified as operating leases.

(i) Operating lease charges as the lessee

Where the Group has the right to use the
assets held under operating leases, payments
made under the leases are charged to
profit or loss on a straight-line basis over
the lease terms except where an alternative
basis is more representative of the time
pattern of benefits to be derived from the
leased assets. Lease incentives received are
recognised in profit or loss as an integral part
of the aggregate net lease payments made.
Contingent rental are charged to profit or
loss in the accounting period in which they
are incurred.
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3.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

3.14

3.15

Leases (continued)

(i) Land use rights

Land use rights represent up-front payments
to acquire long term interests in the usage
of the land. They are stated at cost less
accumulated amortisation and accumulated
impairment, if any. The up-front payments
are amortised over the lease period on a
straight-line basis and the amortisation is
charged to profit or loss.

Financial assets
The Group’s accounting policies for financial assets

other than investments in subsidiaries, associates and
jointly controlled entries are set out below.

Financial assets are classified into the following

categories:

- financial assets at fair value through profit or
loss

loans and receivables

- available-for-sale financial assets

Management determines the classification of its
financial assets at initial recognition depending on
the purpose for which the financial assets were
acquired and, where allowed and appropriate, re-
evaluates this designation at every reporting date.
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3.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

3.15

Financial assets (continued)

All financial assets are recognised when, and only
when, the Group becomes a party to the contractual
provisions of the instrument. Regular way purchases
of financial assets are recognised on trade date.
When financial assets are recognised initially, they
are measured at fair value, plus, in the case of
investments not at fair value through profit or loss,
directly attributable transaction cost.

Derecognition of financial assets occurs when the
rights to receive cash flows from the investments
expire or are transferred and substantially all of
the risks and rewards of ownership have been
transferred.

At each reporting date, financial assets are reviewed
to assess whether there is objective evidence of
impairment. If any such evidence exists, impairment
loss is determined and recognised based on the
classification of the financial asset.
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3.15 SRIEE#E) 3.15 Financial assets (continued)

() URNFEGFTABRRZ 0] Financial assets at fair value through profit or
TEEE loss
UNAFEFAEBRZZ Financial assets at fair value through profit or
TREEBESR AR loss include financial assets held for trading
EEEZeREE and financial assets designated upon initial
DA KA W) 25 RE R 45 recognition as at fair value through profit or
ERAATER AR loss.
M EMEE °
WEWRESREEZ Financial assets are classified as held for

trading if they are acquired for the purpose
of selling in the near term, or it is part of a
portfolio of identified financial instruments
that are managed together and for which
there is evidence of a recent pattern of short-
term profit-taking. Derivatives, including
separated embedded derivatives, are also
classified as held for trading unless they are
designated as effective hedging instruments
or financial guarantee contracts.

Where a contract contains one or more
embedded derivatives, the entire hybrid
contract may be designated as a financial
asset at fair value through profit or loss,
except where the embedded derivative does
not significantly modify the cash flows or
it is clear that separation of the embedded
derivative is prohibited.
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3.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

3.15

Financial assets (continued)

0]

Financial assets at fair value through profit or
loss (continued)

Financial assets may be designated at initial
recognition as at fair value through profit or
loss if the following criteria are met:

- the designation eliminates or
significantly reduces the inconsistent
treatment that would otherwise
arise from measuring the assets or
recognising gains or losses on them
on a different basis; or

- the assets are part of a group of
financial assets which are managed
and their performance is evaluated
on a fair value basis, in accordance
with a documented risk management
strategy and information about the
group of financial assets is provided
internally on that basis to the key
management personnel; or

- the financial asset contains an
embedded derivative that would
need to be separately recorded.

Subsequent to initial recognition, the
financial assets included in this category are
measured at fair value with changes in fair
value recognised in profit or loss.
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3.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

3.15

Financial assets (continued)

(ii)

(i)

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative
financial assets with fixed or determinable
payments that are not quoted in an
active market. Loans and receivables are
subsequently measured at amortised cost
using the effective interest method, less
any impairment losses. Amortised cost is
calculated taking into account any discount
or premium on acquisition and includes fees
that are an integral part of the effective
interest rate and transaction cost.

Available-for-sale financial assets

Available-for-sale financial assets include
non-derivative financial assets that are either
designated to this category or do not qualify
for inclusion in any of the other categories
of financial assets. All financial assets within
this category are subsequently measured at
fair value. Gain or loss arising from a change
in the fair value excluding any dividend
and interest income is recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated
separately in the available-for-sale financial
assets revaluation reserve in equity, except
for impairment losses (see the policy below)
and foreign exchange gains and losses on
monetary assets, until the financial asset is
derecognised, at which time the cumulative
gain or loss is reclassified from equity to
profit or loss. Interest calculated using the
effective interest method is recognised in
profit or loss.
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3.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

3.15

Financial assets (continued)

(i) Available-for-sale financial assets (continued)

Interest calculated using the effective interest
method is recognised in profit or loss.

For available-for-sale investments in equity
securities that do not have a quoted market
price in an active market and whose fair
value cannot be reliably measured, they
are measured at cost less any identified
impairment losses at each reporting date
subsequent to initial recognition.

Impairment of financial assets

At each reporting date, financial assets other than
at fair value through profit or loss are reviewed to
determine whether there is any objective evidence
of impairment. Objective evidence of impairment of
individual financial assets includes observable data
that come to the attention of the Group about one
or more of the followings loss events:
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3.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

3.15

Financial assets (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)

- significant financial difficulty of the debtors;

- a breach of contract, such as default or
delinquency in interest or principal payments;

- it becoming probable that the debtors
will enter bankruptcy or other financial
reorganisation;

- significant changes in the technological,
market, economic or legal environment that
have an adverse effect on the debtor; and

- significant or prolonged decline in the
fair value of an investment in an equity
instrument below its cost.
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3.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

3.15

Financial assets (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)

Loss events in respect of a group of financial assets
include observable data indicating that there is a
measurable decrease in the estimated future cash
flows from the group of financial assets. Such

observable data includes but not limited to adverse

changes in the payment status of debtors in the

group and, national or local economic conditions

that correlate with defaults on the assets in the

group.

If any such evidence exists, the impairment loss is

measured and recognised as follows:

(i) Financial assets carried at amortised cost

If there is objective evidence that an

impairment loss on loans and receivables

has been incurred, the amount of the loss

is measured as the difference between the

asset’s carrying amount and the present

value of estimated future cash flows

(excluding future credit losses that have not

been incurred) discounted at the financial

asset’s original effective interest rate (i.e.

the effective interest rate computed at initial

recognition). The amount of the loss is

recognised in profit or loss in the period in

which the impairment occurs.
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3.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

3.15

Financial assets (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)

(i)

(if)

Financial assets carried at amortised cost
(continued)

If, in subsequent period, the amount of
the impairment loss decreases and the
decrease can be related objectively to an
event occurring after the impairment was
recognised, the previously recognised
impairment loss is reversed to the extent
that it does not result in a carrying amount
of the financial asset exceeding what the
amortised cost would have been had the
impairment not been recognised at the date
the impairment is reversed. The amount of
the reversal is recognised in profit or loss in
the period in which the reversal occurs.

Available-for-sale financial assets

When a decline in the fair value of an
available-for-sale financial asset has been
recognised directly in equity and there is
objective evidence that the asset is impaired,
an amount is removed from equity and
recognised in profit or loss as impairment
loss. That amount is measured as the
difference between the asset’s acquisition
cost (net of any principal repayment and
amortisation) and current fair value, less
any impairment loss on that asset previously
recognised in profit or loss.
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3.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

3.15 Financial assets (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)

(ii) Available-for-sale financial assets (continued)

Reversals in respect of investment in equity

instruments classified as available-for-

sale are not recognised in profit or loss.

The subsequent increase in fair value is

recognised in other comprehensive income.

Impairment losses in respect of debt

securities are reversed if the subsequent

increase in fair value can be objectively

related to an event occurring after the

impairment loss was recognised. Reversal of

impairment losses in such circumstances are

recognised in profit or loss.

(iii) Financial assets carried at cost

The amount of impairment loss is measured

as the difference between the carrying

amount of the financial asset and the

present value of estimated future cash

flows discounted at the current market

rate of return for a similar financial asset.

Such impairment losses are not reversed in

subsequent periods.

—
@
=
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3.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

3.16

3.17

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and
net realisable value. Cost is determined using
the weighted average basis and, in the case of
work in progress and finished goods, comprises
direct materials, direct labour and an appropriate
proportion of overheads. Net realisable value is
based on the estimated selling prices less any
estimated costs to be incurred to completion and
disposal.

Accounting for income taxes

Income tax comprises current tax and deferred tax.

Current income tax assets and/or liabilities comprise
those obligations to, or claims from, fiscal authorities
relating to the current or prior reporting period, that
are unpaid at the reporting date. They are calculated
according to the tax rates and tax laws applicable to
the fiscal periods to which they relate, based on the
taxable profit for the year. All changes to current tax
assets or liabilities are recognised as a component of
tax expense in profit or loss.

Deferred tax is calculated using the liability method
on temporary differences at the reporting date
between the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities in the financial statements and their
respective tax bases. Deferred tax liabilities are
generally recognised for all taxable temporary
differences. Deferred tax assets are recognised for all
deductible temporary differences, tax losses available
to be carried forward as well as other unused tax
credits, to the extent that it is probable that taxable
profits, including existing temporary difference, will
be available against which deductible temporary
differences, unused tax losses and unused tax credits
can be utilised.
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3.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

3.17

Accounting for income taxes (continued)

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are not recognised
if the temporary difference arises from goodwill or
from initial recognition (other than in a business
combination) of assets and liabilities in a transaction
that affects neither taxable nor accounting profit or
loss.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable
temporary differences arising on investment in
subsidiaries, associates and jointly controlled
entities except where the Group is able to control
the reversal of the temporary differences and it is
probable that the temporary differences will not
reverse in the foreseeable future.

Deferred tax is calculated, without discounting, at
tax rates that are expected to apply in the period the
liability is settled or the asset realised, provided they
are enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting
date.

Changes in deferred tax assets or liabilities
are recognised in profit or loss, or in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity if they
relate to items that are charged or credited to other
comprehensive income or directly in equity.

Current tax assets and current tax liabilities are
presented in net if, and only if,

(a) the Group has the legally enforceable right to
set off the recognised amounts; and

(b) intends either to settle on a net basis, or
to realise the asset and settle the liability
simultaneously.
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3.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

3.17 Accounting for income taxes (continued)

The Group presents deferred tax assets and deferred
tax liabilities in net if, and only if,

(a) the entity has a legally enforceable right to
set off current tax assets against current tax
liabilities; and

(b) the deferred tax assets and the deferred tax
liabilities relate to income taxes levied by the
same taxation authority on either:

(i) the same taxable entity; or

(ii) different taxable entities which intend
either to settle current tax liabilities
and assets on a net basis, or to realise
the assets and settle the liabilities
simultaneously, in each future period
in which significant amounts of
deferred tax liabilities or assets are
expected to be settled or recovered.
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3.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

3.18

3.19

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents include cash at banks and
in hand, demand deposits with banks and short term
highly liquid investments with original maturities of
three months or less that are readily convertible into
known amounts of cash and which are subject to an
insignificant risk of changes in value. For the purpose
of statement of cash flows presentation, cash and
cash equivalents include bank overdrafts which are
repayable on demand and form an integral part of
the Group’s cash management.

Share capital and share premium

Ordinary shares are classified as equity. Share capital
is determined using the nominal value of shares that
have been issued.

Share premium includes any premiums received
on the issue of share capital. Any transaction costs
associated with the issuing of shares are deducted
from share premium (net of any related income tax
benefit) to the extent they are incremental costs
directly attributable to the equity transaction.
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3.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

3.20

Employee benefits

Pension scheme

The Group operates a defined contribution
Mandatory Provident Fund retirement benefits
scheme (the “MPF Scheme”) under the Mandatory
Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance, for those
employees who are eligible to participate in the
MPF Scheme. Contributions are made based on a
percentage of the employees’ relevant income and
are charged to profit or loss as they become payable
in accordance with the rules of the MPF Scheme. The
assets of the MPF Scheme are held separately from
those of the Group in an independently administered
fund. The Group’s employer contributions vest fully
with the employees when contributed into the MPF
Scheme.

Prior to the MPF Scheme becoming effective, the
Group operated a defined contribution retirement
benefits scheme (the “Prior Scheme”) for those
employees who were eligible to participate in this
scheme. The Prior Scheme operated in a similar way
to the MPF Scheme, except that when an employee
left the Prior Scheme before his/her interest in the
Group’s employer contributions vested fully, the
ongoing contributions payable by the Group were
reduced by the relevant amount of the forfeited
employer’s contributions.
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3.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

3.20

Employee benefits (continued)

Pension scheme (continued)

The employees of the subsidiaries which operate
in the People’s Republic of China except Hong
Kong and Macau (“Mainland China”) are required
to participate in a retirement benefits scheme (the
“RB Scheme”) operated by the local municipal
government. These subsidiaries are required to
contribute a certain percentage of their payroll to the
RB Scheme to fund the benefits. The only obligation
of the Group with respect to the RB Scheme is to
pay the ongoing required contributions under the
RB Scheme. Contributions under the RB Scheme are
charged to profit or loss as they become payable in
accordance with the rules of the RB Scheme.

Short-term employee benefits

Employee entitlements to annual leave are
recognised when they accrue to employees. A
provision is made for the estimated liability for
annual leave as a result of services rendered by
employees up to the reporting date.

Non-accumulating compensated absences are not
recognised until the time of leave.
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3.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

3.21

Share-based compensation

All share-based payment arrangements granted
after 7 November 2002 and had not vested on
1 January 2005 are recognised in the financial
statements. The Group operates equity-settled share-
based compensation plans for remuneration of its
employees and other eligible participants.

All employee services received in exchange for
the grant of any share-based compensation are
measured at their fair values. These are indirectly
determined by reference to the equity instruments
awarded. Their value is appraised at the grant date
and excludes the impact of any non-market vesting
conditions (for example, profitability and sales
growth targets).

All share-based compensation is recognised as an
expense in profit or loss over the vesting period
if vesting conditions apply, or recognised as an
expense in full at the grant date when the equity
instruments granted vest immediately unless the
compensation qualifies for recognition as asset, with
a corresponding increase in the share option reserve
in equity. If vesting conditions apply, the expense
is recognised over the vesting period, based on the
best available estimate of the number of equity
instruments expected to vest. Non-market vesting
conditions are included in assumptions about the
number of equity instruments that are expected to
vest. Estimates are subsequently revised, if there is
any indication that the number of equity instruments
expected to vest differs from previous estimates.



Annual Report 2012 4§

Notes to the Financial Statements m BT8R 5 i+

For the year ended 30 June 2012

HE—ZT

——FRRA=TRHIFE

3.21

3.22

B BURBE 2

LARR 10 R ELHE 2 M (48

BT RIS M E AR
RIEEERE RG22 AF
Bt E - EFfERK 2
FETEER St &R - Al
SR T TAK
NFE - BREFZ A FERD
R R SRS - BRIERZ IR
BRERERAREE -
PARB OISR -

BB AR ok R AR M B I 1T
R - SERTANME A FERR
ZEERBEERDRE
NGEBEE  EERE
A A e o B BB 1R IR
P E T B BRMARTTHE
B ZE BT BB AR A RR AR 4
BREABERCBEERE
REBEF o

AREZ S WA EOER
TER  ETEA - 2
REMBAHHE 72
BT - EABEAAR
A BRALEATR

HD

ai?klﬁ JEHFEJL’AT*K
B AR R IA R PR
BORIBEAER o

ERMABETITNAEE2HE
R T R 2 A RGR A
# o FTAF B AERERSTY
REASBEEERAZE
SHERHER (R M3E3.9)

3.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

3.21

3.22

Share-based compensation (continued)

For warrants granted to service providers in
exchange for services acquired, they are measured at
the fair value of the services received. If the fair value
of the services received cannot be measured reliably,
the fair value of the equity instruments granted is
used. Their fair values of the services are recognised
as expense immediately, unless the services qualify
for recognition as assets. Corresponding adjustments
have been made to equity.

At the time when the share options or warrants
are exercised, the amount previously recognised in
reserve will be transferred to share premium. After
vesting date, when the vested share options and
warrants are later forfeited or are still not exercised
at the expiry date, the amount previously recognised
in share option reserve/warrant reserve will be
transferred to retained profits.

Financial liabilities

The Group’s financial liabilities include bank loans,
accruals, trade and other payables, derivative
financial instruments, amounts due to associates,
amount due to ultimate holding company, amount
due to a jointly controlled entity, amount due to a
related company, convertible notes and loan from a
controlling shareholder.

Financial liabilities are recognised when the Group
becomes a party to the contractual provisions
of the instrument. All interest related charges
are recognised in accordance with the Group's
accounting policy for borrowing costs (see note 3.9).
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3.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

3.22

Financial liabilities (continued)

A financial liability is derecognised when the
obligation under the liability is discharged or
cancelled or expires.

Where an existing financial liability is replaced by
another from the same lender on substantially
different terms, or the terms of an existing liability
are substantially modified, such an exchange or
modification is treated as a derecognition of the
original liability and the recognition of a new liability,
and the difference in the respective carrying amount
is recognised in profit or loss.

@) Borrowings

Borrowings are recognised initially at fair
value, net of transaction costs incurred.
Borrowings are subsequently stated at
amortised cost; any difference between the
proceeds (net of transaction costs) and the
redemption value is recognised in profit or
loss over the period of the borrowings using
the effective interest method.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities
unless the Group has an unconditional right
to defer settlement of the liability for at least
12 months after the reporting date.
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3.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

3.22

Financial liabilities (continued)

(b)

Convertible notes contain liability and equity
components, and early redemption options
derivative

Convertible notes issued by the Group that
contain liability, conversion option and early
redemption option (which is not closely
related to the host contract) are classified
separately into respective items on initial
recognition. Conversion option that will be
settled by the exchange of a fixed amount of
cash for a fixed number of the Group’s own
equity instruments is classified as an equity
instrument. At date of issue, the fair value of
a similar liability with similar early redemption
option is determined (“the combined
instrument”). The difference between the
fair value of the convertible notes and
the fair value of the combined instrument
representing the conversion option for the
holder to convert the notes into equity is
included in convertible note equity reserve.
The initial carrying amount of the liability
component is determined after deducting
the fair value of the early redemption
option from the fair value of the combined
instrument.

In subsequent periods, the liability component
of the convertible notes is carried at amortised
cost using the effective interest method. The
early redemption option is measured at fair
value with changes in fair value recognised in
profit or loss.
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3.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

3.22

Financial liabilities (continued)

(b)

Convertible notes contain liability and equity
components, and early redemption options
derivative (continued)

The equity component, representing the
option to convert the liability component
into ordinary shares of the Group, will
remain in the convertible note equity reserve
until the embedded conversion option is
exercised (in which case the balance stated
in the convertible note equity reserve will be
transferred to share premium). Where the
conversion option remains unexercised at the
expiry date, the balance stated in convertible
note equity reserve will be released to the
retained profits. No gain or loss is recognised
in the profit or loss upon conversion or
expiration of the conversion option.

Transaction costs that relate to the issue of
the convertible notes are allocated to the
liability, equity and early redemption option
components in proportion to the allocation
of the gross proceeds. Transaction costs
relating to the equity component are charged
directly to equity. Transaction costs relating
to the early redemption option are charged
to profit or loss immediately. Transaction
costs relating to the liability component
are included in the carrying amount of the
liability portion and amortised over the
period of the convertible notes using the
effective interest method.
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3.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

3.22

3.23

3.24

Financial liabilities (continued)

(©) Other financial liabilities

Other financial liabilities are recognised
initially at their fair value and subsequently
measured at amortised cost, using the
effective interest method.

Derivative financial instruments

Derivative financial instruments, in individual
contracts or separated from hybrid financial
instruments, are initially recognised at fair value on
the date the derivative contract is entered into and
subsequently remeasured at fair value. Derivatives
that are not designated as hedging instruments are
accounted for as financial assets or financial liabilities
at fair value through profit or loss. Gains or losses
arising from changes in fair value are taken directly
to profit or loss for the year.

Provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a
present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result
of a past event and it is probable that an outflow
of economic benefits will be required to settle the
obligation and a reliable estimate of the amount of
the obligation can be made. Where the time value
of money is material, provisions are stated at the
present value of the expenditure expected to settle
the obligation.

All provisions are reviewed at each reporting date
and adjusted to reflect the current best estimate.

—
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3.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

3.24

3.25

Provisions and contingent liabilities (continued)

Where it is not probable that an outflow of
economic benefits will be required, or the amount
cannot be estimated reliably, the obligation is
disclosed as a contingent liability, unless the
probability of outflow of economic benefits is
remote. Possible obligations, whose existence
will only be confirmed by the occurrence or non-
occurrence of one or more uncertain future events
not wholly within the control of the Group, are
also disclosed as contingent liabilities unless the
probability of outflow of economic benefits is
remote.

Contingent liabilities are recognised in the course
of the allocation of purchase price to the assets
and liabilities acquired in a business combination.
They are initially measured at fair value at the date
of acquisition and subsequently measured at the
higher of the amount that would be recognised in
a comparable provision as described above and the
amount initially recognised less any accumulated
amortisation, if appropriate.

Financial guarantee contracts

A financial guarantee contract is a contract that
requires the issuer (or guarantor) to make specified
payments to reimburse the holder for a loss it incurs
because a specified debtor fails to make payment
when due in accordance with the terms of a debt
instrument.
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3.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

3.25

3.26

Financial guarantee contracts (continued)

Where the Group issues a financial guarantee, the
fair value of the guarantee is initially recognised as
deferred income within trade and other payables.
Where consideration is received or receivable for
the issuance of the guarantee, the consideration is
recognised in accordance with the Group’s policies
applicable to that category of asset. Where no such
consideration is received or receivable, an immediate
expense is recognised in profit or loss on initial
recognition of any deferred income.

The amount of the guarantee initially recognised
as deferred income is amortised in profit or loss
over the term of the guarantee as income from
financial guarantees issued. In addition, provisions
are recognised if and when it becomes probable
that the holder of the guarantee will call upon the
Group under the guarantee and the amount of that
claim on the Group is expected to exceed the current
carrying amount i.e. the amount initially recognised
less accumulated amortisation, where appropriate.

Government grants

Government grants are recognised when there is
reasonable assurance that they will be received
and that the Group will comply with the conditions
attaching to them. Grants that compensate the
Group for expenses incurred are recognised as
revenue in profit or loss on a systematic basis in the
same periods in which the expenses are incurred.
Grants that compensate the Group for the cost of an
asset are deducted from the carrying amount of the
asset and consequently are effectively recognised in
profit or loss over the useful life of the asset by way
of reduced depreciation expense.

—
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3.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

3.27

3.28

Dividends

Final dividends proposed by the directors are
classified as a separate allocation of retained profits
within the capital and reserves section of the
statement of financial position, until they have been
approved by the shareholders in a general meeting.
When these dividends have been approved by the
shareholders and declared, they are recognised as a
liability.

Interim dividends are simultaneously proposed and
declared, because the Company’s memorandum
and articles of association grant the directors the
authority to declare interim dividends. Consequently,
interim dividends are recognised immediately as a
liability when they are proposed and declared.

Segment reporting

The Group identifies operating segments and
prepares segment information based on the
regular internal financial information reported to
the executive directors for their decisions about
resources allocation to the Group’s business
components and for their review of the performance
of those components. The business components in
the internal financial information reported to the
executive directors are determined following the
Group’s major product and service lines.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

3.28 Segment reporting (continued)
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The Group has identified the following reportable
segments:

- Design, manufacturing, marketing and
trading of fine jewellery and diamonds

- Property investment
= Mining operation
= Investment

Each of these operating segments is managed
separately as each of the product and service lines
requires different resources as well as marketing
approaches. All inter-segment transfers, if any, are
carried out at arms length prices.

The measurement policies the Group uses for
reporting segment results under HKFRS 8 are
the same as those use in its financial statements
prepared under HKFRSs, except that expenses
related to share-based compensation, share of
results of associates and jointly controlled entities
accounted for using the equity method, finance
costs, income tax expenses and corporate income
and expenses which are not directly attributable to
the business activities of any operating segment, are
not included in arriving at the operating results of
the operating segment.

Segment assets include all assets but cash and
cash equivalents, deferred tax assets, interests
in associates and interests in jointly controlled
entities. In addition, corporate assets, which are not
directly attributable to the business activities of any
operating segment are not allocated to a segment,
which primarily applies to the Group’s headquarter.

—
~
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3.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

3.28 Segment reporting (continued)

3.29

Segment liabilities exclude bank loans, amount
due to ultimate holding company, loan from a
controlling shareholder, provision for tax, deferred
tax liabilities and corporate liabilities which are not
directly attributable to the business activities of any
operating segment and primarily applies to the
Group’s headquarter.

No asymmetrical allocations have been applied to
reportable segments.

Related parties

(@) A person or a close member of that person’s
family is related to the Group if that person:

(i) has control or joint control over the
Group;

(ii) has significant influence over the
Group; or

(iii) is a member of key management

personnel of the Group or the
Company'’s parent.
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= s EEGSTHERBE® 3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

3.29 FEBEAL(E) 3.29 Related parties (continued)
(b) I RBER A TEMIE (b)  An entity is related to the Group if any of the
o RIEERERE following conditions apply:

1 AR B E -

() ZEBNAEEH (i) The entity and the Group are
ZR—SB 8K members of the same group (which
B(EERZEXZ means that each parent, subsidiary
MEREEHER and fellow subsidiary is related to the
BN EENEIE! others).

BREMEAFS
M E FARE) ©

(i) F—EBEBES — (ii) One entity is an associate or joint
ERmEBE DX venture of the other entity (or
REERE (R an associate or joint venture of a
»—EREBE member of a group of which the
B — @k 8 # other entity is a member).
BErENEE
) -

(i) MK B §E & = 48 (i) Both entities are joint ventures of the
RE=ZFAHN&E same third party.
1B o

vy E—EBEF = (v)  One entity is a joint venture of a
THEERET third entity and the other entity is an
B —EBREZ associate of the third entity.
FE=TTMBEL
=,

V) ZBERBEAANE (v) The entity is a post-employment
5] 5k B 7N & 3 3 benefit plan for the benefit of the
BOEBNES employees of the Group or an entity
& ) i 5% B B 5B related to the Group.
ei@AEtEl -

(vi) % & §8 X(a)B PIT (vi)  The entity is controlled or jointly
A & A B 2 ) 3k controlled by a person identified in
HRFEH] o ().

(vii) ()(i) 78 By it &9 1 A (vii) A person identified in (a)(i) has
HZEBEMRSE significant influence over the entity
ABHRHZE or is a member of key management
(s ES&AR) personnel of the entity (or of a parent
MEREEEAE of the entity).

HIK 8 °

=y
O
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3.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

3.29 Related parties (continued)

Close family members of a person are those family
members who may be expected to influence, or be
influenced by, that person in their dealings with the
entity and include:

(i) that person’s children and spouse or
domestic partner;

(ii) children of that person’s spouse or domestic
partner; and

(iif) dependents of that person or that person’s
spouse or domestic partner.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES
AND JUDGEMENTS

Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and are
based on historical experience and other factors, including
expectations of future events that are believed to be
reasonable under the circumstances.

The Group makes estimates and assumptions concerning
the future. The resulting accounting estimates will, by
definition, seldom equal the related actual results. The
estimates and assumptions that have a significant risk of
causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts
of assets and liabilities within the next financial year are
discussed below:
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m - BARE s & FE 4. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES

(%)

HOUHHEZEREEZRERD
Bz fhet

RAHEECERMEENS @ 2
FEBZLFEENKARES
RMEZFERE RNEERFE
THREARER LFERER
HUER o FMEL L HERES - TSR
BERZEBEBEIEERELZ
EBRHBERZY - AKEITE
BEMEAZE - flnfTEREBF%
BRBABTA/ERRERF
ZHIEER -

REMELFEME

REBREMETIRRHIEE3.12
A5 gt BERIA R FESIRR - %
87/ E A/NSSIE N )
dtt o RBM R ELERE
ET(EHETDEE - %FHE
DERETRE  MZEFRRF
ETHAREE - Rl RERIS
MEREK o RMEH HIER - =
ZERNGEHEB 2R EAER
FREERE - ZFMEFTIEDMN
EREMSEBEMSERZSE
HoE

AND JUDGEMENTS (continued)

Estimation of impairment losses of available-for-sale
financial assets

For available-for-sale financial assets, a significant or
prolonged decline in fair value below cost is considered to
be objective evidence of impairment. Judgement is required
when determining whether a decline in fair value has been
significant and/or prolonged. In making this judgement, the
historical data on market volatility as well as the price of the
specific investment are taken into account. The Group also
takes into account other factors, such as industry and sector
performance and financial information regarding the issuer/
investee.

Estimated fair value of investment property

Investment property of the Group is stated at fair value in
accordance with the accounting policy stated in note 3.12.
The fair value of investment property, set out in note 17 to
the financial statements, is determined by an independent
professional valuer, Chung, Chan & Associates (“CCA").
Such valuation is made based on certain assumptions, which
are subject to uncertainties and might materially differ from
the actual results. In making the judgement, reasonable
consideration has been given to the underlying assumptions
that are mainly based on market conditions existing at the
reporting date. These estimates are regularly compared to
actual market data and actual transactions in the market.

—
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m - BARE S5 R A& 4. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES
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AND JUDGEMENTS (continued)

Provision for impairment of receivables

The policy for the provision for impairment of receivables
of the Group is based on the evaluation of collectability
and ageing analysis of accounts and on management'’s
judgement. A considerable amount of judgement is required
in assessing the ultimate realisation of these receivables,
including the current creditworthiness, the collateral security
and the past collection history of each client. If the financial
conditions of customers of the Group, on whose account
provision for impairment has been made, were improved
and no impairment of their ability to make payments were
noted, reversal of provision for impairment may be required.

Provision for inventories

In determining the amount of allowance required for
obsolete and slow-moving inventories, the Group would
evaluate ageing analysis of inventories and compare the
carrying value of inventories to their respective net realisable
value. A considerable amount of judgement is required
in determining such allowance. If conditions which have
impact on the net realisable value of inventories deteriorate,
additional allowances may be required.

Valuation of mining right

The directors use their judgement in selecting an appropriate
valuation technique for the Group’s mining right upon
the acquisition of subsidiaries during the year ended 30
June 2012. The fair value of the mining right is estimated
by an independent professional valuer based on recent
comparable transactions undertaken in the Mainland China
which generally represent the best estimate of the market
value of the mining right.
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES
AND JUDGEMENTS (continued)

Amortisation of mining right and depreciation of
mining structures

Mining right and mining structures are amortised/
depreciated on the units of production method based
on the total proven and probable mineral reserves of the
ore mines. The directors of the Company exercised their

judgement in estimating the total proven and probable

reserves of the ore mines.

Valuation of convertible notes

The directors use their judgement in selecting an appropriate
valuation technique for the Group’s convertible notes which
are not quoted in an active market. Valuation techniques
commonly used by market practitioners are applied. The fair
values of convertible notes are estimated by independent
professional valuers based on Binomial Option Pricing
Model. The fair values of convertible notes vary with
different variables of certain subjective assumptions. Any
change in these variables so adopted may materially affect
the estimation of the fair values of convertible notes.

Estimate of current tax and deferred tax

The Group is subject to taxation in various jurisdictions.
Significant judgement is required in determining the amount
of the provision for taxation and the timing of payment
of the related taxation. Where the final tax outcome is
different from the amounts that were initially recorded,
such differences will impact the income tax and deferred tax
provisions in the periods in which such determination are
made.

Tl
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES
AND JUDGEMENTS (continued)

Estimate of fair value of unlisted warrants granted

The fair value of warrants granted was calculated using
the Binomial Option Pricing Model based on the Group
management'’s significant inputs into the pricing model such
as the expected life of warrants granted, based on exercise
restrictions and behavioural consideration, the volatility of
share price, weighted average share prices, and exercise
price of the warrants granted. Changes in these inputs may
materially affect the fair value estimates.

SEGMENT INFORMATION

The chief operating decision-maker has been identified as
the Company’s executive directors. The executive directors
of the Company have identified the Group's four services
(2011: three) lines as operating segments.

The operating segments were determined based on the
reports reviewed by the Company’s executive directors that
are used to assess performance and allocate resources.



Annual Report 2012 4§
Notes to the Financial Statements m BT8R 5 i+

For the year ended 30 June 2012
HE_ZT S A=1THILFE

H GEER ) 5. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)
B g

KEESRER HESE RREH RE &4
Design, manufacturing,
marketing and trading
of fine jewellery Property
and diamonds investment Mining operation Investment Consolidated
2012 200 2012 2011 2012 20N 212 2011 212 200
T TEr TEr TEr TEr TEr TEr TEr FEr TER
HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS000 HK$'000  HKS'000

ABRA Seqment revenue:
BEFNRER/ Sales tolevente from

KEBNAER exteral parties U0 969835 - - 38 - 4860 3666 955712 973500
et Seqment results 28206 29,509 1613 12750 355509 - (1154300 (2985 269,898 39274
WD AER Z7M Share-based compensation (35,339) -
AOREY Unallocated expenses (8642)  (6,126)
BENK Finance costs (9293)  (2,346)
EEBEARRE Share of results of associates ) (7
Eib 2R Share of resuts of jointly

BExE controlled enities (1352) 5359
RAEHRaRA Profit before income tax 2500 35387

—
N
ul
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B SERRER#) 5. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)
EH
HEEHRER IS Y 30 RE fa
Design, manufacturing,
marketing and trading
of fine jewellery Property
and diamonds investment Mining operation Investment Consolidated
2012 2011 2012 2011 2012 2011 2012 2011 2012 2011
Fér TEr fEr TEr TEr TEr TEr TEr TEr TEn
HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000 HKS'000  HKS000  AKS'000  HKS'000 HKS'000 HK$000
AHAE Segment assets 428105 449995 453672 446599 1127358 - 48919 153110 2,058,054 1,049,704
RBERRER Interests in associates -3
RREHER ES Inerests n jointy
controlled entities 484,65 417326
RERELEE Cash and cash equivalents 85236 49867
BiERELE Deferred tax assets 609 936
AARLTEE Unallocated corporate assets 178 178
bElE Total assets 2,634,216 1,528,734
PELL Segment labiites 18,011 179347 2086 5159 7579 - 55209 51198 301290 235704
grEs Bank loans ! 23513
ERSEERAE Due to ultimate holding
company 1811 1871
RRRREHER Loan from a controling
shareholder 105,000 -
HEERE Provision for tax 10411 16367
ERHERR Deferred tax abiltes 238431 16
AARAAEE Unallocated corporate
liabiltes 1417 493
Elerd Total ibiltes 988,598 495,596
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I EER® 5. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)
Fit EE
ERREE
HEEHRER I FREi & Ga
Design, manufacturing,
marketing and trading
of fine jewellery Property
and diamonds investment Mining operation Investment Consolidated
2012 2011 2012 2011 212 2011 2012 2011 2012 2011
Fér FEr FEr FEr TAr AT TAr TEr TEr TEn
HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HK$000
HthpEEm : Other segment information
0% BRRAENE Depreciation of property,
plant and equipment (6,480  (6,808) - B (115) - - - (7632 (6345
THERELN Amortsation of land use rights~ (109) (107 - - (13 - - - (1430 (107)
R Amortisation of mining right - - - - (319) - - - (319) -
RANE A TES Change in fair value of
investment property - - 165 12791 - - - - 165 12791
ERBEARENS Imputed interest income arising
BERAEES from inital recognition of
EEHEHRA amount due to a
related company - - - - 545 - - - 545 -
ESMIAZATE Fair value (loss)/gain on
(B8) /s derivative finandi
instruments (286) 624 - - - - - - (286) 624
EATESABRL Fair value (loss)/gain on financia
SHBEATHE assets at fair value through
(B18) /M profitor loss - - - - - - 38) 2316 (238) 2316
REBHEAR 2T Excess of interest in the net
DIEENFATEL fair value of the net identifiable
EREARELR AN assets over the fair value of
ATENSS the total cost of acquisttion
of subsidiaries - - - - 364797 - - - 364,797 -
AR EREERE Fair value loss on redemption
LATHEER options of convertble notes - - - - (1519 - (138 %9 (87 (259
HENE BRRFZEZ  Gainfloss) on disposal of
Y/ (B8) property, plant and
equipment 70 (124) - - (345) - - - @) (124
WEMHENESHEED  Loss on derivative contract for
fTETERNER acqisition of available-for-sale
financial assets - - - - - - - (1,049 - (1,049
AL E S RAE Impairment loss
HEEE of available-for-sale
financial assets - - - - - - (118361)  (7,864) (118,361) (7.804)
KAk ESEED Reversal of provision for
long-term receivables 500 - - - - - - - 500 -
BHRYGERE Provision for trade receivables  (756)  (768) = = - = = - (756) (769)
FERE Provision for inventories (1612) (1,59 - = = = - - (1612 (159)
HEKA Interest income - - - - - - ™ w8 3 938
REFRBNHEE Addtions to non-current
Segments assets 3128 7798 1,009 18601 7,321 - - - 1458 26399
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SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)

The Group’s segment revenue from external customers
and its non-current assets (other than financial instruments
and deferred tax assets) are divided into the following
geographical areas.

REIREEZWA
Revenue from
external customers

2012 2011
FE T FE T
HK$°000 HK$'000
B8 (EBEL) Hong Kong (domicile) 165,215 162,897
b= North America 267,215 176,673
BN Kz HR R Europe and Middle East 507,973 624,553
E bR Other locations 15,309 9,378
&5 Total 955,712 973,501
FRBEE

Non-current assets
2012 2011
FET FE7T
HK$000 HK$'000
BB (E8EaH) Hong Kong (domicile) 462,735 455,861
e United Kingdom 5,742 6,179
B A Mainland China 1,647,360 460,096
H bt [= Other locations 103 134
AET Total 2,115,940 922,270

BRI ERBIRTP 21
FmE D - ERBEE(ERT
A NRIENIRE ERRIN) 2 132
NERREEEBRMELME
4 o

WITEFEEASE T BMEL
REE  HAARKEZ BT
i o

The geographical location of customers is based on the
location of the customers. The geographical location of the
non-current assets (other than financial instruments and
deferred tax assets) is based on the physical location of the
assets.

The executive directors determine the Group is domiciled in
Hong Kong, which is the location of the Group’s principal
office.
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I EER® 5. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)
FEEFER Information about major customers
REEFEEP (HRUKA10% Revenue from each of the major customers, which
A E3E) B A B AT ¢ amounted to 10% or more of the total revenue, is set out
below:
2012 2011
FET TFET
HK$’000 HK$°000
BEH Customer A 234,120 312,432
BERZ Customer B 112,251 N/A
EFR Customer C 98,271 N/A
oo s 6. REVENUE
35 (ENANE B > A 258 ) $a 4] Revenue, which is also the Group’s turnover, represents
@L C MBS MEDER SR the net invoiced value of goods sold, after allowances for
ZEEZEE A WAERE - F returns and trade discounts, gross rental income, interest
BWAREE 7B A o income, and dividend income from investments.
AEBUWZEZ DT ¢ An analysis of the Group’s revenue is as follows:
2012 2011
FET FET
HK$'000 HK$'000
HESmMm Sale of goods 947,021 969,835
HESE Sale of gold ores 3,831 =
A B A Interest income 392 988
& 2 R BIA Dividend income from investments 4,468 2,678
955,712 973,501

B
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7. FINANCE COSTS

2012 2011
FHET FET
HK$’000 HK$'000
2 Eﬁi : Interest charges on:
RITE K> Bank loans*
*ﬁﬁ/\ﬂi NEEEE — wholly repayable within five years 7,939 6,480
TR R IR A B Interest expenses on loan from
EORAIIENE a controlling shareholder 1,137 =
FE - B8 A R FRIB AT Imputed interest expenses arising from
EXHEENSRX amount due to a related company 141 =
AT AR 15 2 e B Imputed interest expenses on
FEMAXZ (FzEFE=+m) convertible notes (note 34) 4,552 974
BIEER A Total borrowing costs 13,769 7,454
/ﬁ REMEERNEZ Less: Bank loan interest capitalised in
RITE A& investment property (note 17)
il a£+t) (4,335) (5,108)
9,434 2,346
@ B THERITERZ @ E K * This represents the finance costs on bank loans,

- BIERES R Fﬁ
HiErEEERHE
Tﬁzziﬁi@ﬂ%%’&z,@liﬁ%
R REBE_ZT——FX
A=+RHIEFE  B8&
ERMEBIGER 2 SRITE R
A B £7,939,000/% 7t (=
T —— 4 : 6,480,000/
JT) °

including term loans which contain a repayment
on demand clause in accordance with the agreed
scheduled repayments dates set out in the loan
agreements. For the year ended 30 June 2012, the
interest on bank loans which contain a repayment on
demand clause amounted to HK$7,939,000 (2011:
HK$6,480,000).
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8. PROFIT BEFORE INCOME TAX

2012 2011
FET FAET
HK$'000 HK$'000
AEERAETRANRA The Group's profit before income tax is
e/ GEA) AT arrived at after charging/(crediting):
HEER:
BEHFERA Cost of inventories sold 805,715 858,338
WE - BEREETE Depreciation of property, plant and
(ME+H) equipment (note 15) 7,632 6,845
T fb AR gE (FEE1-75) Amortisation of land use rights (note 16) 1,430 107
R (=) Amortisation of mining right (note 18) 316 =
BELCERELHRET Y Minimum lease payments under operating leases
REAENK on land and buildings 6,399 5,847
ZEME < Auditor's remuneration 1,034 922
FERE Provision for inventories* 1,612 1,599
JERT = A AR A RER Imputed interest income arising from
FEE R EEF S WA initial recognition of amount due to
a related company (5,455) -
WAFEFABR SREE Fair value loss/(gain) on financial assets
WATEER/ (W) at fair value through profit or loss 2,328 (2.,316)
RESESE) 3 Fair value loss on redemption options of
~rFEEE(HE=1THE) convertible notes (note 34) 2,857 259
MTESBTAATERSE/ (W)  Fair value loss/(gain) on derivative financial instruments
—RHEEAH — forward currency contracts 286 (624)
JEIE B8 Net foreign exchange losses 3,076 388
NN A £y R E Impairment loss on interests in associates 2,136 -
HEME  BEkEEEE Loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment 275 124
BUT R B Government grants (132) (330)
B 2 GRS Provision for trade receivables 756 768
R ARG IR B (82 Reversal of provision for long-term receivables (500) =
B /BB 2 B4R s A e 2 (PfE42.2) Gain on deregistration of subsidiaries (note 42.2) (714) (4,609)
WA HEEESRMEERDITE  Loss on derivative contract for acquisition of
TAEHER(HE=1tm) available-for-sale financial assets (note 34) = 1,049
FEE R B SR Write back of loans from non-controlling interests = (1,125)

* FRZFEBE T AL * Provision for inventories for the year was included
crmbmkz [$HEK in “cost of sales” on the face of the consolidated
KIA o statement of comprehensive income.

G BT B Ty BT P E #
TEHINESEEAE
B TR AEE R
MEBAREZRETHE
EE - BRI Y E KB
TR AR EIR -

Government grants have been received from JTF9m
BIEmEINESLBEEIER for one of the Group's
subsidiaries in which its business activities carried on
in this area. There are no unfulfilled conditions or
contingencies related to these grants.

—
w
==
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N IBEHEX 9. INCOME TAX EXPENSE
EBNNEBHIIARNEEREE Hong Kong profits tax has been provided at the rate of
BEAE 2 (h AT I AR B0 AR 7 =& 16.5% (2011: 16.5%) on the estimated assessable profits
16.5% (ZZ——4F : 16.5%) &t arising in Hong Kong during the year. Taxes on profits
& o H bt @ FESREL S A 2§18 assessable elsewhere have been calculated at the applicable
IRAEEEE 2 @R alE R IR rates of tax prevailing in the jurisdictions in which the Group
REAC HEGFE - WRERZE operates, based on existing legislation, interpretations and
AEMIE 2 BRITER] - RERIE practices in respect thereof.

BIYE ©
2012 2011
FET FAET
HK$'000 HK$'000
BVERART I8 Current tax
BB Hong Kong 3,528 4,962
HREE AR HH People’s Republic of China 559 -
NEFE (ZHR) /TR iE (Over)Under-provision in prior years  (4,714) 793
(627) 5,755
FEHIE (ME=1Th) Deferred tax (note 35)
REEZ Current year 3,121 (109)
FriSHif < 4258 Total income tax expense 2,494 5,646
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9.

INCOME TAX EXPENSE (continued)

Reconciliation between income tax expense and accounting

$a HHH R

profit at applicable tax rates:

2012 2011
FET FETL
HK$'000 HK$'000
BRI R AR A Profit before income tax 215,020 35,387
BR AT 3 A G M TR A FE B Tax on profit before income tax, calculated at
165% (ZF——F : 165%) 5 & the statutory rate of 16.5% (2011: 16.5%) 35,478 5,839
REMAEEREE 2 B AR Effect of different tax rates of subsidiaries operating
TRAMEzFE in other jurisdictions 30,428 (113)
AN ES 5 Tax effect of share of results of associates )] 128
ElEEFZHERES Tax effect of share of results of
ZHiBEE jointly controlled entities 23 (884)
AP H e RBTE Tax effect of non-deductible expenses 29,132 4,5%
EBERRRAZRKTE Tax effect of non-taxable income (94,131) 4,210)
/ﬁ\ﬁ BEAAEFERKERE 27552 Tax effect of prior years' tax losses utilised this year (375) (1,201)
BEREEERR Derecognition of deferred tax assets 3,477 (109)
AERATBEE B2 Tax effect of tax losses not recognised 2,934 807
WEFE (%) /A REE (Over)/Under-provision in prior years (4,718) 793
AEEHERY Tax charge for the year 2,494 5,646

ail ;ﬁﬁﬂ?fﬁﬁk%ﬁiﬁ'ﬁ
|

RNRAEEB AEASERE & A
214,894,000 7L (=& — —
T : 33,453,000 7L) F © AR
A BREFEREZERAR
136,175,000/8 70 (=T ——F :
34 %15,388,000/8 7T) °

10.

PROFIT ATTRIBUTABLE TO THE
OWNERS OF THE COMPANY

Of the consolidated profit attributable to the owners of the
Company of HK$214,894,000 (2011: HK$33,453,000), a
loss of HK$136,175,000 (2011: a profit of HK$5,388,000)
has been dealt with in the financial statements of the
Company.
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11. DIVIDENDS

(a) Dividends payable to the owners of the Company

&8 attributable to the year:
2012 2011
FET FET
HK$'000 HK$°000
RH-BREBERTET Interim — Nil (2011: HK$0.001)
—Z=—— :0001%5T) per ordinary share - 3,128

BEFEg T ERRNBES
T——FA=THEKZ=
T——F R NA=THILF
&2 REARR B °

by AFEEHEREXNZ
M BEERNART

The directors do not recommend the payment of a
final dividend for the years ended 30 June 2012 and

30 June 2011.

(b) Dividends payable to the owners of the Company

attributable to the previous financial year, approved

A ARE and paid during the year:
2012 2011
FET FET
HK$'000 HK$'000
REFEEHEREZNZ Final dividend in respect of the
E—MHEE 2 REKRE previous financial year, approved
BlRERRTETT and paid during the year, of Nil per
—T——F: 8K ordinary share (2011: HK$0.001 per
I FP0.0018 7T) ordinary share) = 3,128
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+= -BRAEF 12. EARNINGS PER SHARE
KRaHEE AT E A & # The calculations of basic and diluted earnings per share
SEAF TR TSI E attributable to the owners of the Company are based on the

following data:

2012 2011
FEr FET
HK$'000 HK$'000
RRATHEE AR Profit attributable to the owners of the Company 214,894 33,453
ARBREBENESH SRS Imputed interest expenses on convertible notes 4,552 =
AR EER AL ATEFE  Fair value loss on embedded options
of convertible notes 2,857 -
R AR ERNEREFSFAX & Profit attributable to owners of the Company
RRERERAREATE before imputed interest expenses on convertible
BERIR A AR notes and fair value loss on embedded
"B AR options of the convertible notes 222,303 33,453
2012 2011
RHEE
Number of shares
Ut EGRERZF 2 Weighted average number of
TR N ordinary shares for the purpose
of basic earnings per share 4,551,252,566 3,128,303,340

FETRREE SR BEHE  Effect of dilutive potential ordinary

TR 2 2 (FEEG) shares in respect of the unlisted
warrants (note (i) - 39,333,977
HRBRERI R EEEE Effect of dilutive potential ordinary shares
T w2 22 (M) in respect of convertible notes (note (i)  1,371,015,036 -
et E B REEERF 2 AR Weighted average number of
INHEF ordinary shares for the purpose of
diluted earnings per share 5,922,267,602 3,167,637,317

—
W
a1
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+= - BilREMN#

Wi
()

(ii)

RBE-_ZT——FXA
=tHILEFERN Sk
SEAF AR B I &R IE
EREkRETE RE
BIELMRBREFSE?
R E -

REBEEZ_ZT——F <A
=tHLEFER LT
R EENFED KB
EEREERFMETEH -

REBEZEZ2_ZT—_F,\H
=tHILEFERN Sk
BAMNMESBEDERARA
A A A B E N A
214,894,00058 7T (4% 782
VA f2 B 1] 2 % 22 95 ) R 55
B X & Al 2 A% AR R
AH#EAFEESE (nE
F o+ AR R DA I R AT 42 AR
ERGETFERE RN
#£222,303,0007% 1) & H
A FE R4S T2 T AR AN
e SF 15 £415,922,267,602 %
(BN EARZEF & F
Fir FA &9 3 38 A% 04 7 15 X
4,551,252,5660% It 71 & &
WHYIR A AR R IR AR
TESERNEEmED
2A#£1,371,015,0360%) °

RBE_ZT——F <A
Z+tHIEFER AR
NEIRLIES L 5 E=Til
B FF SN - AR
ZEREFESRELRAF
EREEER  IRFHE
BSE TR A A 1 RS o
At #EERAFNNE
BMIOERBEE-_ZT——
FRNAZTHLEEFEER
ViNYNECI R R RN K |
33,453,0007% 7T A R E R
FRERBFGTEFR A
B3 A% N BE 5 &R
3,128,303,3400% It 5 1A &
2T ——FA=1H
IFFERANBREEIELETR
AR REERAETTE T EH A
#£39,333,9770% °

12. EARNINGS PER SHARE (continued)

Notes:

(i)

(ii)

For the year ended 30 June 2012, the computation of
diluted earnings per share did not assume the exercise
of the unlisted warrants as the exercise of the unlisted
warrants was anti-dilutive.

For the year ended 30 June 2011, the effect of the
unlisted warrants was included in the calculation of
diluted earnings per share.

For the year ended 30 June 2012, diluted earnings
per share amounts is based on the profit for the
year attributable to owners of the Company of
HK$214,894,000 and adjusted to reflect the imputed
interest expenses on the convertible notes and fair
value loss on the embedded options of convertible
notes, where applicable, after adjustments to reflect the
effect of deemed exercise or conversion of convertible
notes, which was HK$222,303,000 and on the adjusted
weighted average of 5,922,267,602 ordinary shares
outstanding during the year, being the weighted
average of number of ordinary shares of 4,551,252,566
used in basic earnings per share calculation and
adjusted for the effect of deemed exercise or conversion
of convertible notes existing during the year of
1,371,015,036.

For the year ended 30 June 2011, because of the
diluted earnings per share amount increased when
taking convertible note into account, the convertible
note had an anti-dilutive effect on the basic earnings
per share for the year and were ignored in the
calculation of diluted earnings per share. Therefore,
diluted earnings per share amounts were based on the
profit attributable to the owners of the Company of
HK$33,453,000 and the weighted average number of
ordinary shares of 3,128,303,340 used in basic earnings
per share calculation and adjusted for the effect of
deemed exercise of unlisted warrants existing during
the year ended 30 June 2011 of 39,333,977.
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+=-EBERBHEA X ( 13. EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSES
EEESM e — M (INCLUDING DIRECTORS’
+m) EMOLUMENTS - NOTE 14)
2012 2011
FET FET
HK$’000 HK$'000

I& %% 2B Wages, salaries, allowances and

EWH &= benefits in kind 78,881 64,908
IRIRE AR — Pension costs —
FETE kAT El defined contribution plans 6,925 5,665
85,806 70,573
+m - EEMEESREIER 14. DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION
A B Z F M AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT'’S
EMOLUMENTS
ki ERAREB N FHEGIE Directors’ remuneration disclosed pursuant to the Listing
—BATIEBECESHEW Rules and Section 161 of the Hong Kong Companies
T Ordinance is as follows:
2012 2011
FET FAEIT
HK$"000 HK$'000
we Fees 350 396
e REEREWHZ Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind 5,964 5,807
1E4T Bonus 770 461
RRETEI R Retirement scheme contributions 274 249
7,358 6,913




Notes to the Financial Statements m BT8R S Mz

For the year ended 30 June 2012
HE-ZT——FRA=THILFE

&

T+ -EEMERSREE 14. DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION
ANEZ 5N =) AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT’S
EMOLUMENTS (continued)

(a) HEzE_TE——FK=_F (a) The emoluments of each director, on a named basis,
——FNA=THLHF for the years ended 30 June 2012 and 2011 are set
B REREETINEE out below:

EZ2MeHIBT
2012
§4 20
RENFE BIK
Salaries, HETES
allowances Retirement
#¢ and benefits i scheme fit
Fees in kind Bonus contributions Total
AT A7 TE7 T#Er T#r
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
JTES: Executive directors:
REZ Chan Sing Chuk, Charles - 3,540 380 165 4,085
%3 Cheng Siu Yin, Shirley - 948 130 43 1,121
REH Chan Wai Kel, Vicki - 600 120 2 747
REL Chan Wiai Lap, Victor - 876 140 39 1,055
FHTES: Non-executive directors:
ELSHGE) Cao Kuangyu (note () 50 - = - 50
il Fang Gang 100 - - - 100
BIFHTES: Independent non-executive directors:
RBR Yu Shiu Tin, Paul 50 - - - 50
R imtE Chan Ping Kuen, Derek 50 - - - 50
i Sze lrons 50 - - - 50
RiE Cheung Chi Fai, Frank 50 - - - 50
@it Total 350 5,964 770 274 7,358
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T+ -EEMERSREE 14. DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION
AEZHEM 2 AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT’S
EMOLUMENTS (continued)

@ #HEZT—Z—_FRK=ZFT (@) The emoluments of each director, on a named basis,
—— FNA=THLHF for the years ended 30 June 2012 and 2011 are set
E o IREZ R HRE out below: (continued)

EZMeESN AT : (&)
2011
e 2
RENF= RIK
Salaries, FEES
allowances Retirement
#%  and benefits ta scheme st
Fees in kind Bonus  contributions Total

T TET TET T TAT
HK$000  HK$'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000

HTES: Executive directors:
REE Chan Sing Chuk, Charles - 3,468 288 155 3,911
%3 Cheng Siu Yin, Shirley - 911 74 40 1,025
REH Chan Wai Kei, Vicki - 504 36 2 562
R Chan Wai Lap, Victor - 924 63 R 1,019
FoTES: Non-executive directors;
ERT Cao Kuangyu 100 - - - 100
J Bl (P=EG) Fang Gang (note (i) 9% - - - 9%
BIFHTES Independent non-executive directors:
RBX Yu Shiu Tin, Paul 50 - - - 50
B imiE Chan Ping Kuen, Derek 50 - - - 50
iy Sze lrons 50 - - - 50
RiE Cheung Chi Fai, Frank 50 - - - 50
@t Total 3% 5,807 461 249 6,913
FAMESEREXRE There was no arrangement under which a director
WMEERNE 2 25 waived or agreed to waive any remuneration during
the years.
FAN - AEEWEAES During the years, no emoluments were paid by the
X HEABN & fE A AN A S Group to the directors as an inducement to join, or
RINAZ S B 2 2@ sk upon joining the Group, or as compensation for loss
BERS AR (5 o of office.

E
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H

+H - -EEMERSREIE
ANEZ 5N =)

@ BE_Z——_FR=-ZF
——&FXA=1+HILF
B REREETINEE
EZ2MeENIAT : (&)

Hiet

0  ERTFEHFEAR
AIBERITEE - i
—F——%+=A
=+ REER-

(ii) FRIEEZE AR
NRIFEHITES
- —ZFtA
+HBBERK -

(b) HUBSHFALT

FANRMESHFATEE
ME(ZE——F: =8)
B HMesFBEER L
X o T=%(ZF——
F MB)WIIFES &

14. DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION
AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT’S
EMOLUMENTS (continued)

(a) The emoluments of each director, on a named basis,
for the years ended 30 June 2012 and 2011 are set
out below: (continued)

Notes:

(i) Cao Kuangyu resigned as a non-executive
director of the Company with effect from 30
December 2011.

(ii) Fang Gang was appointed as a non-executive
director of the Company with effect from 15
July 2010.

(b) Five highest paid individuals

The five highest paid individuals during the year
included two (2011: three) directors, details of
whose emoluments are set out above. Details of
the emoluments of the remaining three (2011: two)
non-directors, highest paid individuals are as follows:

SHATZHMEFBT
T
2012 2011
FET FET
HK$’000 HK$°000
4~ 2BL K Salaries, allowances and
B = benefits in kind 4,045 2,718
RRETEIfEER Retirement scheme contributions 389 12
TEAT Bonus 1,169 818
5,603 3,548
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T+ -EEMERSREE 14. DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION

ANEZEHM = AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT’S
EMOLUMENTS (continued)
(b)) HENUBRSHFALE) (b)  Five highest paid individuals (continued)
IFE= 2 m # AL B The number of non-directors, highest paid
SN T T EE 2 individuals whose emoluments fell within the
AEAT : following bands is as follows:
AEHH
Number of individuals
2012 2011

1,000,001/ TE HK$1,000,001 to HK$1,500,000

1,500,000/ 7T 1 -
1,500,001/ 7T = HK$1,500,001 to HK$2,000,000

2,000,000/ 7T 1 2
2,000,001 T2 HK$2,000,001 to HK$2,500,000

2,500,000/ 7T 1 -

3 2

FR - REBWER =2 During the years, no emoluments were paid by
—E——F  WB) RS the Group to the three (2011: two) highest paid
AT ERIES1ES individuals as an inducement to join or upon joining
MMAS AR INAZRE B 2 the Group, or as compensation for loss of office.
SRR SR (E o

S
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+& Y% BERERE 15. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
AEE Group
Bi-K8-
ERAE
BERER Furniture,
ST A FE  fixtures and
&L Buidingsand — FREEE R#2  cquipment  EEIR
Leasehold  leasehold Mining  Plantand  and motor Construction ]
land improvements  structures  machinery vehicles in progress Total
AT B BT B TAT BT AT
HKS000  HKS000  HKSO000  HKS000  HKS000  HKS000  HKS(000
RZE-ZELA-HAt1July 2010
BE Cost 6,160 79,600 - 59,538 48908 - 194206
ZAMERAE  Acumulated depreciation
and impairment (2,613) (44.665) - (52,151) (45,437) - (144,866)
BEFE Net carrying amount 3,547 34,935 - 7387 3471 - 49,340
HEZE-—EXH  Yearended 30 June 2011
ZHELEE
ERE A Opening net carmying amount 3547 34935 - 7381 3471 - 49340
WE—FMBAT  Acquisiton of a subsidiary
(H&42.1(0)) (note 42.1(o) - - - - 66 - 66
TE Additions - 1,182 - 16 6,460 - 7798
e Disposals - ) = (67) (50) = (124)
g Depreciation (101) (3,110) - (%46) (2,689) - (6,845)
BiAE Exchange realignment - 1753 - 308 2 - 2,063
EREEFE Closing net cartying amount 3446 34,753 - 6,838 7,261 - 52,298
ﬁé:f——ﬁf—\ﬁ At 30 June 2011
=TH
BE Cost 6,160 83,183 - 60,582 55,054 - 204,979
ZMERAE  Acumulated depreciation
and impaiment 2714 (48.430) - (53,74) (47,793) - (152681)
BEFE Net carrying amount 3,446 34,753 - 6,838 7,261 - 52,298
HEZE-ZEXH  Yearended 30 June 2012
ZHELEE
ENEEYE Opening net carmying amount 3,046 34,753 - 6,838 7,261 - 52,298
YEHELR Acqisitio of subsidiaries
(Pt3E42.100)) (note 42.1(a) - 11,685 31,988 2513 1,582 12210 60,038
hE Additions - 1,695 - 247 238 6,122 10449
mE Disposals - (24) - (161) (195) - (380)
B)/(t) Transfer infout) - 807 9,303 624 52 (11316) -
ik} Deprecation (102) (3502 (13) (1452) (2.563) - (7632)
ERBE Eichange realignment - 399 100 126 1 38 664
EREEFE Closing net carrying amount 3344 45813 41,378 8,735 9,053 7,114 115,437
m:?:ﬁ/‘-\ﬁ At 30 June 2012
=1H
RE Cost 6,160 96,358 41,391 50,812 56,431 7114 267,266
ZREREE  Acumulated depreciation
and impairment (2.816) (50,545) (13) (51,077) (47,378) - (151,829)
KEFE Net carrying amount 3344 45813 41378 8,735 9,053 7114 115,437
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+TE-ME - BERERRE 15. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

(&) (continued)
KEE (&) Group (continued)
RZEBE——FA=1H ' K& At 30 June 2012, the Group's certain leasehold land
| AR TEDF [E 48 85 4920,141,00078 and buildings with aggregate net carrying amounts of
7T (ZF——% 20,613,000 approximately HK$20,141,000 (2011: HK$20,613,000)
TL) 2 A& THEE T RIEFHE were pledged to secure general banking facilities granted to
HUBRRR TAEE 2 —RIRTT the Group (note 30).

EEME=1) -

R-ZZE——FA=+H 85 At 30 June 2012, the Group's leasehold land and buildings,
R~ HERZERN 2 ANEE included in property, plant and equipment, with a net
AR5 {8 43,388,000 L (=& carrying amount of HK$3,388,000 (2011: HK$3,499,000)
——4F : 3,499,000/87T) 2 HE are situated in Hong Kong and are held under a medium-
T RAEFAIRN BB I LA HATE term lease.

ERE -
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T8 L b fE

16. LAND USE RIGHTS

REEE

Group
2012 2011
FET FAET
HK$’000 HK$'000
FYIRHEFE Opening net carrying amount 3,813 3,920
U BE BT &8 A 7] (Fff5E42.1(a))  Acquisition of subsidiaries (note 42.1(a)) 39,319 =
FAHEHEEA Amortisation charge for the year (1,430) (107)
ME 5, 35 B Exchange realignment 122 =
FREMEFE Closing net carrying amount 41,824 3,813

AEER L ERE ERRTE
NREMREFR - EREFED

The Group’s interests in land use rights represent prepaid
operating lease payments and their net carrying amounts

MR - are analysed as follows:
rEE
Group
2012 2011
FET FET
HK$'000 HK$'000
REBAINFE : Outside Hong Kong, held on:
A+FNUERHTAE  Long-term lease of over 50 years 250 236
+EZRTFFH AL Medium-term lease of between 10 to 50 years 41,574 3,577
41,824 3,813

RZZE—Z—FA=+H &&
AR [ {8 #8 %8 491,485,000/ 7T
(ZZ——%:1,919,000/87T) Z
BT i AR IR AR R
FAREE Z —RRITEE (M
=1) -

At 30 June 2012, the Group’s certain land use rights with
aggregate carrying amounts of HK$1,485,000 (2011:
HK$1,919,000) were pledged to secure general banking
facilities granted to the Group (note 30).
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+t - BEWE 17.

AEEAEERETAFE - A
RS HEIRER HER
HERBERRKEMERERZ
A - BEARFER
IR EMERERAR -

FINGA BN 2 EEES

INVESTMENT PROPERTY

All of the Group’s property interests held under operating
leases to earn rentals, for capital appreciation purposes or
property that is being constructed or developed for future
use as investment property are measured using the fair value
model and are classified and accounted for as investment
property.

Movements of the carrying amounts presented in the

LA an T consolidated statement of financial position can be
summarised as follows:

rEH

Group
2012 2011
FET FET
HK$000 HK$'000
REF 2 REE Carrying amount at beginning of the year 446,500 410,000
NE Additions 1,009 18,601
BRI Z IRITEZF B (B5E+) Bank loan interest capitalised (note 7) 4,335 5,108
NHERARES 2 )F W= Net gain from fair value adjustments 1,656 12,791
REKRZRAME Carrying amount at end of the year 453,500 446,500

R-FE——FRA=+H" &
AEEMEZERNENB B
18,510,000 7t (Z & —— 4 :
14,175,000/ 7T) °

RZE—ZF~A=+H" &K
& B BR @ & ¥ A453,500,0007%
gL (ZZ ——4 : 446,500,000/%
TL) B E W E B IR - DABR
BETAEENRITER (H=E
=1) -

As at 30 June 2012, included in investment property
was interest capitalised of HK$18,510,000 (2011:
HK$14,175,000).

As at 30 June 2012, the Group’'s investment property
with a carrying amount of HK$453,500,000 (2011:
HK$446,500,000) was pledged to secure a bank borrowing
granted to the Group (note 30).

—
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T+t -HBEWFE® 17. INVESTMENT PROPERTY (continued)
MZEBE——F,A=1H ' K& At 30 June 2012, the Group’s investment property is
B2 REYHEMNNRES YUK situated in Hong Kong and is held under long-term lease.
HFHERE °
R-_E——FXA=1+H" & At 30 June 2012, the Group’s investment property was
EEZREMERB LG revalued by CCA, an independent firm of chartered
BEEE=TIE A FME LE R surveyors, at HK$453,500,000 (2011: HK$446,500,000) on
R@GEE  Z2ERLUMEZTE an open market existing use basis by reference to market
EH {418 5453,500,0008 7T (= prices for similar properties. A fair value gain on revaluation
T ——4F : 446,500,000/ 7T) © of HK$1,656,000 (2011: HK$12,791,000) arising therefrom
BEFFEMELEZATFEK was credited to profit or loss for the year.
#01,656,000/8 7L (—ZF——%F:

12,791,000 7T) A FE 2B
+/\ - IRTEHE 18. MINING RIGHT

rEE

Group
2012 2011
FET FET
HK$'000 HK$'000
FEYREFHE Opening net carrying amount = =
U BE BT /8 A 7] (i 7£42.1(a))  Acquisition of subsidiaries (note 42.1(a)) 1,017,663 =
FREHE A Amortisation charge for the year (316) -
PE X R Exchange realignment 3,177 -
FRIRME FHE Closing net carrying amount 1,020,524 =
REAE Gross carrying amount 1,020,840 -
R Accumulated amortisation (316) =
AREDFER Net carrying amount 1,020,524 =
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+h - RMBARZERS 19. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES

KA T
Company
2012 2011
FET FHET
HK$000 HK$'000
JE ETRRD - KA Unlisted shares, at cost 122,076 122,076
HEELHE Deemed capital contribution 173,710 173,710
BRI B A RFRE —3B  Loan form part of the net investment
PHER (K5E42.1@)) in subsidiaries (note 42.1(a)) 424,148 =
BB Provision for impairment (30,237) (30,237)
689,697 265,549
NS B Due from subsidiaries 499,307 480,822
DERIERBEELZ Provision against amounts due from
FEUL I B A B3R IE 2 B subsidiaries classified as non-current assets (102,000) (102,000)
397,307 378,822
1,087,004 644,371
DEBRBEEZ Due from subsidiaries classified
N NG E S as current assets 212,303 173,772
DRERMEEEZ EW Provision against amounts due from
N ENGIE O 3 subsidiaries classified as current assets (113,125) =
99,178 173,772
NEARBARBZ Due to subsidiaries classified
AN ENEI B as current liabilities (7,426) =
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H

+hA - B AR Z# & 19. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

(#)
FEUHI B A RIFE R E R 2 & The movement on the provision for impairment of amounts
;R : due from subsidiaries are as follows:
RAFE]
Company
2012 2011
FET FET
HK$000 HK$'000
REF) 2 hEE Balance at beginning of the year 102,000 102,000
B HERR B E 15 Impairment losses recognised 113,125 =
RERZ GREE Balance at end of the year 215,125 102,000
RNB AR ZESTHEEE - ¢ The balances with subsidiaries are unsecured, interest-free
B URBENGEE R REK and not repayable within the next twelve months from the
+-@EARNERE  HETBEIEBHA reporting date, except for amounts due from subsidiaries
EENEEE RN B AR ZIE of HK$99,178,000 (2011: HK$173,772,000) and amounts
£ 899,178,000 T (= &F —— due to subsidiaries of HK$7,426,000 (2011: Nil) which are
F 1 173,772,000/ 7T ) K FEAF B repayable on demand.
BAR)FKIAT,426,0008 7L (= F
——F E) o
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+hA - B AR Z# & 19. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

()
RZE——FA=+H =& Particulars of the principal subsidiaries as at 30 June 2012
MEBARZFENT : are as follows:
AL/ BHRER/
E e BRTRAEE ARRELE
Place of Nominal value BHAMM
incorporation/ of paid-up Percentage of
%8 registration registered/issued equity attributable ~ FEEHK
Name and operations share capital to the Company Principal activities
E# 3
Direct Indirect
ERansERERAR &% WREREEI0BT, EBR 100 - BRESRITE
Amco Jewelry Limited Hong Kong 2 ordinary shares of HK$10 each Diamond trading and polishing
Brangredi Limited &R \REREEIET L ERR - 100 HEEHES
Hong Kong 1 ordinary share of HK$1 each Jewellery trading
CJ. (UK) Limite* LG 1,000 SREEIRE 2 ERR - 100 GERMHE
United Kingdom 1,000 ordinary shares of GBP1 each Jewellery wholesaling
ERNERERAR] B 100%ERAEETL EBR - 100 #hES
Conti Diamond Limited Hong Kong 100 ordinary shares of HK$1 each Diamond trading
Continental Investment ) 100000 BHREE BT ERR 100 - REER
Company Limited Hong Kong 100,000 ordinary shares of HK$1 each Investment holding
ERKE (TP BRAR i B 411k 735,000,000 ¢ - 100 REEHRE
Mainland China Paid up capital of HK$35,000,000 Jewellery manufacturing
BAREEHHARAT Bk 10,000000R B HRE BB &RR 100 - REAHRERME
Continental Jewellery (Mfg,) Hong Kong 10,000,000 ordinary shares of Jewellery manufacturing
Limited HK$1 each and wholesaling
IHmE AR ERAR el BAIRA1,050,000T AR - 100  HEEMHE
Mainland China Paid up capital of RMB1,050,000 Jewellery wholesaling
EMEERLH & WBREEIET SRR - 100 WERE
Continental Property Hong Kong 2 ordinary shares of HK$1 each Property investment
Holdings Limited

B
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&

Th-BRMBArRZHE= 19

INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

(%)
ML/ B8R/
BRREE Y ERTRAEE KRB
Place of Nominal value REAML
incorporation/ of paid-up Percentage of
8 registration registered/issued equity attributable ~ FEXHK
Name and operations share capital to the Company Principal activities
E# 3
Direct Indirect
DCGS Management Sevice B 10,000,000 FREE AT, L &R - 100  RERR/REEBRE
Limited Hong Kong 10,000,000 ordinary shares of Investment holding/providing
HK$1 each management services
EEREARAT & 50,000 ERAE10E T2 & BR 100 - REBR
Diamond Creation Limited Hong Kong 50,000 ordinary shares of HK$10 each Investment holding
Golden Creation Jewellery &b SREREEIBT LR - 80  KEEHES
Limited Hong Kong 5 ordinary shares of HK$1 each Jewellery trading
B TBXERAF i B #1R7%20,000,000% 7T - 100 FRROREERRE
Mainland China Paid up capital of US$20,000,000 Mining and exploration of
mineral reserves
Master Gold Development EERAES \REREEIET 2 LBk - 100  REER
Limited British Virgin Islands 1 ordinary share of US$1 each Investment holding
REERBERAR &k 600,005 8 REE10%7T 2 R 100 - REER
Ming Xiu Diamond Cutting Hong Kong 600,000 ordinary shares of HK$10 each Investment holding
Factory Limited
RAER (BM) ERAR hE B&IRA11,000000% T - 100 HEAEARITE
Mainland China Paid up capital of HK$ 11,000,000 Diamond trading and polishing
Patford Company Limited &b 100 BHRAE100E T2 LR - 100  WERE
Hong Kong 100 ordinary shares of HK$100 each Property investment
Reatford Company Limited Bk 100R SR EEI00E T EBE - 100 WERE
Hong Kong 100 ordinary shares of HK$100 each Property investment



Notes to the Financial Statements m BT8R 5 i+

For the year ended 30 June 2012

HE—ZT——FA=tHILFE

Annual Report 2012 4§

TR B AR Z

19. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

(%)
AL/ B#RR/
E e ERTRAEE ARRELE
Place of Nominal value BHAMM
incorporation/ of paid-up Percentage of
%8 registration registered/issued equity attributable ~ FEEHK
Name and operations share capital to the Company Principal activities
B& 3
Direct Indirect
ENCEREARLA &k 78000k ERAE BT, ERK - 00 RARR/RECERE
Wilher Corporate Services Hong Kong 78,000 ordinary shares of HK$1 each Investment holding/providing
Limited corporate services
Yett Holdings Limited EERTES 100RERAERIFT, SRk 100 - RERR
British Virgin Islands 100 ordinary shares of US$1 each Investment holding
EXRENROIF)ERAR +E B 8k 46,087 638% T - 100 RESBRE
Mainland China Paid up capital of HK$6,087,638 Providing subcontracting services
Precious Palace International EERAES 1REREBIET SRR - 100  &EER
Limited British Virgin slands 1 ordinary share of US$1 each Investment holding
EAREARAR &b \REREEI BT ERR - 100 #WERE
Well Friendship Investment Hong Kong 1 ordinary share of HK$1 each Property investment
Limited
# R B A a2 SN 58 e Wholly foreign-owned enterprise registered in the
Bh e Mainland China.
* FEBEBLIEERGETAD @ Not audited by BDO Limited or other BDO member

EBRMBR AR RLER
FZEMKE AR -
BB ERRGHED
EBMER AR M
BRAREEFEBBEOMR
AEBEEEFERFE

BEERR - ERIVRARTE ZHK
BRABNERREANFEZRE
HAKAEEEEFEZBAR
7 EFRARMEMME AR
ZFEReEYRRBN IR -

firms. The aggregate net assets of these subsidiaries not
audited by BDO amounted to approximately 5% of the
Group's total net assets.

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Company which,
in the opinion of the directors, principally affected the results
for the year or formed a substantial portion of the net assets
of the Group. To give details of other subsidiaries would, in
the opinion of the directors, result in particulars of excessive
length.

—
Ul
=
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—T o REEARZERS 20. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES
REH PN
Group Company
2012 2011 2012 2011
FETT FEIT FiET FHET
HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$°000
JE ET D ~ ¥ AKX AN Unlisted shares, at cost = = 9,385 9,385
Bl EEFE Share of net assets 6,034 6,231 = =
BB Provision for impairment (6,034) (3,898) (9,385) (9,385)
- 2,333 - -
BE N T 2 48R Balances with associates
REE PN
Group Company
2012 2011 2012 2011
FET FETT FET FET
HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$'000
JEUREE 2 A A58 Due from associates 1,259 1,277 = 8
SR E E Provision for impairment (1,259) (1,259) = -
- 18 - 8
JE{FHLZ A BIZIE  Due to associates (111) - - -

HE_ZT——Fh_FT——FX
A=+ B - & F [ I 4 fE Uk Bt

ATFEHERRE -

AR
B

/N
B R BMEFENAEEE -

A2 BEER TR . 2

There was no movement in impairment losses in respect of
amounts due from associates during the years ended 30
June 2012 and 2011.

The balances with associates are unsecured, interest-free
and repayable on demand.
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“t+mBEARZE

Bk

(&)

RrEZEEERE 2 ASEE
E W& N F) 2 B E RS 40
T

20. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (continued)

The summarised financial information of the Group's
principal associates extracted from their management
accounts are as follows:

2012 2011
FET FHET

HK$°000 HK$000

BEMBE Total assets 14,101 15,060
BEREE Total liabilities (3.366) (2,275)
e Revenue 12,823 17,709
FAEE Loss for the year (435) (2,285)

R-T——FRHA=1+H xE&

Particulars of the principal associates as at 30 June 2012 are

B AT BB - as follows:

BaEmER/ MR/ REBER

ERTRARE Bk FrisERa AL

Nominal value of Place of incorporation/ Percentage of
2B paid-up registered/ registration ownership interest FEER
Name issued share capital and operations  attributable to the Group  Principal activities
LEENMEHARAR EHRAAR%9,0032447C EA, 36 REEHE RIS
General Jewellery (Shanghai) ~ Paid up capital of Mainland China Jewellery manufacturing

Company Limited* RMB9,093,244 and wholesaling
FRRERHHERAR  1,000RGRAGIET, EBR & 50 REAHRE
Real Jewellery Limited* 1,000 ordinary shares of Hong Kong Jewellery manufacturing
HK$1 each
* ERBBEEZ DA * Not audited by BDO Limited or other BDO member
EBMBRARINIIEE firms.

S EAMB B AR

EERR - ERIVRARE 2
BRENEERENFEEL
BREZEERAXAEE B
BERREEFELBRED
EERA/RERMBE QR ZF
BFREEHREANILE -

The above table lists the associates of the Company which,
in the opinion of the directors, principally affected the share
of associates’ results for the year or formed a substantial
portion of the share of net assets of the associates by the
Group. To give details of other associates would, in the
opinion of the directors, result in particulars of excessive
length.

=
2
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“+— -RiaEEHERZ 21. INTERESTS IN JOINTLY CONTROLLED
¥ &= ENTITIES

REE
Group

2012 2011

FET FET

HK$’000 HK$'000

L EEFE Share of net assets 92,855 87,026

2T — A RS Loan to a jointly controlled entity
%ﬁgzéﬁ 391,800 330,300
484,655 417,326

(Il

st —EARER -

The loan to a jointly controlled entity is unsecured, interest-
free and not repayable within twelve months from the
reporting date.

REEE
Group
2012 2011
FET FAET
HK$’000 HK$°000
JE W — B $ R 4% 1l & B8 RKIB Due from a jointly controlled entity 139 141
JE S — [ EL [R5 I & B8 RKIB Due to a jointly controlled entity - (14)

HFIPEHI B 2 AAeR T -
RS RPBMREARER

The balances with jointly controlled entities are unsecured,
interest-free and repayable on demand.
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“t— MEAREREEREZ 21. INTERESTS IN JOINTLY CONTROLLED

D ENTITIES (continued)
N-_E——F,A=1+H  FE Particulars of the principal jointly controlled entities as at 30
HEZEHEE ZFBOT : June 2012 are as follows:
HMEL/ REEES
BT FrsERE AL
ERTRAAE Place of Percentage of
£ Nominal value of incorporation/ ownership interest FTEEK
Name issued share capital registration  attributable to the Group Principal activities
Wealth Plus Developments 50,000k 8 REE1ETL RERAEE 50 RAER
Limited LiER British Virgin Islands Investment holding
50,000 ordinary shares of
US$1 each
BRERERAH 10,000 FREBIETZ BER &b 50 REES
Multi-Minerals Limited 10,000 ordinary shares of Hong Kong Trading of mineral ores
HK$1 each
B AREFES A B IRE 7 2K The aggregate amounts relating to the jointly controlled
S E RN ERIET TR 2 AzE entities attributable to the Group that have been included in
T the Group'’s consolidated financial statements are as follows:
2012 2011
FET FET
HK$’000 HK$'000
EREEE Non-current assets 500,911 379,530
mEEE Current assets 28,189 80,660
529,100 460,190
FERBEE Non-current liabilities (420,834) (358,378)
nBaE Current liabilities (15,411) (14,786)
(436,245) (373,164)
BEFE Net assets 92,855 87,026
WA Income 5,606 14,252
53 Expenses (6,958) (8,893)
FER(EBE), 5 R (Loss)/Profit for the year (1,352) 5,359

—
ul
a1
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"+ AtHEZEME 22. AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE FINANCIAL
E

ASSETS
REE
Group
2012 2011
FET FET
HK$’000 HK$'000
FARARE - RAFE Listed equity investments, at fair value:
B Hong Kong 13,077 18,527
H bt & (F5E@)) Elsewhere (note (a)) 19,828 114,960
32,905 133,487
FELETRAIZE - AR Unlisted equity investments, at cost (note (c)) 11,339 11,339
EIE))
B R Provision for impairment (7,108) (7,108)
4,231 4,231
st Total 37,136 137,718
EHRETE Market value of listed investments 32,905 133,487
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22. AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE FINANCIAL
ASSETS (continued)

Notes:

(@

(b)

(0)

On 3 June 2010, Trade Bloom Holdings Limited (“Trade
Bloom”), an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Company, entered into a sale and purchase agreement
with Famous Key Holdings Limited (“Famous Key"”), a
company incorporated in the British Virgin Islands with
limited liability and wholly-owned by Dr. Chan Sing
Chuk, Charles (“Dr. Chan"), executive director of the
Company, to acquire an aggregate of 2,239,873 shares
of Macarthur Minerals Limited (“MMS"”) from Famous
Key. On the same date, Trade Bloom also entered into
another sale and purchase agreement with Minmetals
Mining Corporation Limited (“Minmetals”), a company
incorporated in Hong Kong with limited liability, to
acquire 3,144,654 shares of MMS from Minmetals.
Mr. Fang Gang, a director of Minmetals, is also a non-
executive director of the Company. Having satisfied
the terms and conditions of the aforesaid agreements,
the acquisitions of the 5,384,527 shares of MMS were
completed on 30 March 2011 at the market price of
Canadian dollars 3.05 (equivalent to HK$24.354) by the
issue of convertible notes to Famous Key and Minmetals
as detailed in note 34. MMS is an Australian company
listed on the TSX Venture Exchange in Canada and its
principal activity is exploration and development of an
area with significant prospective iron-ore located in
Western Australia.

There was a significant decline in the market values
of listed equity investments in Hong Kong and
overseas (2011: Hong Kong) during the year. The
directors consider that such a decline indicates that
the listed equity investments have been impaired
and an impairment loss of HK$118,361,000 (2011:
HK$7,864,000) has been recognised in profit or loss for
the year.

The unlisted equity investments are stated at cost less
provision for impairment as they do not have quoted
market prices in an active market. The directors are of
the opinion that the carrying amounts of the unlisted
equity investments approximate their fair values. There
was no movement in provision for impairment in
respect of unlisted equity investments at cost during the
years ended 30 June 2012 and 2011.

Eil
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—+=- REAEWRIE 23. LONG-TERM RECEIVABLES
REH P NN

Group Company
2012 2011 2012 2011
ora FET FET FET FET
Notes HK$000 HK$°000 HK$000 HK$'000
QT8 Promissory notes (a) 11,449 11,449 5,743 5,743
H i R EJFEUCFRIE  Other long-term receivables (b) 2,667 3,167 = =
14,116 14,616 5,743 5,743
REE Provision for impairment (14,116)  (14,616) (5,743) (5,743)

RERUGKIRRE R R < ZE

T receivables are as follows:

rEE
Group
2012

2011

ora FET FET
Notes  HK$’000 HK$°000

The movement on the provision for impairment of long-term

NN
Company
2012 2011
FET FET
HK$’000 HK$°'000

RE 2 ERFE Balance at beginning of

the year 14,616 14,616 5,743 5,743
&2 [o] )i B /&5 18 Impairment losses reversed  (b) (500) = = -
RERZHEE Balance at end of the year 14,116 14,616 5,743 5,743
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23. LONG-TERM RECEIVABLES (continued)

Htet - Notes:

(a) R-ZZE——FA=+H (a) Out of the promissory notes of HK$11,449,000 as at
A #011,449,000% 7T (= 30 June 2012 (2011: HK$11,449,000), HK$7,828,000
T — — 4 : 11,449,000/ (2011: HK$7,828,000) is secured, interest-free and
o) 2R HZEEth  H repayable by 15 annual instalments commencing on 1
7,828,000/ 7T (=& —— October 2001. The remaining balance of HK$3,621,000
& 17,828,000 L) &A (2011: HK$3,621,000) is unsecured, interest-free and
R 2B RER-_ZZT repayable by 13 annual instalments commencing on
—Ft+A—BRBS+REF 15 March 2003. In view of default in repayment of the
B % o H £23,621,000/ Tt promissory notes, a full impairment was made in prior
(ZZ——% : 3,621,000/ years.

TT) AEER - 2B RER
—TE=F=-HA+HAR
DT=FHE -ERNBXR
BEAHLZEE BERBE
FEEHEERE -

(b) R-ZE——F~A=+ (b) As at 30 June 2012, the balance represents a
B ZEEBR/BT — shareholder’s loan of HK$2,667,000 (2011:
MESXIKEERARIZ — A HK$3,167,000) advanced to an investee company
2,667,000 L (=& —— which is interest-free, unsecured and repayable on 30
F : 3,167,000/ 70) Z IR R June 2015. In view of poor financial performance of
B ZEHBEARE the investee company, a full impairment was made in
EEBRBER_T—RHF prior years. An amount of HK$500,000 was repaid by
/\)5] +THEE ZENE the investee company and a reversal of provision for

SIERERAWPTERE impairment of long term receivables of HK$500,000 is
TI248 - EE(‘}E%@ET’E recognised in profit or loss for the year ended 30 June
HEERE REBEEZS 2012.

——FAA=t+HLEFE
A EXREARBKLE
#500,0007% 7T * 7 H1E1S
7 F R R = HA B MR IR R
1B 1%%%51500,000/8 7T °
—+m B 24. INVENTORIES
AEE
Group
2012 2011
FET FET
HK$’000 HK$°000

R % Raw materials 128,044 125,130

F 2R SR Work in progress 8,752 5,717

S dh Finished goods 120,556 136,982

257,352 267,829

—
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“+EH--B5BERRIE

25. TRADE RECEIVABLES

RE
Group
2012 2011
FE T FHET
HK$000 HK$'000
B 5 EWGRIE Trade receivables 136,712 143,484
A FEUGGRIB RV E B Less: provision for impairment of receivables (27,702) (27,000)
Z S5 MEIWFIE—F5%  Trade receivables — net 109,010 116,484

AEE—RRRITRENREE
BEFZEE  BYRRHEREEF
HREFTEFPZEREKR - 8%
EFABRREER - AKER
IE S ELRE R R G IR M 45 B
ZH - EFRRRREEREE
HIE1TRRED -

REZR - RIHERF A2
iR B SRR Z Rk D

The Group normally grants credit terms to its customers

according to industry practice together with consideration

of their creditability, repayment history and years of

establishment. Each customer has a maximum credit

limit. The Group seeks to maintain strict control over its

outstanding receivables. Overdue balances are regularly

reviewed by senior management.

An ageing analysis of trade receivables, net of provision, as

at the reporting date, based on the date of recognition of

i N the sale, is as follows:

REH

Group
2012 2011
FET FET
HK$'000 HK$°000
0—30H 0 - 30 days 51,172 71,625
31—60H 31— 60 days 29,340 22,706
61—90H 61 — 90 days 18,345 7,705
90H A Over 90 days 10,153 14,448
109,010 116,484
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“t+IH -EBS5EWHRE® 25. TRADE RECEIVABLES (continued)

BrBI s+ 7S AFTHEEE SN - B Save as disclosed in note 46, there is no concentration of
RAEBKZEE DA TR credit risk with respect to trade receivables, as the Group
i BB SHEKFIAMS @ I has a large number of customers which are internationally
mEhEERRE - dispersed.
B 5 EWFIE 7 R E B a5 A B Impairment losses in respect of trade receivables are
HERELEE - BRIFAKERBEN recorded using an allowance account unless the Group is
AU B 2 B - EER satisfied that recovery of the amount is remote, in which
T REEEERE S EKFIE case the impairment loss is written off against trade
B - B 5 MG IE R E R receivables directly. The movement in the provision for
&z EEnT: impairment of trade receivables is as follows:
rEH
Group
2012 2011
FET FAET
HK$'000 HK$000
RET] 2 HEE Balance at beginning of the year 27,000 27,072
BRI EE R Impairment losses recognised 756 768
AR Amount written off (54) (840)
RERZ HEE Balance at end of the year 27,702 27,000
NEEEH  KNEE Y EBS5ER At each reporting date, the Group's trade receivables were
=R 157 (8] B [ B B L R individually and collectively determined to be impaired. The
1B o EREIEZ B 5 EkxiEmE individually impaired trade receivables relate to customers
RPN EEER - that were in default or delinquency in payments.

—
(@)
=
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R

_+£ EEBELI&Z Iﬁ(ﬁg) 25. TRADE RECEIVABLES (continued)

AEENEE B ZE SRR
B MR R EIR 2 Rk D

The ageing analysis of the Group’s trade receivables as at
the reporting date, based on due date and net of provision,

T : is as follows:

rEE

Group
2012 2011
FET FET
HK$’000 HK$'000
R HA 2 KRB Neither past due nor impaired 66,389 92,497
#HEI0—30H 0 - 30 days past due 19,778 10,464
BHEI31—60H 31 - 60 days past due 9,463 5,763
#HI61—90H — 90 days past due 5,126 4,166
#HI91—180H 91 - 180 days past due 7,693 2,691
# H§181—360H 181 — 360 days past due 291 903
#EA360H M E Over 360 days past due 270 =
RERZERER Balance at end of the year 109,010 116,484

BB IR (E < B 2 U IE
B3R % 3 AT AR R RCER 2 B P
B -

ERHEREREZ B S EKKIA
HEZEREFAR ZEFEPEXR
SEZEERSERI - RIBBHE
K BEERR RSHEHH
FIELRERE  AREEEER
WEEBAREE) - BAERIDERE
Al EEURE o AN E I LA
W BIRE < B 5 B URIBR A
EFERm -

EHREFEBEREE - Fitt
EERREERESRUGELZ
FEREEREAFERS

Trade receivables that were neither past due nor impaired
relate to a large number of diversified customers for whom
there was no recent history of default.

Trade receivables that were past due but not impaired
related to a large number of diversified customers that
had a good track record with the Group. Based on past
experience, the management believes that no impairment
allowance is necessary in respect of these balances as there
has not been a significant change in credit quality and the
balances are still considered fully recoverable. The Group did
not hold any collateral in respect of trade receivables that
are past due but not impaired.

Trade receivables are short term in nature and hence the
directors consider the carrying amount of trade receivables
approximates its fair value at the reporting date.
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Z+R s UAEEFANER 26. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE

ZEMEE THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS
REH ¥iN/N
Group Company
2012 2011 2012 2011

FBT TET TBT TET
HK$°000 HK$000 HK$°000 HK$000

BB EMRRAES » Listed equity securities in

A Hong Kong, at market
value 11,548 13,874 - -
ARG ZE4E 2 B8 Redemption options of
EERE convertible notes
(MsE=+1m) (note 34) 148 1,361 148 1,361
11,696 15,235 148 1,361
ATEHABR T STEER Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are
l;é_\ 8 & 7 B N TEAS A E B — presented within the section on operating activities as part
BREE| A EE ST of changes in working capital in the consolidated statement
5o of cash flows.
UATEHABR T SREED Changes in fair value of financial assets at fair value through
TESHE AIBREN Y BT profit or loss are recorded in other operating expenses/
eSS Sl A o income in profit or loss.

El
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“+t-EsmIE 27. DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL
INSTRUMENTS
REE
Group
2012 2011
BE =N BAE =
Assets Liabilities Assets Liabilities
FET FET FAET FET
HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$'000
RIEBEH Forward currency
(Ff3E) contracts (note) = 84 126 -
Hat - Note:
REE®ESHAEEE B8 The forward currency contracts are denominated in British
BAR—F(ZF——F : PR — Pounds with maturity in less than one year (2011: less than one
F) o year).
“t+N-RERREER 28. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

RehReERBEATED

Cash and cash equivalen

ts include the following

components:
REE ¥ NN
Group Company
2012 2011 2012 2011
FETT FET FET FET
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000
B MIRITER Cash and bank balances 85,236 49,867 117 76

RITBRRE HRITHERM X
AU B S, -

2

Cash at banks earn interest at floating rates based on daily

bank deposit rates.
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“+IN-BERBEEEH 28. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

(#&) (continued)
AREEER© MIBTASRE IR S Included in cash and bank balances of the Group is
Bz RITERAARENEZ HK$12,038,000 (2011: HK$5,680,000) of bank balances
12,038,000/ )T (Z&F ——4F : denominated in Renminbi (“RMB") placed with banks in the
5,680,000/ 70) iR 174564 - AR Mainland China. RMB is not a freely convertible currency.
KT B B R o IRIR AR BISNE Under the Mainland China’s Foreign Exchange Control
B ARG R AETE - SENNIES Regulations and Administration of Settlement and Sales
IIEFE  ANEE A RAERER and Payment of Foreign Exchange Regulations, the Group is
B INEE ZE 7S 2 SRAITHEFT N 22 permitted to exchange RMB for foreign currencies through
7% o banks that are authorised to conduct foreign exchange
business.
—+AhB5EMRIE 29. TRADE PAYABLES

REER - B ENRIE ZRE An ageing analysis of the trade payables at the reporting

DT : date is as follows:

TEHE
Group

2012 2011
FET FET
HK$000 HK$'000
0—30H 0 - 30 days 88,451 90,351
31—60H 31 - 60 days 21,171 24,747
61—90H 61 — 90 days 11,839 20,689
90H A Over 90 days 11,705 7,735
133,166 143,522

—
S
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=+ SRITEX

RITEFREE2OMAOT

30.

BANK LOANS

The analysis of the carrying amount of bank loans is as
follows:

REEE
Group
2012 2011
FET FAET
HK$’000 HK$'000
REEE Current liabilities
HAR—FRNEEREZ Portion of loans from banks due
RITEREH for repayment within one year
—BHER — Guaranteed 30,441 33,639
—EHEAEEER — Secured and guaranteed 292,500 167,500
322,941 201,139
BN —F1&(EEIEA Portion of loans from banks due
RESETIE Z for repayment after one year which
RITERED contain a repayable on demand clause
—BHER — Guaranteed 1,231 12,000
—EEARBER — Secured and guaranteed - 22,000
324,172 235,139
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= + > ﬁE "['_j' E %ﬂ (%) 30. BANK LOANS (continued)
R-ZE——FXA=1+H " B At 30 June 2012, the interest-bearing banks loans were due
RITEREHEZWNT ¢ for repayment as follows:
REE
Group
2012 2011
FET FAET
HK$’000 HK$'000
RITER Bank loans:
AR—FANEER Repayable within one year 322,941 201,139
ARE_FEE Repayable in the second year 1,231 34,000
324,172 235,139
BRI EERE R B HEE The amounts due are based on the scheduled repayment
ZaT 82 B H B Gt R AEfIZ dates set out in the loan agreements and ignore the effect
BRBEFIEL 2 FE - of any repayment on demand clause.
RZE——FRA=1THEZ=ZE At 30 June 2012 and 30 June 2011, the Group’s banking
—FRA=1+H K~EEZR facilities were secured/guaranteed by the followings:
TERBATERRBR -
@ AEEKEYE (M (@  legal charges over the Group’s investment property
++)  FBTFHELHA (note 17), certain of the leasehold land and buildings
EF (E+R) At (note 15) and land use rights (note 16);
ERHE (s +75) 2 &
JEHRED
(b)  ARBRMEEZARER (b)  corporate guarantees executed by the Company;
© RArIHEEZEWE AR (© ordinary shares of an indirect wholly-owned
ZEBRG & subsidiary of the Company; and
d ERERERENRES (d  guarantees from the Government of the Hong Kong
7 BT BN R B 2 $E Special Administrative Region, under the Special
9 p
R o Loan Guarantee.

El
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=+ - - SRITEF®

+

+=

REBUABITTEZRITER
311,961,000/ 0 (= ——4F :
223,139,000/ 7T) 2 'F B FF Al =
A1.45%%22.90% (—ZF——F:
1.36%%£3.04%) - ARKIRITE
12,211,000 (ZF——%F:
12,000,000,%%5 TL) 2% B &K
5756%%28.14% (—Z——4F:
6.11%%E7.56%) °

K& AHE - AREDENE
AEE-RTEERRITHNER
FER - ERERNERTHRE
BETARENE TRITHES
H £ %380,000,000/5 7T

— BIRAERRE

T AZEEARNERES
A > BEE Iﬁi%ﬁ%fﬁ# 2ER
W=ZT— ﬁiﬁﬁ + B 2|58
B2 o RS AR FENERER
% AmiﬂlJTtEMS%qu

im |-H> uTn}

o

B REERRF

IR AR - B N BAT
MEREFRET @A RE

o

fil
Fﬂ>

CERBRRRENE

e
TA

EFBRE RN EAEK
BT F1 5% 5 R E R
BRBAENEERRTRR+ =
BAREE

30.

31.

32.

33.

BANK LOANS (continued)

The bank loans of the Group denominated in HK$ of
HK$311,961,000 (2011: HK$223,139,000) have floating
interest rates ranging from 1.45% to 2.90% (2011:
1.36% to 3.04%) per annum. The RMB bank loans of
HK$12,211,000 (2011: HK$12,000,000) have floating
interest rates ranging from 7.56% to 8.14% (2011: 6.11%
to 7.56%) per annum.

Subsequent to reporting date, the Group had obtained a
written confirmation from one of the Group’s major bankers
to confirm its intention to renew several banking facilities,
in aggregate, of up to HK$380,000,000 to the Group upon
maturity of the borrowings.

DUE TO A RELATED COMPANY

Dr. Chan is a beneficial owner of the related company.
The amount due is unsecured, interest-free and due for
repayment on 31 May 2015. The carrying amount of the
amount due to a related company was calculated using a
market interest rate of 6.15% per annum.

DUE TO ULTIMATE HOLDING
COMPANY

The amount due is unsecured, interest-free and not
repayable within the next twelve months from the reporting
date.

LOAN FROM A CONTROLLING
SHAREHOLDER

The loan is advanced from Dr. Chan and is unsecured,
interest-bearing at 1.5% per annum and not repayable
within the next twelve months from the reporting date.
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=+m - ATk ER 34. CONVERTIBLE NOTES

B UL s el =/ =7 R /N
ABEAR_E——F=A=+
B % Bl mFamous Key ([ A # i%
ZEA]) BMinmetals ([ 7] # f%
EEB) BETASBELHEER
58,170,000/ 7t 581,667,000/
TT 2 Al 32 A% B 1 B 1 U BEMMS
f& 2 RAB - AT R R IRAK 7]
BBREBEBI U TR B IRGRE
BIRBIE(E0.4278 03T - I
EFT R B ST IE B E B 2
Hy o

RAARBE-_ZT——F~A
=+ HEIEFERBITZAIBRRE
BinE @ ZEF{BEAGENAR
REEEIE B AR EANUE
BR0.42B TS FIIR R IE A S 58
Z 280 (MIEED) B AR F]
@R - METTHA ATARE
BAE% R B HARSEE XA
AR E R A AR AR A
ERAIRRERZEASEERE
100% K (B 1% fE [ FT A8 ] 32 A% 22
%o

M7 A IR RHEBAT - A&
B 2 % 3l mMinmetals & %8 32
2 Bl 2 120,000,000/ T &
61,667,000 T8 * {EAR AR
BREBBs B EENSRE &
ERZE——F=A=+H%
TABRBEZERR E2RA K
f#3,144,654EMMSEZ 10 B B
THAR @ REEM - At - WhE
MMSRZAD AR & A ZE T Al R IR ==
EBAK IE & K 881,667,000/ JT
BT -

As detailed in note 22, the consideration in relation to
the acquisition of the shares of MMS was satisfied by the
issuance of convertible notes to Famous Key (“Convertible
Note A”) and Minmetals (“Convertible Note B”) of principal
amount equivalent to approximately HK$58,170,000 and
HK$81,667,000 respectively on 30 March 2011 by the
Company. The Convertible Note A and Convertible Note B
are issued at a zero coupon rate and at a conversion price
of HK$0.42 per conversion share which will be mature two
years from the date of the issue.

In respect of all the convertible notes issued during the
year ended 30 June 2011, the noteholders had the right to
convert, the whole but not in part, of the principal amount
of the convertible notes into the ordinary shares of the
Company of HK$0.42 each at any time prior to the maturity
date of the convertible notes. At any time after the date of
the issue of all the convertible notes and before the fifth
business days before the date of maturity, the Company
may redeem all of the convertible notes at a price being
equal to 100% of the face value of the full principal amount
of the convertible notes.

Prior to the issue of the Convertible Note B, the Group
had deposited a sum of HK$20,000,000 and a sum of
HK$61,667,000 to Minmetals and an independent lawyer
respectively which served as the intended redemption
of the Convertible Note B. Despite of the issuance of
the Convertible Note B on 30 March 2011, the directors
considered that, in substance, the acquisition of 3,144,654
shares of MMS was indeed settled by cash consideration.
Therefore, the acquisition of shares of MMS was deemed to
be satisfied by the issuance of the Convertible Note A and
cash consideration of HK$81,667,000.

El
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=4m - A ER 2 34. CONVERTIBLE NOTES (continued)

—

RZE——F=ZA=+H" 'K
A Al [AIFamous KeyZ 17 A F B
350,518,000 L 2 TE B AJ
REIBA - {ERUEE2,239,8731%
MMSER 7 Z (KB o AR R IRA
N_ZT——F=ZA=1+HZAF
BB B B X AN ST
SRARAE ([FEETT]) #ETHE

MEANR AR E - 0TEE D2
NFET B FETRBEMMSAR
Dz AE R F4E BRA 8RR
EEERFTE - REMMSER K
Z B TBMBREERAZ A FER
A ITE (AERFA AR
RERAE R BIGE v eEiRiRiE
) 2 AT ERZZ/i ARRE
R EM AR R IR = o

On 30 March 2011, the Company issued a zero coupon
Convertible Note A with fair value of HK$50,518,000 to
Famous Key as the consideration of the acquisition of
2,239,873 shares of MMS. The fair value of the Convertible
Note A as at 30 March 2011 was valued by an independent
professional valuer, LCH (Asia-Pacific) Surveyors Limited
("LCH").

The fair value of the liability component as at 30 March
2011 was calculated using discounted cash flow method
by LCH. The fair value of the derivative component was
calculated using Binomial Option Pricing Model on the
acquisition date of the shares of MMS and as at year end
date by LCH. As at the acquisition date of shares of MMS,
the difference between the fair value of the Convertible
Note A and the fair value of the combined instrument,
representing conversion option for the holder to convert
the Convertible Note A into equity, was included in
shareholders’ equity as convertible note equity reserve.
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=+ TR ER @ 34. CONVERTIBLE NOTES (continued)
AMREBAZITES D - A& The carrying values of the derivative component, liability
o kR y 2 EEBEAT component and equity component of the Convertible Note

A are as follow:

REERAAF
Group and Company
BoEERE AEND e AR #st
Redemption Liability Equity
option component component Total

FET FET FET FET
HK$’000 HKS$’000 HKS$’000 HK$’000

NEERZ Net carrying amounts on

BREVFE initial recognition 1,620 (49,828) (2,310) (50,518)
eSS B RAX Imputed interest expenses = (974) = (974)
NSTER-E) Fair value change (259) = = (259)
R-ZE——F Net carrying amounts

~A=+HR at 30 June 2011 and

—E-—F 1 July 2011

tA—HZ

FRERE 1,361 (50,802) (2,310) (51,751)
BT B Imputed interest expenses - (4,087) = (4,087)
N EE Fair value change (1,342) - - (1,342)
R-E——F Net carrying amounts

RNRA=THZ at 30 June 2012

FRERE 19 (54,889) (2,310) (57,180)
RBEE_ZT——F A=+ Imputed interest expenses of approximately HK$4,087,000
BHIFEERN EEINEESY (2011: HK$974,000) have been recognised in profit or loss
4,087,000/ T (ZZE——4F : for the year ended 30 June 2012 and are calculated using
974,000/ 7T) B KR fr B 25 N HE the effective interest method by applying the effective
2 WEBEH TR EEAZ B interest rate of 8.05% per annum to the liability component
& 205 76 FA8.05 % 1Y B PR 4 Fi| & of the Convertible Note A.

RABRNXAFTH -

—
~!
=
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=4m - A ER 2 34. CONVERTIBLE NOTES (continued)

Hl

EERR URBABRERERZ
ARABBEBMMSE D 2 & X MIRE
REBSRTE RERTLES
WA - RZE——F=A=+
B WEMMSEn1& - 144
IS EL B WEMMSA D 2 &
181,049,000/ T - BB ER
BE_T——FA=THLF
BB iR -

BRAREBE_T——F R HA=T
HIEFRETARERERARA
MR FEEBZ T BIRF MR Z
E—FHIFEARARFBEHA -
Z—TFERAZ+TRBZAEHK -

A #2 A% Z2 48 AIMMSHE 1 U B B
HAEY A E{E Jh LA — 1B EpfE e (S
BAE  AEEEHALT

—ZF——%F

—A=1+H

i (& 0.177%87T
TEHARE SN

WS Z g 7%

TERTR I8 63%

TE T4 A 26

#2 [ fea 1) = 0.67%

TEHRR B K 2%

In the opinion of the directors, the contracts to acquire the
shares of MMS in exchange for the convertible note and
the cash consideration represent a financial instruments
and they were accounted for as a derivative contract. Upon
completion of the acquisition of share of MMS on 30 March
2011, there was a loss on derivative contract arising from
the acquisition of shares of MMS of HK$1,049,000 and such
loss was recognised in the profit or loss for the year ended
30 June 2011.

Further details of the principal terms and conditions
regarding the issue of the Convertible Note A and
Convertible Note B during the year ended 30 June 2011 had
been set out in the circular of the Company dated 25 June
2010.

The fair value of Convertible Note A as at the date of

acquisition of share of MMS was calculated using Binomial
Option Pricing Model with major inputs as follows:

30 March 2011

Share price HK$0.17
Expected additional yield spread 7%
Expected volatility 63%
Expected life 2 years
Risk-free rate 0.67%
Expected dividend yield 2%
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=+m- TEBRER® 34.
R-BEBhE+—A=+A"

CONVERTIBLE NOTES (continued)

On 20 November 2009, the Company entered into a

7N F)E2Benefit Well Investments
Limited ([ Benefit Well]) (—%x %
EBRZESEMKIZBRA
A HEAREBLIHEEE2EHER)
FIVEEwZ (BEEHZED -
LA U B¥Big Bonus Limited & £
B8 A 7] (4548 & [ Big Bonuss
B (EEZXEBATTBREE
KBV ERTEEE) #1100%E 3 1T AR
7K KBenefit Wellg tH) R &
HoBBEEEHZRAHAZ
EENF+—A=+THNER
e L EENARE
#3738,000,0007% 7T - H # LAIR
% X {&113,000,0007%8 7T & & 1B
177N & /3325,000,0007% 7T #Y
ARBRER ((ATREREERC])
K #1714 #£1,764,705,880/% 7
% /3300,000,000/% 7T 89 X & %
NEHF-RZTBZEAF+—A
=1 H - &2 7 EBenefit WellFT
vnmE ((HamEl - A
BRI R BB S TR R
B IR BT A R R IBECTFTamar
Investmentsf 3EBenefit Well (5%
BERETIBE)

sale and purchase agreement (“S & P Agreement”) with
Benefit Well Investments Limited (“Benefit Well”), a
company incorporated in the British Virgin Islands with
limited liability and indirectly wholly-owned by Dr. Chan,
to acquire 100% of the issued share capital of Big Bonus
Limited and its subsidiaries (collectively “Big Bonus Group”),
which are principally engaged in mining and exploration
of mineral reserves in the Mainland China, and the
shareholder’s loan from Benefit Well. Pursuant to the S &
P Agreement and the supplemental agreement dated 30
November 2009, the total consideration for the aforesaid
acquisition is HK$738,000,000 which is to be satisfied
by cash consideration of HK$113,000,000, issuance of
convertible note with principal amount of HK$325,000,000
(“Convertible Note C”) and issuance of a total of
1,764,705,880 consideration shares with principal amount
of HK$300,000,000. On 30 November 2009, the Company
entered a supplemental agreement (“Supplemental
Agreement”) with Benefit Well to amend and clarify certain
terms and conditions, including issuing the Convertible Note
C to Tamar Investments instead of Benefit Well, as detailed
in the Supplemental Agreement.

3



Notes to the Financial Statements m BT8R S Mz

For the year ended 30 June 2012
HE-ZT——FRA=THILFE

=4m - A ER 2 34. CONVERTIBLE NOTES (continued)

—

AR BECHBEITIERERR
BEBEFI15% REFA
ZTHRFXN BREAE
Bty ([ 1)0.1978
T YR ETT B BEE3FER
2 HEH - RAI MR RIRCETT
BREDMEMERELEXAH
EARIRRE - AR R E R PTA 3k
BoAMEREC BREER
RELRRERRCZ AR
D EERRE EREZEEA
H (M BHE%E) BEZFE © i@
AR RECREI A B NE A
TREzZASE AR BRREERC
WAL= B BB BB

R-ZZ2E——F+HA+=H AR
A][ATamar InvestmentsZ 772 F
B 7/3127,619,000/% JT 2 7] #2 %
FHEC - {ERYEBIg Bonusk
ZEBARAEB - AR EIRCHR =
T——F+A+=-B2ZAFET
FR 8 37 25 2 (B AT A1 B BR AT
BRAR ([RAFHE]) EITHE
g o

R ERCEBELIR-Z
——&+A+=-RAZAFETHA
PRFBIRAR S REMIR X
FTHE o STEBD 2 AFETIEFR
ANFLEA AU BEBig Bonuste @ 2 B
HAR R AHER A —Ia B
HAFE - IRBREBECZATE
EREEFDPZAFERBZERE
(AIEHFBE AGATRRERC
I AT ERIRIERE) ST A
P& SR A 2 | Y AT HA AR SR MR M 2 e
1o

The Convertible Note C was issued at interest rate of 1.5%
per annum, payable in arrears on 30 June in each year,
at a conversion price of HK$0.19 per conversion share
("Conversion Shares”) which will be mature 3 years from
the date of the issue. At any time after the date of the issue
of the Convertible Note C and before the fifth business day
before the date of maturity, the Company may redeem all
or part of the Convertible Note C at a price being equal to
100% of the face value of the part of the principal amount
of the Convertible Note C proposed to be redeemed
together with interest accrued thereon up to and excluding
the date of redemption. If and to the extent that there shall
be any outstanding principal amount of the Convertible
Note C at the date of maturity, the Convertible Note C is
deemed to be automatically converted into the Conversion
Shares.

On 12 October 2011, the Company issued the Convertible
Note C with fair value of HK$127,619,000 to Tamar
Investments as part of the consideration of the acquisition
of Big Bonus Group. The fair value of Convertible Note
C as at 12 October 2011 was valued by an independent
professional valuer, BMI Appraisals Limited (“BMI”).

The fair value of the liability component of the Convertible
Note C as at 12 October 2011 was calculated using discount
cash flow method by BMI. The fair value of the derivative
component was calculated using Binomial Option Pricing
Model on the acquisition date of Big Bonus Group and as
at reporting date by BMI. The difference between the fair
value of the Convertible Note C and the fair value of the
liability component, represented the conversion option for
the holder to convert Convertible Note C into equity, was
included in shareholders’ equity as convertible note equity
reserve.
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MR RECZITAERD - BE
BBy MERE D  FREEMT :

CONVERTIBLE NOTES (continued)

The carrying values of the derivative component, liability
component and equity component of the Convertible Note
C are as follow:

REERAAF
Group and Company
BoEERE AEH2 EZI¥D

Redemption Liability Equity HEr
option component component Total

TAET TETT TAT FETT
HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000

NEERZ Net carrying amounts on

AREVE(E initial recognition 1,644 (13,229) (116,034) (127,619)
eSS B RAX Imputed interest expenses = (465) = (465)
NSTER-E) Fair value change (1,515) = = (1,515)
R-E——F Net carrying amounts

AA=t+HZ at 30 June 2012

IREE 129 (13,694)  (116,034)  (129,599)

A # A% Z 2 CABig Bonusts [ Uk
B8 AR AFAETIA =B B
EEEXGE  FHEXZEH AN

T
%
+HA+=H
B 0.1048 7T
SERCEPYN
W zs 7= 18 5%
TR IR IR 77.76%
TERTFH 34
4 [ B 1) 2 0.44%
TEHARR B & 2.66%

BIFECEMAAD » Ll 5
BRIEEEAMWBEEKEE
R5 - BHFHBEART BB
—E-EE-A-+HEMNAEK
ERRBDRR T —FF=
At+—H -—ZE—ZFWA=+
A -—2—=ZF+—A+ANH "
—E——FRA+NBAR=Z
— &+ AT ABRENEASE
R E -

The fair value of Convertible Note C as at the date of
acquisition of Big Bonus Group was calculated using
Binomial Option Pricing Model with major inputs as follows:

12 October 2011

Share price HK$0.104
Expected additional yield spread 5%
Expected volatility 77.76%
Expected life 3 years
Risk-free rate 0.44%
Expected dividend yield 2.66%

The above transaction constituted a very substantial
acquisition and connected transaction under the Listing
Rules. More details were disclosed in the Company’s
circular dated 25 January 2010 and in various Company’s
announcement made on 11 February 2010, 30 April 2010,
19 November 2010, 19 May 2011 and 12 October 2011.

Ny
gl
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=+H-IEEHIE 35. DEFERRED TAX
UTARRERHERRZEE The following are major deferred tax (assets)/liabilities
RIERE (BE) 8E  UER recognised at the reporting date and the movements during
AEERBEFE & : the current and prior years:
rEH Group
nE - BER
RfE THERER
RBRNATERE
Fair value
adjustment on
property, plant
and equipment, MERIERE AR
land use rights  Accelerated tax Provision for &t
and mining right depreciation receivables Total
FEx FEn FEn FEn
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$°000
RZE-SELA-H2&HR  Baanceat 1uly2010 - 16 (9217) (9.201)
RAFERRES Credited to profit or loss for the year - - (109) (109)

R=F—E B=THR Balance at 30 June 2011 and

S =l 1 July 2011 - 16 (9,326) (9,310)
WM B AR (Hi42.1() Acquisition of subsidiaries (note 42.1(a)) 237,784 - - 237,784
AR Exchange realignment 3 - - yE]
RAFEER (Bg) / Mk (Credited)/Charged to profit or loss

for the year (%) (260) 3477 3121
RZZB-ZFXA=THZER  Balance at 30 June 2012 238431 (244) (5,849) 232338
EEFIBEE LKA &S R RN EA Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a
MIBEENRINBHRIEaEAELE legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets against
HER B AR S RIE AT B R AR current tax liabilities and when the deferred income taxes
—BIEHEA T - A G AR - relate to the same fiscal authority.
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T EBEF AEE RIHRE

DEFERRED TAX (continued)

The following amounts, determined after appropriate

E o WG S I BER AR RS offsetting, are shown in the consolidated statement of
B financial position:

AEE
Group

2012 2011

FET FET

HK$’000 HK$'000

REFHIBE & Deferred tax liabilities 238,431 16

BIER IR E E Deferred tax assets (6,093) (9,326)

232,338 (9,310)

IR £ B H 5 i 18 4985,379,0007
JL (ZF — —4F : 98,046,000/
To) RSB EHESI BZE
TIB 2 N AR RER TR A o 88
REZERBABET AR
T S AR SR FE SR B m A1 - BRI
R ZERIERRAELEHIBE
EE ° R E) A F1826,297,0007% 7T
(=ZZ——1F : 46,929,000/ 7T)
R =T —R"F (BEZF) 2T
B B ERSIER - HAbRB)VARIIER
fEPR BRAEEE o

/N
R-ZB—_FRA=tH &2

A A (] B AR B IR IR A
BE(CE——%:E) -

The Group has tax losses of approximately HK$85,379,000
(2011: HK$98,046,000) that are available for offsetting
against future taxable profits of the companies which
incurred the losses. Deferred tax assets have not been
recognised in respect of these losses as it is not probable
that future taxable profits will be available against which
these unused tax losses can be utilised. Unused tax losses
of HK$26,297,000 (2011: HK$46,929,000) will expire in
various dates up to and including 2016. Other unused tax
losses may be carried forward indefinitely.

Company

As at 30 June 2012, the Company did not have any
significant unprovided deferred tax liabilities (2011: Nil).

El
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El

=+ BEITRAE 36. ISSUED CAPITAL
2012 2011
LERYA LRRHA
Hiz Number of FET Number of T
Notes  ordinary shares HKS$'000  ordinary shares HK$'000

EERA Authorised:

BREBE0VET EBE  Ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each 35,000,000,000 350,000 35,000,000,000 350,000

BRTRAERA: Issued and fully paid:

W“tA—H At 1 July 3,128,303,340 31,283 3,128303,340 31,283

R IE A R Shares issued upon acquisition

B (Fi42.1@) of subsidiaries (note 42.1(a)) () 1,764,705,880 17,647 - -

BB Subscription of shares (o) 217,647,050 2177 - -

WAR=TH At 30 June 5,110,656,270 51,107  3,128,303,340 31,283

B - Notes:

(@) RN—_E—— &+ /4= (@) On 12 October 2011, the issued share capital was
H @ B3R ARIRK increased by the issue of 1,764,705,880 ordinary
B%0.1045 7T B (B 1% 2 17 shares of HK$0.01 each at the price of HK$0.104 per
1,764,705,8800% & i% H share. The issuance of new shares is used as part of the
B0.01%8 7T 89 3 8 % if 35 consideration for acquisition of 100% equity interest in
10 o B 1T H AR T BB Uk Big Bonus Group as detailed in note 42.1(a).
f#Big Bonust E100% 3%

REZNBARE  7F15
B RMIFE42.1@) °
(b) RN -—=FEZF H &+ — A (b) On 23 November 2009, a subscription agreement was

—+=ZB ARQAHE—
LB E=FIL— 7
REHZE EEUKE
FRO17B T RE K5
217,647,0500% 37 & 18 %
FERRMREELAR
ET——F+A+-H®&E
BEE s AT E
PR A& SERK - FEIE B P BT AE
=+m-

entered between the Company and an independent
third party which agreed to subscribe for an aggregate
of 217,647,050 new ordinary shares at a subscription
price of HK$0.17 each. The subscription of the new
ordinary shares was completed on 12 October 2011
upon the satisfaction of the purchases S & P Agreement
and Supplemental Agreement as detailed in note 34.
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=+t LHRREE 37. UNLISTED WARRANTS

RZZEZAF+_AWEA - K
‘A 7] 2 Bl EiDigichina Trading
Limited &2 Paramount Ability
Corporation ([E&f8])) (35 ABL
E= E) pT_LHEﬁ“Tﬁz’J (IBR %5 1%

=) ERERERER - ARH
%?‘%"Eé R MAEARY - 2
BERBEREZ TR RAE
BHEBEEKERAKRIER
MERARANEEBRELR
1 EE - REBESEMEI L
Z BRI - AR EIREAEAK
01738 TT 2B (KA HFNA
% %8 %886,250,0007% 7T) * [A %
% & B ¥ 17249,277,45617 3 I
MR REE R, ([ FE TRk
&) e

AR5 1 1S B 31T IE_E T aR AR AE
#FzH(ZE—ZTF—A+NH)
AR WEBFE =+ ME
B EEMAARARARE  HE
B A EI0.17378 TT1TE 1R
iB 7N % F25,875,00078 7T (5574
149,566,47417 I T RAXIEE)
B FE | i1 R AR A 75 BT P A5 A 4]
REEE  RIFBEBZEKKRT
K (FERME=1M) - i Ll E
Eipm AR AT - AIEME
fE 17 {5 18 iR 7N & §825,875,000/%8
TLZ I LRI 2 R K
R o FE_E T RRARE B AR F) -

AAR—ZZE—ZTFHA—BHREE
FEMRREZRITZH(ZE
—Z=F—A+/\H) %=+
AHMATHBR(REEEM
B) @ UER0.173B TRBEARA
RIFTE B o B0 RIRFEBHT
RE—RAR R ZEF -

On 4 December 2009, the Company entered into service
agreements (the “Service Agreements”) with Digichina
Trading Limited and Paramount Ability Corporation (the
“Consultants”), independent third parties, respectively to
engage them as consultants for the provision of business
development, strategies and advisory services including
seeking suitable business projects for the development or
diversification of the business of the Company and suitable
business partners/investors from China for the Company for
fund raising projects. Under each of the Service Agreements
with the Consultants, the Company agreed to issue to each
of them 249,277,456 units of unlisted warrants shares (the
“Unlisted Warrants”) at the price of HK$0.173 per share
where in aggregate equivalent to a total principal amount of
HK$86,250,000.

The Service Agreements shall come into force from the
date of the issue of the Unlisted Warrants on 18 January
2010 and shall continue for a period of twenty-four
months therefrom. Each of the Consultants undertakes
to the Company that they will not exercise any of the
subscription rights attached to the Unlisted Warrants beyond
the principal amount of HK$25,875,000, equivalent to
149,566,474 units of Unlisted Warrants at HK$0.173 per
share, until and unless the satisfaction and completion of
the sale and purchase agreement as detailed in note 34.
If the aforesaid sale and purchase agreement is not duly
completed, the relevant Consultants’ rights to exercise
the Unlisted Warrants beyond the principal amount of
HK$25,875,000 shall lapse. The Unlisted Warrants conferred
the rights to subscribe for new ordinary shares of the
Company at HK$0.173 per share for a period from 1 April
2010 to the day falling twenty-four months after the date
of issue of the Unlisted Warrants on 18 January 2010 (both
dates inclusive). Each warrant carried the right to subscribe
for one new share of the Company.

3
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ENARRR NI TR ER
tERE BRI 2 RS2 RKE
BAITIE LM RAERE T ARRIE S
REEZR 5 - BITIE LRI
& RN ERETE M
HEERNFE 25 AR AT -

PR 3F £ aR AR RE 13 35 LA SR
EHE - ARRWEEEHEBIE
EIRRBERE AR RIEEE
(BEBITARREBRERIN)

FRAMREER A2 AR
ELETRREEREBE AR

37.

UNLISTED WARRANTS (Continued)

The issue of the Unlisted Warrants was an equity-settled
transaction given that the Company granted Unlisted
Warrants as considerations for services rendered by the
Consultants. The recognition and measurement of the issue
of the Unlisted Warrants should follow HKFRS 2 Share-based
Payment.

All the Unlisted Warrants will be settled in equity. The
Company has no legal or constructive obligation to
repurchase or settle the Unlisted Warrants other than by
issuing the Company’s ordinary shares.

The following table discloses details of the Company’s
Unlisted Warrants held by the Consultants and movement in

) : such holdings:
2012 2011
FLmRK MEFY  FLETRK ¥
BEHE TEE EEHE 1T6E(E
Number of Weighted Number of Weighted
Unlisted average Unlisted average
Warrants  exercise price Warrants ~ exercise price
&7 BT
HKS HK$
REA—BRTE Outstanding at 1 July 498,554,912 0173 498,554,912 0.173
KR Lapsed (498,554,912) 0.173 - T FNA
WAR=+THARTE  Outstanding at 30 June = TEANA - 498,554,912 0.173
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37. UNLISTED WARRANTS (Continued)

The exercisable periods of the Unlisted Warrants of the

o Company were as follows:
—E-—ER-F-——F
2012 and 2011
FEMRR i
ERYE TEE
Number of Weighted
Unlisted average
Warrants exercise price
BT
HK$
1T - Exercisable periods:
—E-TFNPA—HZE 1 April 2010 to
—E——_F—HttRa* 17 January 2012# 299,132,948 0.173
e e = 1 April 2010 to
—T——-F—A++A* 17 January 2012* 199,421,964 0.173
# 7%299,132,94813 3 £ 8 The 299,132,948 Unlisted Warrants vested immediately

R AE BN T B HS B
BB ENARBRSGB
B mBRAERD AER
Z R 53,008,000 T 2
KEBE-_ZT—TF<A
=tHIEFEMEETE

7
N

ZEHTHIE LT R
BZITEZRHRE E
FERERGHEZTK R
EEHNME=FTm-B=
RE ZEBBELERAE
FEANTR - Bt E&f
199,421,96417 3F £ T R
REFDETBNFS - ﬁ
B8 LA B% (0 & E i 2 R B
35,339,000/ T B & 7E &
z-—FT——EXA=+H
IFFERESRER -

on the grant date which was also the start of the
date of services and the respective share-based
compensation of HK$53,008,000 was recognised in
profit or loss during the year ended 30 June 2010.

* The exercise of these remaining Unlisted Warrants was
subject to the completion of the S & P Agreement
and Supplemental Agreement as detailed in note
34. In the opinion of the directors, the completion
of these agreements were completed in current year
and therefore, the remaining 199,421,964 Unlisted
Warrants vested immediately. The respective share-
based compensation of HK$35,339,000 was recognised
in profit or loss for the year ended 30 June 2012.

—
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=+t FLEHRRER
(%)

R-ZE——FNA=+HHRTT
{2 Ik - R RS 2 InkE 15
2N A 4EAA0.554 -

SRR BRERERRBGOHAF
BEEEAIEME - Bt - &IR%
ZAFETIZERIE Eh R ERE
FIRHERTE ° IF LRIk E
HRHETIH A —RA R EE
BAEE

TRIE —AAREEERED
BAER  ARFEREBE—F
—EERA=ZTHILFEREZ
FFEMRERE 2 2 FE -

MR LA E
~T-TF-A+/\A

Iz (8 0.35%7C
TEE 0.173%& 7T
TEEHR IR (Mizk@)) 83.88%
JE LR EE

FETF 28 (B 5E(b)) 25
AT =E (i5ECQ) 0.435%
TEHAR B =& 3.53%

37.

UNLISTED WARRANTS (Continued)

As at 30 June 2011, the weighted average remaining
contractual life of the Unlisted Warrants outstanding was
0.55 years.

In the opinion of the directors, the fair value of the services
provided by the Consultants could not be reasonably
estimated. Therefore, the fair value of the services was
measured by reference to the fair value of the Unlisted
Warrants. The fair value of the Unlisted Warrants was
determined by using the Binomial Option Pricing Model.

The following table lists the inputs to the Binomial Option
Pricing Model used for calculating the fair value of the
Unlisted Warrants granted during the year ended 30 June
2010:

Date of start of services

18 January 2010
Share price HK$0.35
Exercise price HK$0.173
Expected volatility (note (a)) 83.88%
Expected life of the Unlisted Warrants

(note (b)) 2 years
Risk-free rate (note (c)) 0.435%
Expected dividend yield 3.53%
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(%&)

Hiet -

@  FEHKE: HEREER
BiEte A AR EMER
AR m) B W (B e s
B

(b) FEEMRRAEE 2B F
H:ELmRREZZE
AR - R BT HERTT(E R
FIAEZR Z (&5 ©

© ERBAE : HFREFBI
ERESRE B HREE -

HE-_Z——FA=THLF
& - BRI L mRR AR AR
2 PAR% A7 1B 5 B FA35,339,0007%
TEREBEZER  BESEDH
ARIRIE B - R R
BRRS  BtEERENE

(==
=]

o

=+ i 38.

REHE

AEERANEFEAREBRHHER
BREY s B EGREERE
REF o

H th# & AR KB A R 2 5o
F“Fﬁ?zﬁzwﬁiéﬁiW&zﬁ%aH
HliEmE B RERE BRI RAT
TGRSR EERAR
L ERE o

UNLISTED WARRANTS (Continued)

Notes:

(@) Expected volatility: being the approximate historical
volatility of closing prices of the shares of the Company
in the past 2 years immediately before the date of start
of services.

(b) Expected life of the Unlisted Warrants: being the
effective life of the Unlisted Warrants estimated from
the expected exercising time frame.

(© Risk-free rate: being the approximate yields to maturity
of Hong Kong Exchange Fund Note.

For the year ended 30 June 2012, HK$35,339,000 of share-
based compensation expenses in relation to the issue of the
Unlisted Warrants had been recognised in profit or loss and
the corresponding amount of which had been credited to
the warrant reserve. No liabilities were recognised due to
share-based payment transactions.

RESERVES

Group

The amounts of the Group’s reserves and the movements
therein for the current and prior years are presented in the
consolidated statement of changes in equity.

Other reserve represents the difference between the
consideration paid for the additional interest in the
subsidiaries and the non-controlling interest’s share of the
assets and liabilities reflected in the consolidated statement
of financial position at the dates of the acquisitions of the
non-controlling interests.

&
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=+I)\ - & 38. RESERVES (continued)
AT Company
AR TEREE
RARER ARER e ERfE
Share il Non-  Convertible REEA
premium Warrant ~ distributable  note equity Retained 3
account reserve reserve reserve profits Total
FET FET TET TEL TEL FEL
HK$000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
RZZ-FELA-A2fH  Balanceat 1 uy2010 190,743 53,008 273,606 - 214033 731,39
EATARZE(WE=1M)  Issue of convertible note (note 34) - - = 2310 = 2310
“T—FHERE Interim 2011 dividend - - - - (3.128) (3,129)
HEEALIR S Transactions with owners = = = 2310 (3,129) 818)
REEMF Net profit for the year = - - - 5,388 5,388
TR ENRAE Total comprehensive income
for the year - - - - 5388 5388
RZE—F AZTAR Balance at 30 June 2011 and
“S-—FErR-HzER 1 July 2011 190,743 53,008 273,606 2310 216,293 735,960
RERA (W =1730) Shares subscription (note 3610) 34,823 - - - - 34823
WEEMELE (E42.16) Acquistion of subsidiaries
(note 42.1()) 165,882 - - - - 165,882
EATARZE (WE=1M)  Issue of convertible note (note 34) - - - 116,034 = 116,034
KR EER 2 Bz Recognition of share-based
B2 (WE=11) compensation (note 37) - 35,339 = = = 35339
HEEAIRS Transactions with owners 200,705 35,339 - 116,034 - 352,078
FEE SRR Net loss for the year - - - - (136,175) (136,175)
TR ENRAE Total comprehensive income
for the year - - - - (136,175) (136,175)
S EmaAREER S Amount transferred to retained
MEtREETHEH profits s a result of expiration
of unlisted warrants - (88,347) - - 88,347 -
RZE-ZFRA=THZES  Balance at 30 June 2012 391,448 - 273,606 118,344 168,465 951,863
el D iREHER —LALUNE The non-distributable reserve represents the premium arising

on the reduction of the par value of ordinary shares of the
Company from HK$2.50 to HK$0.10 per share in 1994.
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RNARGHE T EKIB R RIARTT
B 12 1£487,500,0008 T (=
——14F : 481,000,000/ 7T) 2 &
R o IBIRER - WERITARAEWKE
AEER » KRR BEAERIEIT
BRZEMF -REER  BARNE
ERATEHRREEEZEER
K2 ER - B ER AR ER
BREDEBE N 2B EELEE -

M+~ EAKIE

R-ZTF——FXA=1TH &%
B ARRE THRENZER

40.

The Company has provided guarantees amounting to
HK$487,500,000 (2011: HK$481,000,000) with respect to
bank loans to its subsidiaries. Under the guarantees, the
Company would be liable to pay the banks if the banks
are unable to recover the loans. At the reporting date, no
provision for the Company’s obligation under the guarantee
contract has been made as the directors considered that it
was not probable that the repayment of the loans would be
in default.

CAPITAL COMMITMENTS

At 30 June 2012, the Group/the Company had outstanding
capital commitments as follows:

HHE
iNSE] NG
Group Company
2012 2011 2012 2011
FET FET FET FHET
HK$’000 HK$'000 HKS$'000 HK$'000
EHENEVS L. Contracted but not provided for:
ER S Property, plant and equipment 1,114 = = =
RENFETHE Properties under development
RBERRME classified under investment
property 13,752 13,832 - -
SRBERERR Cash consideration in relation
BeRE to the acquisition of subsidiaries = 113,000 = 113,000
REMEBTHEAR Properties under development
ERAME classified under investment
AR B BT property undertaken by a
AEERGEHD jointly controlled entity
attributable to the Group 279,389 120,497 - -
294255 247,329 - 113,000

&
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41. OPERATING LEASE COMMITMENTS

The Group leases certain shops, office properties and
staff quarters under operating lease arrangements. Leases
(including contingent rental) are negotiated at fixed rate or
with reference to level of business and terms ranging from
one to three years.

Total future minimum lease payments under non-cancellable
operating leases falling were due as follows:

T

AEE

Group
2012 2011
FET FET
HK$'000 HK$'000
—i A Within one year 2,027 2,296
“FEFRF (BEEHEMT)  Inthe second to fifth year, inclusive 1,488 140
3,515 2,436

RZE——FR-_FT——F<H
=+8  ARBWELALELEHE
Bk

At 30 June 2012 and 2011, the Company did not have any
operating lease arrangements.
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BUSINESS COMBINATION/DISPOSAL

BrF OF SUBSIDIARIES
421 ¥EEEH 42.1 Business combination:

@ R-ZT=——F+1+ A ) On 12 October 2011, the Group acquired
TZH -REEWmZ 100% of the share capital of Big Bonus
X 18 78 1+ B 16 3R Limited and the shareholder’s loan from
REHhERTIE - Benefit Well having satisfied the terms and
7N £ [E [mBenefit Well conditions of the S & P Agreement and
I %Big Bonust B HY Supplemental Agreement. The acquisition
100% A% 78 K Benefit was made as the Group's strategy is to
Well R EB IR R E capture the sustained growth in global
Koz WHE TR KB demand for natural resources. The
EIEERERAEIR acquired business contributed revenue
B 7 SR 15 AR 1S R of HK$3,831,000 and loss after tax of
g2 RES - B IR HK$6,292,000 to the Group from date of
BHHE T ——4F acquisition to 30 June 2012.
NA=TBATUREEE
BERMAE B NS5
3,831,000/ 7T & FR 1%

1% &35 56,292,000/
IE o
U4 % BBig Bonust= & The fair value of the identifiable assets and
WRIHREENME R liabilities of Big Bonus Group as at the date
RAFEMT : of acquisition were as follows:
2012
AFE
Fair value
FET
HK$’000
AR Mining right 1,017,663
L E RN e Property, plant and equipment 60,038
T R Land use rights 39,319
TERTFRIE  Ze R EMAEUWTIAE  Other receivables, prepayments and deposits 2,020
P RIBITEERR Cash and bank balances 38,613
FEAT A& R RIFRIE Due to a related company (35,542)
H b fE < 5KI8 Other payables (95,382)
Benefit Wellf2 £ HY J SR B 7k Shareholder’s loan from Benefit Well (150,400)
EEFIBEE Deferred tax liabilities (237,784)
BNEEESE Net assets acquired 638,545
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421 EBSH(E)

(@

42. BUSINESS COMBINATION/DISPOSAL

OF SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

42.1 Business combination: (Continued)

(&) (a) (Continued)
2012
FET
HK$'000
BERE: Purchase consideration:
—EffR& — Cash paid 113,000
— A ]REERCHAFE — Fair value of the Convertible Note C (note 34)
(BftsE=+m) 127,619
— BT A FE — Fair value of shares issued (note 36(a))

(ME=+7@) 183,529
HMEBERE Total purchase consideration 424,148
EXFREWIERIHRFEE  Fair value of net identifiable assets

/NS =] acquired as shown above (638,545)
Benefit Wellf2 £t A9 A% 3R & 5k Shareholder’s loan from Benefit Well (150,400)
MG B BT B A B 2 AT a0 % Excess of interest in the net fair value of

BEMFAFEERBR the net identifiable assets over the

WIS B AR R ERI S fair value of the total cost of acquisition

of subsidiaries (364,797)

R UCHE B b g
WHB 2 RAFEE
432,000 7T ° E
EWRIB 2 BEH®
¥H3£432,000/8 7t
TEAA Al 2 &R E o

REBGUBEEIE
&4 22 5 & 55,000
BIL e RAFER -
RHERABKEERR
PR EHREAEHE
WS RN BIEEITIR
B -

The fair value of other receivables as
at the date of acquisition amounted to
HK$432,000. The gross contractual amounts
of other receivables were HK$432,000 which
is expected to be collected in full.

The Group incurred transaction costs of
HK$55,000 for this acquisition. These
transaction costs have been recognised
in the profit or loss and included under
administrative expenses in the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income during
the year.
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421 EXSH(E)

BUSINESS COMBINATION/DISPOSAL
OF SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

42.1

Business combination: (Continued)

@ (&) ©) (Continued)
A Uk #EBig Bonuste An analysis of the net outflow of cash and
NEe MESERE cash equivalents in respect of the acquisition
SFMEEB DT of Big Bonus Group was as follows:
2012
FET
HK$’000
WESES 2B &M HIFER Net cash outflow arising on the acquisition:
BBREESKE Cash consideration paid (113,000)
BUWERB AR ZRE R Cash and bank balances in subsidiaries acquired
RITHEER 38,613
(74,387)

i WER =F —
FE+A—BET R
HE_ZT——-F-X

A=THLFER"
A& Bz W KRR

-S| Sl =
955,712,000/ JT &
204,712,000/ JT °
HEEREHFEZ
A WA RREBERK
BERZZE—F+
A—BEKEREE
BRI EEL WA K
BARRERE ZTEA -

S PN AT
PRFEENFRF
Bz EBKER
A E) R FER EB D
Yeh T = B ARl
BERERRERNHR
WiE BB AP ER
BEEWm#AHNAHNE
PR PR

If the acquisition had occurred on 1 July
2011, the Group’s revenue and profit after
tax would have been HK$955,712,000
and HK$204,712,000 respectively, for the
year ended 30 June 2012. This pro forma
information is for illustrative purposes
only and is not necessarily an indication
of revenue and results of operations of
the Group that actually would had been
achieved had the acquisition been completed
on 1 July 2011, nor is it intended to be a
projection of future results.

The gain on excess of interest in the net
fair value of the net identifiable assets over
the fair value of the total cost of acquisition
of subsidiaries is mainly attributed by the
decrease in the fair values of the convertible
note and consideration shares at the
acquisition date as compared to that on the
contract date of the S & P Agreement.

El
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by RZFT——F=H
=+—H x£H
EEGolden Creation
Company Limited
(T Golden Creation )
Al RE W& N
ReEREBAEELD
1,000,000/ 7T R #E
Golden CreationZ 2
BHITRAZ80% °
R B E KR E 5

A 3/ S S

K £ B H 5 Golden
CreationZ £l »
Golden Creationlth 1%
RAREEZHBA
7] ° Golden Creation
REKERECBA

Golden Creation U
% B HA R 2 1
1 #159,0007% 7T T}
iR #&Golden Creation
FE 122 5 4 25 P A AT 3%
BB EFEZ L HIET

=
E-°

42. BUSINESS COMBINATION/DISPOSAL
OF SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

421

Business combination: (Continued)

(b)

On 31 March 2011, the Group entered
into a subscription agreement with Golden
Creation Company Limited (“Golden
Creation”) to subscribe for 80% of the
issued share capital of Golden Creation at
a total cash consideration of approximately
HK$1,000,000. Having satisfied the terms
and conditions of the subscription agreement
on the same date, the Group obtained
control of Golden Creation which became
the subsidiary of the Group thereafter.
Golden Creation is engaged in trading of
jewels and precious metal ornament.

The non-controlling interest in Golden
Creation recognised at the acquisition date
was measured by non-controlling interest
proportionate share of Golden Creation’s
identifiable net assets and the amount was
amounted to HK$159,000.



Notes to the Financial Statements m BT8R 5 i+

For the year ended 30 June 2012
HE_ZT S A=1THILFE

Annual Report 2012 4§

M+ - £% 44 HEMH 42.

BAE e
421 ¥#EEH(E)

b (%)

BUSINESS COMBINATION/DISPOSAL

OF SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

42.1 Business combination: (Continued)

(b) (Continued)

2011
AF{E
Fair value
FET
HK$’000

ME - BB RRE

B 5 R RIA

BN - e REMERRIR
e RIRITHEH

FE

B 5 RNRIA

H b 5B R B &R
ek

Property, plant and equipment

Trade receivables

Prepayment, deposits and other receivables
Cash and bank balances

Inventories

Trade payables

Other payables and accruals
Non-controlling interests

66
8,355
127
2,414
2,511
(6,096)
(6,536)
159

BEWEEERE

Net assets acquired

1,000

WEEL 2HERAFER
ENBRENE
BERBHBARZEHEE R

RITHEER

Net cash inflow arising on the acquisition:
Cash consideration paid
Cash and bank balances in
subsidiary acquired

(1,000)

2,414

1,414

—
O
=
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42. BUSINESS COMBINATION/DISPOSAL
OF SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

42.1 Business combination: (Continued)

(b) (&) (b)  (Continued)

BEWEBEEEREFE Details of net assets acquired were as

;T follows:
2011
FAET
HK$'000
LRI MZEERE Purchase consideration settled in cash 1,000
BlEFEE2 A ATE Fair value of net assets acquired (1,000)
[EE Goodwill _

RIEEBRE SR
WHBE 2 A FEE
8,400,000/ 7T ° E 5
EWRIB 2 BEHE
FA3%9,500,000/8 7T
TEHRE #F#£1,100,000
EIL AT AYE o

AEE I IEEE
4R 5 B F18,000
BT - REBEEZZT
——EXAZ+AHLE
FEN RHERE
I BETER -

The fair value of trade receivables as
at the date of acquisition amounted to
HK$8,400,000. The gross contractual
amounts of trade receivables were
HK$9,500,000, of which an amount
of HK$1,100,000 is expected to be
uncollectible.

The Group incurred transaction costs of
HK$18,000 for this acquisition. These
transaction costs have been recognised in the
profit or loss during the year ended 30 June
2011.
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42. BUSINESS COMBINATION/DISPOSAL
OF SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

42.2 Disposal of subsidiaries:

FRAREBDFHE TH The Group had deregistered several subsidiaries
BAR BERAEEZFA during the year and the net liabilities being disposed
BT of are as follows:
2012 2011
FET FEIT
HK$’000 HK$'000
TEfTFIA - B ® Prepayment, deposits
K LA E IWGR IR and other receivables 95 1,503
BN RIBRERTE R Accruals and other payables (277) (4,814)
KAIR 2 I Translation reserve realised = (447)
JEFE | 4 2 Non-controlling interests (532) (851)
Ex L) PNEI & Gain on deregistration of subsidiaries (714) (4,609)

m+= BHEALZS

BRIA %L 15 oAb & 0 B FR
ZRBALRFZIN  REBERF
NENIBEEALRS -

(@ X 113,203,000 T (=&

——% :3,813,00087L) &
BERTETHERAF -
DBEERKAEEERE
RN RR L BE R A o

N

N\

=tTRIEFER  BAR
BREBCELERESEH S
465,000 7T (ZF ——
F:.\) HEMN EBH
Tamar Investments » £ 8

HERE L ESHES -

43. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

In addition to those related party transactions disclosed
elsewhere in these financial statements, during the year, the
Group had the following related party transactions.

(a) Subcontracting fees of HK$3,203,000 (2011:
HK$3,813,000) paid to certain associates. The
subcontracting fees are mutually negotiated
between the Group and the associates.

(b) During the year ended 30 June 2012, imputed
interest expenses of HK$465,000 (2011: Nil) were
incurred and paid/payable to Tamar Investments,
which is beneficially owned by Dr. Chan, in relation
to the Convertible Note C.
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43. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

(Continued)

(©

During the year ended 30 June 2012, imputed
interest expenses of HK$141,000 (2011: Nil) were
incurred to a related company of which Dr. Chan is a
beneficial owner.

d REBBE-_ZT——-F,xA (d)  During the year ended 30 June 2012, interest
=THIEFERN  $HER expenses of HK$1,137,000 (2011: Nil) payable to
R EH ERERIE L Dr. Chan in relation to the loan from a controlling
S A A B R 21,137,00078 shareholder.

T(ZE——F: &) -

) EEBEEAERAH (e) Compensation of key management personnel
IANEBERAFEZZEFE Included in employee benefit expenses are key
EERABRABE NAIEE management personnel compensation and comprise
Rl : the following:

2012 2011

FET FAET

HK$’000 HK$’000

EEIE B 18 A Short term employee benefits 11,289 9,677
BERL A2 A Post-employment benefits 351 312
11,640 9,989

(f)  UKBEBig BonusEEE 2 15
E Y s et el 8 S
42.1(a) °

U BE5,384,52 7 IRMMSREZ 15
ZHEBEHRHE-+t =K
=+m-

—~
«
=

B LR+ =0)  @+=
(0 m+ = Hm+=(Hk
PO+ =(QMBEA LR F IR
EHRAIE AR E &K B E

%5

The acquisition of Big Bonus Group as detailed in
note 34 and note 42.1(a).

The acquisition of 5,384,527 shares of MMS as
detailed in note 22 and note 34.

The related party transaction in respect of note 43(b), 43(c),
43(d), 43(f) and 43(g) also constitute connected transactions
as defined in Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.
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M+m - L8R ERERM 44. NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED

S STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

BE—_ET——®,xA=1THI=E During the year ended 30 June 2012, the Group had the

B AEBETHEEIERER following major non-cash transactions:

5

(@) LM EE42.1(a)FF k- W BE (@  As detailed in note 42.1(a), the acquisition of Big
Big Bonustk B — = imiA E Bonus Group was satisfied by issuing the Convertible
1A B 4127,619,0007% Note C with fair value of HK$127,619,000 and the
TLZ AR EBCK BT issue of a total of 1,764,705,880 shares with fair
& $£1,764,705,8808% % 15 value of HK$183,529,000.
(A F & /183,529,000
TT) XA e

HE—_T——FA=1tHIF During the year ended 30 June 2011, the Group had the

B AEEETHEZIERER following major non-cash transactions:

5

(@ WHZE=—+=—K=1P:F @) As detailed in notes 22 and 34, the acquisition of
it + 1A50,518,0007% 7T W 2,239,873 shares of MMS at the consideration of
#82,239,873MMSHR 15 HK$50,518,000 was satisfied by issuing Convertible
ZREBBETATER Note A with fair value of HK$50,518,000.
50,518,000/ 7T 2 7] # A%
EEAT T o

by ETYWHE BEAREZ (b) The purchase consideration of certain property,
BEREEREBE_Z— plant and equipment was settled by the deposits of
ZEXNA=ZTHIEFEIN HK$2,640,000 which had been paid during the year
2,640,000/ TR & X fif ° ended 30 June 2010.

M+5 - U AERZ R 45. SHARE-BASED COMPENSATION

B =t &1 SCHEME

RRE 2 B8 ([%EH 8D The share option scheme of the Company (the “Scheme”)

AARAERER—_E—ZEF+ A was approved by the shareholders of the Company on 13

T=HitE - ZETEIERE AT July 2010. The Scheme would be valid for a period of ten

Fo years.

Exg((E5e)) TRBEGEE
HTEIJAﬁT%}\i%iﬁ%HﬂEM
REARE 2 -

The board of directors (“Board”) may in its discretion, invite
any following eligible person to take up the options to
subscribe for shares of the Company.

&
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45. SHARE-BASED COMPENSATION

SCHEME (Continued)

(i) any employee (whether full time or part time), senior
executive or officer, manager, director (including
executive, non-executive and independent non-
executive director) or consultant of the Company;
any of its subsidiaries or any investee who, as
determined by the Board, have contributed or will
contribute to the growth and development of the
Group; or

(ii) any investee.

The subscription price must be at least the highest of (i)
the closing price of the shares of the Company as stated in
the Stock Exchange’s daily quotations sheet on the date of
offer of the option, which must be a business day; (ii) the
average closing price of the shares of the Company as stated
in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotations sheets for the five
business days immediately preceding the date of offer of
the option; and (iii) the nominal value of the shares of the
Company.

The eligible person must accept any such offer notified to
him or her within ten business days from the offer date.
Upon acceptance of the offer, the grantee shall pay HK$1
to the Company as consideration for the grant. The total
number of shares which may be issued upon exercise of
all options to be granted under the Scheme must not in
aggregate exceed (i) 10% of the shares of the Company
in issue at the adoption date; or (ii) 30% of the issued
share capital of the Company from time to time. The total
number of shares of the Company issued and to be issued
upon exercise of the options granted (including both
exercised and outstanding options) to each participant in
any 12-month period must not exceed 1% of the share
capital of the Company then in issue unless approved by the
shareholders of the Company in general meetings.
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45.

46.

SHARE-BASED COMPENSATION
SCHEME (Continued)

The option period shall be notified by the Board to each
grantee upon grant of each option, provided that it shall
commence on a date not earlier than the offer date and not
be more than ten years from the offer date. No share option
was granted pursuant to the Scheme since its adoption.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES

The Group’s major financial instruments include equity
investments, loan to a jointly controlled entity, trade
receivables, other receivables, redemption options of
convertible notes, cash and cash equivalents, trade payables,
other payables and accruals, bank loans, balances with
subsidiaries, associates and jointly controlled entities,
derivative financial instruments, amount due to ultimate
holding company, amount due to a related company, loan
from a controlling shareholder and convertible notes. Details
of these financial instruments are disclosed in respective
notes. The risks associated with these financial instruments
and the policies on how to mitigate these risks are set
out below. Management manages and monitors these
exposures to ensure appropriate measures are implemented
on a timely and effective manner.
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46. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (Continued)

Market risk

0

Foreign currency risk

Group

Foreign currency risk refers to the risk that the fair
value or future cash flows of a financial instrument
will fluctuate because of changes in foreign
exchange rates. The Group mainly operates in Hong
Kong, the United Kingdom and the Mainland China
with most of the transactions denominated and
settled in HK$, United States dollars (“US$"), British
Pounds, Canadian Dollars (“CAD") and RMB. No
foreign currency risk has been identified for the
financial assets and financial liabilities denominated
in RMB, which is the functional currencies of the
subsidiaries in Mainland China to which these
transactions relate. The Group’s exposure to foreign
currency risk primarily arises from certain financial
instruments including available-for-sale financial
assets, trade receivables, cash and cash equivalents,
trade payables and derivative financial instruments
which are denominated in US$, Euro, British Pounds,
CAD and Philippines Pesos. During the years, the
Group did not have foreign currency hedging policy
but management continuously monitors the foreign
exchange exposure.

The following table summarises the Group’s major
financial assets and liabilities denominated in
currencies other than the functional currency of the
respective group companies as at 30 June 2012 and
2011.
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46. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

M+~ M5 EREE EH R

RBUK (&) OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (Continued)
higEkE (42) Market risk (Continued)

) SMNEmRE (&)

() Foreign currency risk (Continued)

REE (E) Group (Continued)
AT 78 T3 R
Expressed in HK$' 000
ES B HEE mx FEERZR
British Philippines
US$ Euro Pounds CAD Pesos
—E-——F At 30 June 2012
~B=1H
AftHEZ Available-for-sale financial
TREE assets - - - 18,068 1,760
2 S Eda Trade receivables 95,097 1,752 11,752 = =
BE&NIREERE  Cash and cash equivalents 47,391 576 11,200 1,018 =
B SN FIE Trade payables (118,923) (186) (638) = -
TESRmIA Derivative financial
instruments - - (84) - -
BEEER Overall net exposure 23,565 2,142 22,230 19,086 1,760
—2——F At 30 June 2011
AB=1H
AftHEZ Available-for-sale financial
SREE assets 4,231 - - 113,762 1,198
2 S EdEa Trade receivables 93,704 = 17,619 = =
BE&NIREERE  Cash and cash equivalents 25,224 866 6,041 109 -
B S EMFE Trade payables (113,264) (661) (573) = =
THEEmIA Derivative financial
instruments - - 126 - -
BEEER Overall net exposure 9,895 205 23,213 113,871 1,198

El



Notes to the Financial Statements m BT8R S Mz

For the year ended 30 June 2012

HE-T—

ZERA=THIEFE

75~ M5 EREEE R

RBUR®)

miERR (&)
) SMERRE (E)
AEE(E)

MR EB T - K
SEBEFETABTZIE
IR HEEMNEALR
H-EFZRAR BEANE
AEBAEXTINEZ 2B
BERABAEBZIBRE
2 REARHREER
ETLABTZERZEFHT
R BEEFHREINAL
ERHRBIMEE  TRAE
AEENEEANRTE
P VEL P =g a2
HH AR AREZF
P A R g e 3R 2 4D
HE) o

46. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (Continued)

Market risk (Continued)

0

Foreign currency risk (Continued)

Group (Continued)

As US$ is pegged to HK$, the Group does not
expect any significant movements in the US$/
HK$ exchange rates. No sensitivity analysis in
respect of the Group’s financial assets and liabilities
denominated in US$ is disclosed as in the opinion
of directors, such sensitivity analysis does not give
additional value in view of insignificant movement
in the US$/HK$ exchange rates as at reporting
date. The following table indicates the approximate
change in the Group's profit for the year and equity
in response to reasonably possible changes in the
foreign exchange rates to which the Group has
significant exposure at the reporting date.
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mM+7< > B EREIEEEZE 46. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

K BUR (&) OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)
miE Ak (&) Market risk (Continued)
() SMNEESE (E) (i) Foreign currency risk (Continued)
REE (E) Group (Continued)
2012 2011
INERE = HER HNE FE 2 HER
t#/ iyl tH/ M Z
(T B) =2 i (TB%) 2 Ea
Increase/ Increase/
(Decrease) (Decrease)
in foreign  Effect on in foreign Effect on
exchange profit for exchange profit for
rates the year Equity rates the year Equity
FET FET FET AT
HKS$’000 HKS$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BT Euro +5% 107 107 +5% 10 10
-5% (107) (107) -5% (10) (10)
B British Pounds +5% 1,364 1,364 +5% 516 516
-5% (1,196) (1,196) -5% (293) (293)
il CAD +5% 51 903 +5% 5 5,666
-5% (51) (903) 5% (5) (5,666)
JEZEWZ  Philippines Pesos +5% - 88 +5% = 60
-5% - (88) -5% = (60)
5( JE D AT TR R INEE [E The sensitivity analysis has been determined
RNEE R HIBEHmME assuming that the change in foreign exchange rates
o mATE EME S TR had occurred at the reporting dates and that all
R o other variables remain constant.
Bl > s Eh s S T B S The stated changes represent management'’s
AN FE R EA = R — & assessment of reasonably possible changes in foreign
FEAEEHAAEEEHEAZE exchange rates over the period until the next annual
IR o reporting date.
AEBBBEFEEAR— The policies to manage foreign currency risk have
BESTEEING RS 2K been followed by the Group since prior years and are
K WRRZEFHRER ° considered to be effective.
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46. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (Continued)

Market risk (Continued)

0

(i)

Foreign currency risk (Continued)

Company

The Company did not expose to foreign currency
risk.

Equity price risk

Equity price risk related to the risk that the fair values
or future cash flows of a financial instrument will
fluctuate because of change in market price (other
than changes in interest rate and foreign exchange
rate). The Group is exposed to equity price risk
through its investments in listed equity securities
which are classified as at fair value through profit
or loss, or available-for-sale. The board of directors
manages this exposure by maintaining a portfolio
of investments with different risk and return
profiles and will consider hedging the risk exposure
should the need arise. The Group is not exposed to
commodity price risk.

At 30 June 2012, if equity prices had increased/
(decreased) by 10% and all other variables were held
constant:

- the Group’s profit for the year would
increase/(decrease) by approximately
HK$1,155,000 (2011: increase/(decrease) by
approximately HK$1,388,000). This is mainly
due to the changes in financial assets at fair
value through profit or loss; and
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46. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (Continued)

Market risk (Continued)

(i)

(i)

Equity price risk (Continued)

- the Group’s equity other than retained
profits would increase/(decrease) by
approximately HK$3,291,000 (2011:
increase/(decrease) by approximately
HK$13,349,000) as a result of the changes
in fair value of listed equity investments
included in the Group’s available-for-sale
financial assets.

This sensitivity analysis has been determined
assuming that the price change had occurred at the
reporting dates and has been applied to the Group’s
investment on that date.

The policies to manage equity price risk have been
followed by the Group since prior years and are
considered to be effective.

Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk relates to the risk that the fair value
or cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate
because of changes in market interest rates. The
Group is exposed to interest rate risk primarily arising
from bank balances and bank borrowings. Majority
of the bank borrowings are arranged at variable
rates which expose the Group to cash flow interest
rate risk. The interest rates and repayment terms of
the bank borrowings outstanding at reporting dates
are disclosed in note 30.

The Group currently does not have an interest rate
hedging policy. However, management monitors
interest rate exposure and will consider hedging
significant interest rate exposure should the need
arise.

~J
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46. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (Continued)

Market risk (Continued)

(i)

Interest rate risk (Continued)

The following table illustrates the sensitivity of the
profit after tax for the year and retained profits to
a change in interest rates of +100 basis point and
-100 basis point (2011: +100 basis point and -100
basis point) with effect from the beginning of the
year. The calculations are based on the Group’s bank
balances and interest-bearing bank borrowings held
at each reporting date which are subject to variable
interest rates. All other variables are held constant.

2012 2011
FET FET
HK$’000 HK$’000
iR I 2= _E F- 1002524 If interest rates were 100 basis point
—T——% : 100EE) (2011: 100 basis point) higher
F T R IREB =T Net profit for the year and retained
R4 /AN profits (decrease)/increase by (469) 43
s 7 2= TS B 1005 2 If interest rates were 100 basis point
(== ——F : 100%2) (2011: 100 basis point) lower
F T R IRE & Net profit for the year and retained
20 Cri ) profits increase/(decrease) by 469 (43)
AEBBHBEFEAR— The policies to manage interest rate risk have

BHETERMNXRERZK
R WRRBZFBERER

been followed by the Group since prior years are

considered to be effective.
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OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (Continued)

Credit risk

Credit risk refers to the risk that the counterparty to a
financial instrument would fail to discharge its obligation
under the terms of the financial instruments and cause
a financial loss to the Group. In order to minimise the
credit risk, the senior management compiles the credit and
risk management policies, to approve credit limits and to
determine any debt recovery action on those delinquent
receivables. In addition, the Group reviews the recoverable
amount for each individual account receivables at each
reporting date to ensure that adequate impairment losses
are made for irrecoverable amounts. In this regard, the
board of directors considers that the Group’s credit risk is
effectively controlled and significantly reduced.

As at 30 June 2012, the Group had concentration of credit
risk as 48% (2011: 40%) of the Group's trade receivables
which were due from one of the Group’s largest customers
within the design, manufacturing, marketing and trading of
the jewellery and diamonds segment.

The Company’s maximum exposure to credit risk is
primarily attributable to amounts due from subsidiaries,
other receivables and contingent liabilities in relation to the
financial guarantee contracts as detailed in note 39 to the
financial statements.

The Group's credit risk exposure is spread over a number of
counterparties and customers. Hence, it has no significant
concentration of credit risk by a single debtor.
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46.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (Continued)

Credit risk (Continued)

Credit risk on cash and bank balances is mitigated as cash is
deposited in banks of high credit rating.

Further quantitative data in respect of the Group’ exposure
to credit risk arising from long term and trade receivables
are disclosed in notes 23 and 25 to the financial statements
respectively.

Save as the long-term receivables as detailed in note 23(a),
none of the Group'’s financial assets are secured by collateral
or other credit enhancements.

The credit policies have been followed by the Group since
prior years and are considered to have been effective in
limiting the Group's exposure to credit risk to a desirable
level.

Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk related to the risk that the Group will not
be able to meet its obligation associated with its financial
liabilities. In the management of the liquidity risk, the Group
monitors and maintains a level of cash and cash equivalents
deemed adequate by management to finance the Group's
operations and mitigate the effects of fluctuations in cash
flows in the short and long term. Management monitors the
utilisation of bank borrowings and ensures compliance with
loan covenants.
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46.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (Continued)

Liquidity risk (Continued)

The liquidity of the Group is dependent on its ability to
maintain adequate cash flows from operations to meet
its obligations as they fall due and on its ability to obtain
external financing. As detailed in note 30 to the financial
statements, subsequent to reporting date, the Group had
obtained a written confirmation from one of the Group's
bankers to confirm its intention to renew several banking
facilities, in aggregate, of up to HK$380,000,000 to the
Group upon maturity of the borrowings. Therefore, in the
opinion of the directors, there is no significant liquidity risk
exposure as at reporting date.

The liquidity policies have been followed by the Group since
prior years and are considered to have been effective in
managing liquidity risk.

The following tables show the remaining contractual
maturities at the reporting date of the Group’s financial
liabilities, which are based on contractual undiscounted
cash flows (including interest payments computed using
contractual rates or, if floating, based on rates current at
the reporting date) and the earliest date the Group can be
required to pay.

Specifically, for bank loans which contain a repayment on
demand clause which can be exercised at the bank’s sole
discretion, the analysis shows the cash outflow based on
the earliest period in which the entity can be required to
pay, that is if the lenders were to invoke their unconditional
rights to call the loans with immediate effect.
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46. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (Continued)

Liquidity risk (Continued)

RE Group
BHRITE
BEnE 1ERE
b 1508 BOHE
Total 1ZEXREE  More than
fEHE  contractual Within 1 year but 28k
Carrying undiscounted 1 year or lessthan ~ More than
amount  cashflow ondemand 2 years 2 years
FET FET FET FET AT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
RZZB-Z#XA=tH As at 30 June 2012
FiESRERE: Non-derivative financial liabilities:
BHEMNFE Trade payables 133,166 133,166 133,166 = =
EtERTBRENER Other payables and accruals 72,802 72,802 72,802 - -
RREER Convertible notes 68,583 72,795 63,045 4,875 4,875
ERRERRARTE Due to ultimate holding company 7,871 7,877 - 7,877 -
ERBE AR Due to associates 1M1 1M1 111 - -
RITER Bank loans 324,172 324,172 34,172 - -
ERBEARE Due to a related company 27,91 33,275 = = 33,275
BRRRREHER Loan from a controlling shareholder 105,000 106,575 1,575 105,000 -
739,672 750,773 594,871 117,752 38,150
RZZB-Z#XA=tH As at 30 June 2012
fTEeRaE: Derivative financial liabilities:
fTESRMIE Derivative financial instruments 84 84 84 - -
RZE--%XA=tH As at 30 June 2011
FTESRER: Non-derivative financial liabilities:
BHRNTE Trade payables 143,522 143,522 143,522 - -
HtERTBRENER Other payables and accruals 41,859 41,859 41,859 - -
REEs Convertible note 50,802 58,170 - 58,170 -
S —FRFEHEETE  Duetoajointly controlled entity 14 14 14 - -
RITER Bank loans 235,139 235,139 235,139 - -
R REER AR Due to ultimate holding company 7877 7877 - 7,871 -
479213 486,581 420,534 66,047 -
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BHBUR () OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (Continued)
REBESRERE (2) Liquidity risk (Continued)
RAF] Company
BHRFR
BeRe 1ENE

Mz 1£R%  BORE
Total EREE  Morethan

fRE{E  contractual Within 1 year but 2ELE
Carrying undiscounted 1 year or lessthan ~ More than
amount  cashflow ondemand 2 years 2 years

TET TET TET TET TEL
HK$'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000

RIE-ZFxA=1H As at 30 June 2012

At EERE B Other payables and accruals 1417 1417 1,417 = -
FER B ARTE Due to subsidiaries 7,426 7,426 7,426 - -
TERRE Convertible notes 68,583 72,795 63,045 4,875 4,875
ERBRRRENER Loan from a controling shareholder 105,000 106,575 1,575 105,000 -
182,426 188,213 73,463 109,875 4,875

iz B AR Financial guarantee issued
EAERERE Maximum amount quaranteed - 324,172 324,172 = =

RZE-——-FxA=1H As at 30 June 2011

HERTEREGER Other payables and accruals 492 492 492 = -
AHREE Convertible note 50,802 58,170 - 58,170 -
51,294 58,662 492 58,170 -
iz B AR Financial guarantee issued
RAEREE Maximum amount quaranteed - 235,139 235,139 =

El
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OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (Continued)

Liquidity risk (Continued)
Group

The table that follows summarises the maturity analysis
of bank loans with a repayment on demand clause based
on agreed scheduled repayments set out in the loan
agreements. The amounts include interest payments
computed using contractual rates. As a result, these
amounts were greater than the amounts disclosed in the
“within 1 year or on demand” time band in the maturity
analysis shown below. Taking into account the Group’s
financial position, the directors do not consider that it is
probable that the bank will exercise its discretion to demand
immediate repayment. The directors believe that such
bank loans will be repaid in accordance with the scheduled
repayment dates set out in the loan agreements.

HERI T -HRRERBRABRINBTER RERTERAS
Maturity analysis - Bank loans subject to repayment on demand
clause based on scheduled repayment dates

AHRRR
BERE 1550E
agm 1Ers  BOREF

Total 1ZEXREE  More than
fEHME  contractual Within 1 year but 2Bk
Carrying undiscounted 1 year or lessthan ~ More than
amount  cashflow ondemand 2 years 2 years

TEL TEL TEL TEL FET
HK$'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000

RIE-ZF5xA=1H As at 30 June 2012
RITEH Bank loan 324,172 332,471 331,217 1,254 =
RZE——F5xA=1H As at 30 June 2011
RITER Bank loan 235,139 244,464 47,101 197,363 =
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mM+7< > B EREIEEEZE 46. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
KBR#) OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)

REEARRRER 2 DX FET 2 Fair value measurements recognised in the statement
of financial position

IEBIREBFTELSEREER The hierarchy groups financial assets and liabilities into three

BEZATEMERZFZHA levels based on the relative reliability of significant inputs

ZHESAEE  HeMmEERS used in measuring the fair value of these financial assets and

BEIDAB=E 45 - AFEMEE liabilities. The fair value hierarchy has the following levels:

BOABUATEE :

= FE - HREERER - Level 1: quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets
M52 RE CREFHE) for identical assets;

= F2E : gt LA M E# (B - Level 2: inputs other than quoted prices included
B s (AR ER within Level 1 that are observable for the
HeDT) AT EER 2 A (S instruments, either directly (i.e. as prices) or indirectly
BEFIEME S 2R (i.e. derived from prices); and
&) &k

- ZE3E : W IR IE Al B - Level 3: inputs for the instruments that are not based
ZTGEEmMERE IR on observable market data (unobservable inputs).

BA(BEEBRZBA)

N
—
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)

M7~ B Rk EIE B E 46.
BBUR &)

REBERRRERZ A FET2 Fair value measurements recognised in the statement
(%) of financial position (Continued)

—HERMEENBEREMER
AZRFERBAZEBR  BE
RERTEAEABERBEZ
REBREMETE - R HH
HRRRHBRRARARDTE
AEZERMEENBEDEN S

The level in the fair value hierarchy within which the
financial assets and liabilities is categorised in its entirety is
based on the lowest level of input that is significant to the
fair value measurement. The financial assets and liabilities
measured at fair value in the consolidated statement of
financial position/statement of financial position are grouped

N
N

AR 2 AT ESRE into the fair value hierarchy as follows:
AEE
Group
F1E F2E F3E st
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
FET FET FET FET
HK$’000 HKS’000 HK$’000 HK$'000
(Hrit(a)) (Hrzt(b)) (Hizt(c)
(note (a)) (note (b)) (note (c)
RZZ-Z%,A=1+H  Asat30June 2012
HRHEZERHEE Available-for-sale financial assets
~EEBEMZRAES - Equity securities listed in Hong Kong 13,077 - - 13,077
—TEBI T ZRAES  — Equity securities listed in overseas 19,828 - - 19,828
FEEEZ FMES - Listed securities held for trading:
~HEE LT ZRAES - Equity securities listed in Hong Kong 11,548 - = 11,548
AR EE 2 EEEZE  Redemption options of convertible notes = = 148 148
fTHEEMTA Derivative financial instruments = (84) = (84)
44,453 (84) 148 44,517
RZZB-——%XA=tH Asat30June2011
AHE s eHEE Available-for-sale financial assets
~EEREMZRAES - Equity securities listed in Hong Kong 18,527 = = 18,527
—TEBIN LT ZRARES - Equity securities listed in overseas 114,960 = = 114,960
FIEEEC EMES - Listed securities held for trading:
~EEBEMZBAES - Equity securities listed in Hong Kong 13,874 = = 13,874
AHEZER ZEDEEE  Redemption option of convertible note - - 1,361 1,361
TEemIA Derivative finandial instruments - 126 - 126
147,361 126 1,361 148,848
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BEEK ) OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)
REEARRRER 2 DX FET 2 Fair value measurements recognised in the statement
(%) of financial position (Continued)
LN
Company
F1E 2B H3E @t
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
FET FET FET FET
HKS’000 HKS’000 HKS’000 HK$’000
(Hrit(a) (Hrzt(b)) (Hiz(c)
(note (a)) (note (b)) (note (c)
R=Z-—F5xA=TH Asat30June 2012
AHBRREE Redemption options of
BEERE convertible notes - - 148 148
RZZ——%A=+H  Asat30June 2011
ARREEZ Redemption option of
EOREE convertible note = = 1,361 1,361

RETERFEZIERGER

WIE@LAEZ#&%%@F&*@%I%E&

EHRAES 2 AFET
K2EHEEBEMBIEAN
BEEY D RHRE R
HASINE B I 2 3 4 (i

)

TEERTAZAFET
ERARMSRAUTAEZ
WEETE  HEAHER
fir BB EE®m ALY
BERIFERENABED
S8R -

The methods and valuation techniques used for the purpose

of measuring fair value are unchanged compared to the
previous reporting periods.

Notes:

(@

(b)

Fair values of listed equity securities have been
determined by reference to their quoted bid prices at
the reporting date and have been translated using the
spot foreign currency rates at the end of the reporting
period where appropriate.

Fair values of derivative financial instruments are
measured using quoted prices in active markets for
similar instruments, or using valuation techniques in
which all significant inputs are directly or indirectly
based on observable market data.

N
w
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46. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (Continued)

Fair value measurements recognised in the statement
of financial position (Continued)

(0 The Group’s financial assets classified in Level 3 use
valuation technique based on significant inputs that are
not based on observable market data.

The movements in fair value measurements in Level 3

ATEMEEINT during the year are as follows:
REBRAAF
Group and Company
2012 2011
FET FET
HK$’000 HK$’000
A IR 2 B D Redemption options of convertible notes
REH] At beginning of the year 1,361 =
N Additions 1,644 1,620
NSCE ) Fair value change
(B sE =) (note 34) (2,857) (259)
RER At end of the year 148 1,361

RER - EEBRELBR
ATESEE  TRETAE
WANBIHEE (-
m) -

During the year, there were no transfers of fair value
measurements between Level 1 and Level 2 and no transfers
into or out of Level 3 (2011: Nil).
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M+t - LENSER SR 47. SUMMARY OF FINANCIAL ASSETS

EEREERE AND LIABILITIES BY CATEGORY
REBRARRNEE BERR The carrying amounts of the Group’s and the Company’s
SRVEE R BENREER &I financial assets and liabilities as recognised at reporting

TH%E - 2R W5E3.15%3.2284
RSB T AR DB 2%

dates may be categorised as follows. See notes 3.15 and
3.22 for explanations about how the category of financial

LHREERETE o instruments affects their subsequent measurement.
rEE b /N
Group Company
2012 2011 2012 2011
FET FET FET FET
HKS$’000 HK$'000 HKS$’000 HK$'000
SREE Financial assets
ERBEE Non-current assets
A EZ?‘E@’%E‘% Available-for-sale financial assets 37,136 137,718 = =
EE L€ Loans and receivables;
B 1P HT HE#  —Loan to a jointly controlled
ZEH entity 391,800 330,300 = =
— A KB A B A — Due from subsidiaries - = 397,307 378,822
428,936 468,018 397,307 378,822
‘Zﬁbﬁﬁ Current assets
FTEGABRZZ Financial assets at fair value
fﬁmﬂﬁf‘% through profit or loss 11,696 15,235 148 1,361
fTEERIA Derivative financial instruments - 126 = =
SR MR - Loans and receivables:
- B HRNGE ~ Trade receivables 109,010 116,484 - -
—H b — Other receivables 3,761 4,109 319 319
) NGRS — Due from subsidiaries = = 99,178 173,772
UGN O] - Due from associates = 18 = 8
— [ — £ FH il ~ Due from a jointly controlled
EREIUR entity 139 141 = =
-HekHeEHE — Cash and cash equivalents 85,236 49,867 17 76
209,842 185,980 99,762 175,536
638,778 653,998 497,069 554,358

N
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M4+ - UERHER SR 47. SUMMARY OF FINANCIAL ASSETS
EENRNEEHME AND LIABILITIES BY CATEGORY
(#&) (Continued)
AEE N
Group Company
2012 2011 2012 2011
FET FET FET FET
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
tRAE Financial liabilities
REEE Current liabilities
B SHRAG8 2 Finandial liabilities measured
ERAR: at amortised cost:
—Z5ENFA — Trade payables (133,166) (143,522) = =
—HtENFIBNRESER - Other payables and accruals (72,802) (41,859) (1,417) (492)
—EEEARFR — Due to associates (111) - = =
— [T 2R ~ Due to a jointly controlled
EEIE entity = 14) = -
—EAKBRRZE - Due to subsidiaries = = (7,426) =
—RITER - Bank loans (324,172) (235,139) - -
—RREE — Convertible note (54,889) = (54,889) =
AATERTABRZ Financial liabilities at fair value
SHBE through profit or loss:
—TEEmITA — Derivative financial instruments (84) - = =
(585,224) (420,534) (63,732) (492)
FREBEE Non-current liabilities
B AT EZ Finandial liabilities measured
ERAR: at amortised cost:
—ERBERRFE ~ Due to a related company (27,961) = = =
—ERRARERATFIE - Due to ultimate holding
company (7,877) (7,877) - -
—ERRREHENER ~ Loan from a controlling
shareholder (105,000) - (105,000) -
—ABRREE - Convertible note (13,694) (50,802) (13,694) (50,802)
(154,532) (58,679) (118,694) (50,802)
(739,756) (479,213) (182,426) (51,294)
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The primary objective of the Group’s capital management
is to ensure that it maintains a strong credit rating and
healthy ratios in order to support its business and maximise
shareholders value.

The Group manages its capital structure and makes
adjustments to it, in light of changes in economic
conditions. To maintain or adjust the capital structure, the
Group may adjust the dividend payment to shareholders,
return capital to shareholders or issue new shares. No
changes were made in the objectives, policies or processes
during the current and previous years.

The Group monitors capital using a gearing ratio, which is
net debts divided by total equity plus net debts. Net debts
are calculated as the sum of bank and other borrowings
less the sum of cash and cash equivalents as shown in the
consolidated statement of financial position. The Group aims
to maintain the gearing ratio at a reasonable level and the
directors are of the opinion that the Group’s gearing ratio
was maintained at reasonable level at the reporting dates.
The gearing ratios as at the reporting date were as follows:

N
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48. CAPITAL MANAGEMENT (continued)

REE
Group
2012 2011
FE T FHET

HK$’000 HK$°000
REBAE Current liabilities
IRITEN Bank loans 324,172 235,139
Al T EE I Convertible note 54,889 =
EREBEE Non-current liabilities
FERT RAE A R 5IR Due to a related company 27,961 =
GIE:Y &2 Convertible note 13,694 50,802
FEAS f 4 IR A B3I Due to ultimate holding company 7,877 7,877
IR R E SR Loan from a controlling shareholder 105,000 =
(B Gk Total debts 533,593 293,818
B IREMIREER  Less: Cash and cash equivalents (85,236) (49,867)
FEE Net debts 448,357 243,951
TS 4AFE Total equity 1,645,618 1,033,138
ERERERFEE Total equity and net debts 2,093,975 1,277,089
BEARBELE Gearing ratio 21.4% 19.1%

M+Ah - EREF 49. COMPARATIVE FIGURES

AREAEAFEREEZARER
WEIAER - EHTETEHS
2 RiEfHEE S EER
{EE5187,864,00078 T B 4& A H
e ERSOBREE"ST
——FXNA=tHIFEHT
EZemEERBEBEERET
HE - MERTHAENETL
JR RS2 11,315,000 7T B 42 F £
ERAET A EAEE_F—
FRA=ZTHLEFENTHE
)EHO

In order to conform with current year’'s presentation of
the consolidated statement of comprehensive income,
certain reclassification was made including impairment
loss of available-for-sale financial assets of HK$7,864,000
was reclassified from other operating expenses as a
separate line item as impairment loss of available-for-
sale financial statements for the year ended 30 June 2011
and certain factory charges for administrative purpose
of HK$11,315,000 was reclassified from cost of sales to
administrative expenses for the year ended 30 June 2011.
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MEEE PARTICULARS OF PROPERTY
RZZT—=F-A=+H as at 30 June 2012
BEWE INVESTMENT PROPERTY

AEEELER

Attributable

NE Jiikes FHER interest
Location Use Lease term of the Group
EEE R 236-2425% (S K5 100%
236-242 Dex Voeux Road Central Commercial Long

)
©
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BRMBC &2 CBRMBRELIRE
MBI - ZRBETERER
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FIVE YEARS FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results and of the assets, liabilities and non-
controlling interests of the Group for the last five financial years, as
extracted from the respective published audited financial statements
and restated as appropriate, is set out as below. This summary does
not form part of the audited financial statements.

E 4 RESULTS
2012 2011 2010 2009 2008
FExT TET TET TET TET
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000
ez Revenue 955,712 973,501 1,031,708 1,189,622 1,497,682

B P 15 5 A 4t A

Profit before income tax
Fr5%i (FZ) /¥ %  Income tax (expense)/credit (2,494) (5,646)  (6,594) 1,130

215,020 35,387 11,189 71,142 101,073
(10,790)

F =
el £

Profit for the year

212,526 29,741 4,595 72,272 90,283

Non-controlling interests 2,368 3,712 217 (10) (3,611)

ZA/NIEZEWN
JE A5 AL R

Net profit attributable to
the owners of the Company

214,894 33,453 4,812 72,262 86,672

EE -BRERIFEEFER

ASSETS, LIABILITIES AND

NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS

2012 2011 2010 2009 2008
FET FEIT FEIT FEIT FET
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

BERAE Total assets 2,634,216 1,528,734 1,399,111 2,013,672 1,673,773
BEEEH Total liabilities (988,598) (495,596) (391,595) (967,771) (731,523)
JEFE i Non-controlling interests 6,565 3,665 (1,057)  (1,274)  (1,865)

1,652,183 1,036,803 1,006,459 1,044,627 940,385
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